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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Qingling Motors Co. Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) is principally engaged in the production and sale of Isuzu
light, medium and heavy-duty trucks, pick-up trucks, multi-purpose
vehicles, chassis and automobile parts, accessories and others. All of the
production facilities of the Group are located in the People’s Republic of
China (the “"PRC") and substantially all the sales of the Group are also
made in the PRC. The Group had export sales to overseas countries
during the year, which accounted for approximately 1.42% of the Group's
turnover for the year.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The Group had 2,980 employees as at 31 December 2020.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

| am pleased to present the annual report of Qingling Motors Co. Ltd (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2020 for your review.

2020 RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company sold 45,869
vehicles, representing an increase of 5.97% over 43,284 vehicles sold
last year. Revenue was RMB5,089 million, representing an increase
of 7.74% over RMB4,723 million as recorded last year. Profit after tax
was RMB306 million, representing a decrease of 13.98% over RMB356
million as recorded last year.

THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

At the beginning of 2020, the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic led to
lockdowns by cities and countries to prevent contagion of the virus. The
spread of the COVID-19 pandemic also had negative impact, to various
extent, on the supply chain, export and sale of the Company and on the
Isuzu staff coming to Chongqging to promote projects. In addition, due to
the economic downturn and increasingly fierce competition in the market
during the pandemic, the Company increased its efforts and expenses in
promotion to maintain the market, which resulted in a decrease in profit.

However, the Company promptly formulated various measures to
prevent and control the pandemic: firstly, it achieved “supply security”
for production, and basically met the target set at the beginning of the
year; secondly, it actively communicated with government departments
and obtained their support and timely approval for the resident Japanese
personnel and experts coming to Chongging to ensure promotion of key
projects; thirdly, it actively sought for a concession of nearly RMB4 million
from a special energy support policy during the pandemic prevention and
control period, etc.

During the Reporting Period, the pandemic did not have a material impact
on the Company's operating results and financial position. However,
as the COVID-19 is still spreading further worldwide, and there remain
uncertainties in its severity, duration and impact, the Company will pay
close attention to the possible impact of the pandemic on the Company's
business at all times.
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REVIEW OF RESULTS

In 2020, the sudden outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic has exerted
unprecedented impact on the global economic and social development.
Over the past year, the Company has been following the guiding spirits
of the central government and implemented the arrangements of the
municipal Party committee and the municipal government. It has been
focusing on pandemic prevention and control, while resuming work and
achieving production targets, and at the same time also concentrating on
reform and development, by which the Company has basically achieved
its development targets set at the beginning of the year, making stable
progress in reform and innovation and the development of its key
projects, as well as improvement in its production and operation to some
extent.

1. Application of product innovation achievements was
accelerated. Firstly, the preparation for the development of
National VIb model of whole series of fuel vehicles and its mass
production was completed, and new types of light, medium and
heavy-duty trucks and pickup trucks were invented and produced;
secondly, within the portfolio of its new energy commercial
vehicles, continuous improvement was made to full electric
vehicles, and the development of its hydrogen fuel cell vehicles
was accelerated; thirdly, breakthroughs in the development of
intelligent connected vehicles gained speed, the development
of internet of vehicles was sped up, and the application of
autonomous driving was boosted steadily.

2. Difficulties in marketing were overcome, and the marketing
showed steady and improvement trends. A new marketing
system was put into use, driving the integration of internal
systems to correspond to the market; innovative marketing
methods were adopted to respond to the impact of the pandemic;
the sales of the National VI products were vigorously promoted
and thus we occupied the National VI markets in advance; the
construction of marketing networks was promoted; whole-vehicle
exports increased despite of unfavorable market condition; the
quality of after-sales service was further improved; and the
internal management was enhanced.

3. Management level at production site was improved, and
the promotion of intelligent manufacturing was accelerated.
We, focusing on the production site, cemented the foundation
for production management; strengthened the quality of
manufacturing, and accelerated the construction of intelligent
manufacturing projects, to enhance the efficiency.

4. Quality management was enhanced in response to new

changes and new requirements. \We strengthened the product
consistency management and control, made comparison against
competing products and improved our products, to make
passengers sitting in our products feel as comfortable as in cars,
and strengthened the current quality management for the initial
circulation of National VI and electric vehicles in the market; rigid
quality assessment and punishment was required.
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Task of reducing costs was rigidly performed. Firstly, the
development, procurement, financial planning systems and
various subsidiaries adopted measures such as optimization
of design, introduction of market competition, localization,
and breaking internal price protection to reduce the cost of
procurement for parts and components; secondly, the material
procurement department reduced the costs of procurement for
raw and auxiliary materials by way of cost reduction through
commercial and technological means and avoiding peak-season
procurement, etc.; thirdly, the financial system deeply promoted
and standardized the centralized and unified management of
funds to increase interest income.

Various work on reform were thoroughly promoted. Firstly,
we improved our corporate governance structure, to further
improve the organizational efficiency and enhanced the business
vitality; secondly, we improved our recruitment and employment
mechanism, broadened the talent recruitment channels,
and standardized our talent introduction process; thirdly, we
established and improved our national professional and technical
titles declaration and review management system, and started to
normalize the review; fourthly, we formulated the management
measures for annual achievements-related wages, and increased
the proportion of and granted achievements-related wages.

The implementation of safety and environmental protection
work was closely monitored, to guarantee production and
operation stability. In 2020, the Company and its subsidiaries
earnestly performed their responsibilities for safety and
environmental protection. We increased our investment in safety
production, occupational health, etc., to guarantee essence
safety; strengthened on-site safety monitoring, investigated the
“three violations” at the production site, and punished violators;
continued to identify and rectify safety hazards throughout the
year; carried out various emergency drills to achieve safety and
stability in production; completed the refined management of
hazardous waste and standardize the hazardous waste sites, to
ensure the discharge of wastewater and exhaust gas was up to
standard.
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OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

The world today is undergoing significant changes, and the macro
situation was complicated and severe, which increased the instability and
uncertainty. Under the shock by a new round of technological revolution
represented by big data, cloud computing, 5G, artificial intelligence and
clean energy, the reform in the automobile industry is facing profound
changes, greater challenges and heavier tasks. We should keep our
belief, stick to the main theme of product structure adjustment and
industrial structure upgrading, take advantage of reform and innovation
as the fundamental driving force, and focus on key targets and tasks, to
continue to promote the high-quality development of the Company. To
this end, the Company has set the following major tasks for 2021:

1. To exert itself to perform well in marketing and systematically
improve its marketing capability. Firstly, to integrate its brand
into its efforts in marketing and mainly rely on its main products;
secondly, to cooperate with financial institutions and boost the
affordability of our products to purchasers; thirdly, to improve our
service to provide assistance to marketing, providing full-chain
service to customers; fourthly, to improve its brand promotion and
marketing; fifthly, to facilitate the switch to National VI products;
sixthly, to intensify its efforts in marketing network construction;
seventhly, to strengthen the building of its marketing team.

2. To adhere to the innovation-driven development and
comprehensively enhance the competitiveness of its
products. To implement the new three-year product plan;
complete the project subject to new regulation in advance; create
main products and launch new products; make more effort to
foster its technical capability.

3. To deepen the opening up and cooperation and promote key
projects effectively. To accelerate the development of hydrogen
fuel battery vehicle industry; speed up the development of new
pick-up truck and the preparation for its mass production; step
up the preparation for the mass production of 4JZ Engine and its
further localization and redevelopment, so as to reduce cost.

4. To persist in deepening reform and stimulate the internal
vitality of the Company. To further promote the market-oriented
reform to promote the healthy development of its subsidiaries;
deepen the reform of three systems to stimulate the vitality
among its employees; boost the “fixed quota” system for post
set up and allocation to optimize personnel structure; strengthen
the legal corporate governance to comprehensively prevent
operational risks.
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5. To keep strengthening foundational management and
continuously improve market satisfaction. To spare no effort to
manage and control the “nervous system” comprising electronics,
electrical appliances, software and other integrate parts of our
products which affect the driving and riding experiences through
its efforts in guaranteeing product consistency, and improve
its products effectively by means of enhancing the commodity
of its products’ appearance and others; continue to promote
the intelligentization upgrading of its process equipment and
the optimization of its production process by the rolling out of
Isuzu IM management and intensify skill training to achieve the
goal of effective production management; optimize parts and
components supply chain; emphasize cost reduction.

6. To adhere to safe development and green development.
Firstly, to never compromise on the prevention and control of the
pandemic, to prevent imported cases while safeguard against
domestic rebound, and earnestly take various prevention and
control measures and guarantee stable supply and production;
secondly, to implement safety responsibility system involving
all employees, further improve the construction of safety and
environmental protection management system, strengthen hazard
factor identification and hazard source management, carry out
"“daily, weekly and monthly” inspection and rectification of hidden
dangers, and carry out safety education and training effectively
and comprehensively, and increase assessment on compliance
performance; thirdly, to apply people-oriented development
concept, further enhance labor protection and occupational health
management, ensure waste discharge is up to environmental
standards, and practice and implement the concept of green
development.

In the new year, the Company will step up market-oriented efforts on
various work and keep up the momentum, striving for delivering more

satisfying returns to its investors.

Chongaing, the PRC
26 March 2021

B2 /3E MM AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

7



8

E55

ESkeREBAEZEEEAER

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EE

BFEEEE 515 Q:%—/‘Tiﬂ-:ﬂ
“T-REE/RARATRNTES BEFK -
MWEEeKBRRARZEGTRENKE - fEZE"
“NANZFRIEREETRREASREE - ZH
HIRRTREE  RT284  BRAETN-
ZT\FREEMBARSHERANEES
X o RRARBERRERCS  BHEEET
%Li@ﬁ%_'f'yizm%ﬁ o BELEFHER

—HREKER - BIEER - ZRBRRE
:“’i“a“ BREEREZERIEIE - —HEER
BIEE - MR R REGAFEIFEIME
BER_EZNFEARRRGLEIF - £&D
FRIBKEMRRBIAE - AABETERR
Fﬁgfwmi(‘il)ﬁ@@ﬁ}(ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁJ)EEIJ#'@%&
B TERLE YR BEAEE E0
RZFE—RFNLHA ﬁff)%ﬁ%%@%%&%%ﬁ
B o BEL DL IHIBINHE - BREBBRRT
WEASHABNEERESRMEISE - A
AREHHRARABNLEE - BE - FR% - ZH
EHBEHE - BALA_T-AFHAE_Z
—RE+—AZTHERERE TR (ER) %Y
BAERARERER -

HE—5HE » 6357 Ef7 NERA=F
AEEARAAIITES BIEFRRAK
B MELEBRBENERRAABHLSRIEL -
MEER—NANZFOAMNMARETRARES
BRARN R TR])  BE(E B IR 75208
8 REFE-HEHKERK  REBEM
HE R - RADEIE, IREEETRITIES
Isuzu Motors America INC. 2R & M X & K 2
A+ B EBESEA S BRFE(ERAL - MRk
FER_E—NFE-_T—+FRATHEEIR
CVIfEHOMER -

3R 2020 ANNUAL REPORT

DIRECTORS

Mr. LUO Yuguang, aged 51, has been an executive director, the
Chairman, a member of the remuneration committee and the chairman
and a member of the nomination committee of the Company since 22
December 2016. He graduated from Beijing Agricultural Engineering
University (bR BE T AE) in 1992, specialized in Construction
and Environmental Engineering (28R T#2) with a Bachelor's
degree in engineering. Mr. LUO also completed and graduated from
an undergraduate program in Chongqging Normal University (A&
AE) in 2008, majoring in Accounting. He joined the Company after
obtaining his Bachelor’'s degree and has a consecutive period of more
than 20 years of experience in the car industry. At the early stage, Mr.
LUO underwent an internship at the Assemble Workshop (#8225 f),
Repair Workshop (#{£E ), Infrastructure Department (FE#ZZB) and
Procurement Department (E£#%EB) of the Company. Later he was the
Deputy Head of the Planning and Construction Department (7 &2 5% 50
2l&6 ), Deputy Head of Secondary Pressing Vehicles Workshop (=7
BB RIg|E1T), Deputy Head of the Finance Department (817530828 K)
and Deputy Head of the Integrated Planning Department (424 &5+ 2120 &I 50
). In 2009, he joined the Management team of the Company and was
the Deputy Chief Economist and the Head of Procurement Department
(BI4AL RN SR ERAB S50 £K), and the Deputy General Manager of Qingling
Motors (Group) Company Limited (“Qingling Group”), the substantial
Shareholder of the Company, responsible for the production, logistics,
domestic support and import, etc.. He took up the post of the Director
and the General Manager of Qingling Group in September 2016. Mr.
LUO studied abroad for several times, including the Advanced Course in
Corporate Governance organized by the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Studies on Special Topics such as production, quality,
development and sales organized by Japan Isuzu. Mr. LUO has been the
Chairman of the Qingling Isuzu (Chongging) Engine Co., Ltd. from April
2015 to 30 November 2016.

Mr. HAYASHI Shuichi, aged 63 has been an executive director, the vice
chairman and the general manager of the Company since 30 May 2018.
Mr. HAYASHI graduated from School of Social Sciences of WASEDA
University. Mr. HAYASHI joined Isuzu Motors Limited (“Isuzu”) in April
1982 and worked as an employee of the Purchase Department, deputy
officer of the engine group of the second purchase department, the head
of the fourth purchase department and the executive officer in charge of
cost planning department/purchase department, Section Chief and deputy
officer of Isuzu Motors America INC and a Head in Isuzu Motors (Thailand)
Ltd GEEI A +82 A8 &k & 4t). Mr. HAYASHI worked at the Global CV
Engineering Center of Isuzu (L1 $8 2 FKCVI 2 1) from 2014 to 2017.
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Mr. MAEGAKI Keiichiro, aged 63, has been an executive director and
the vice chairman of the Company since 28 May 2015 and has been the
general manager of the Company since 16 November 2015. He resigned
as the vice chairman and the general manager of the Company with
effect from 30 May 2018. He graduated from the Faculty of Law of Keio
University, Japan. He joined Isuzu in April 1981 and has been working
at Isuzu for over 30 years. He served in a number of positions, including
the manager in charge of the domestic service improvement office, the
manager in charge of the domestic management office, the manager in
charge of the domestic planning office, the head of the business planning
department, the merchandise manager of MKT office and CV project,
the head of the project management department, the executive officer
in charge of the project management department and cost planning
department, the executive officer in charge of the eighth and ninth
divisions of the overseas business and the assistant to the head of the
PT business department. Mr. MAEGAKI is currently the representative
director and the general manager of Isuzu Leasing Service Co., Ltd. (.

RIEERBERAF]

Mr. ADACHI Katsumi, aged 59, has been an executive director of
the Company since 26 July 2019. He graduated from the School of
Mercantile Marine of Kobe University of Mercantile Marine (B Z4t# 5
PR R E M E2ET) in Japan in March 1984. Mr. ADACHI joined Isuzu in
April 1984 and has served in various departments, including Personnel
Department (A EE), Engine Examination Section (B E)#iE&E ) and
Assembly Examination Section (88 ZE ) of Quality Management
Department (528 &2 2f), Examination Section of Hokkaido Factory (1t/&
BT ERR), Assembly Quality Management Section (4255 5 & B2 )
of Quality Management Department and Quality Management Section
of Engine Factory (B8 T mEEIER). From October 1997 to April
2019, he had served as manager of Quality Management Section of PT
Factory (PTLE&h'E &3 R), monitor of the Second PT Evaluation Group
(PTEHE 2 —#H) of PT Quality Management Department (PT5aE & 1 ),
management group monitor of the First Department of PT Manufacturing
(PT&LE S —3F), minister of PT Quality Management Department (PT&3
BEIRE), minister of PT Public Works Department (PTI#%6), a senior
staff of LCV Business Project Department (LCV& %18 B £6) (concurrently
working in Thailand Engine Manufacturing Co., Limited (Z=EI 35 82l
EIRN 1), an executive officer (FTT1% 8) of Vehicle Public Works
Department (B2#§ T 7%2B), Vehicle Body Manufacturing Department (22

B2 ), the Vehicle Manufacturing Department (BEE&LEEF) and
the Vehlcle Quality Management Department (B8 58 & 2f) and an
executive clerk of the Vehicle Technology Department (&R 4i7EE) under
the Production Division of Main Department of Technology (Sl Z<EE).
Mr. ADACHI is currently the managing executive officer and the head of
the Production Division of Main Department of Technology of Isuzu.

B2 /3E MM AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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Mr. LI Juxing, aged 55, has been an executive director of the Company
since 28 May 2015. He graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology,
majoring in casting. He holds a bachelor degree of engineering and is a
senior engineer. Mr. LI successively served as a technician of a foundry
of Chongaing Automobile Manufacturing Plant (EE/TE&EEM), a
head of the biotechnology department, a head of the quality department,
a deputy chief engineer and a deputy general manager of Chongqging
Qingling Casting Company Limited (EEE#EEHR A F) since July
1990. He became a deputy chief engineer of Qingling Group since 2005
and concurrently served as the general managers of Chongging Qingling
Aluminium Casting Co. Ltd. (EEEX#EaARAF]) and Chongging
Qingling Forging Co. Ltd. (EEERBIEFRAR]). Since 2010, he has
been working as a deputy general manager of Qingling Group and he
also serves as the chairman of Chongging Qingling Forging Co. Ltd. and
vice chairman of Isuzu (China) Engine Co., Ltd.. During the period from
26 September 2016 to 22 December 2016, Mr. LI served as the acting
Chairman of the Company.

Mr. XU Song, aged 53, has been an executive director of the Company
since 15 June 2016. He is a senior engineer. Mr. XU joined the Chinese
Communist Party in June 1988. He graduated from the Faculty of
Engineering Machinery of Jilin University of Technology in July 1989,
majoring in crane transport and engineering machinery. Mr. XU was
awarded a bachelor degree in Engineering and a master degree in
Business Administration. He worked in the equipment department of
Chongging Automobile Manufacturing Plant as an internship in 1989 and
successively served as an assistant engineer and the deputy head of
manufacturing factory. From 1995 to 2004, he worked at the Company
and successively served as the deputy head, the head of manufacturing
factory and the head of the product development department. Since
2004, Mr. XU served as an assistant to general manager of Qingling
Group and the Company, and successively served as the head of the
business planning department of Qingling Group and the Company and
the director of chief engineer office of the Company. Since 2005, he
served as an assistant to general manager of Qingling Group and the
vice general manager of the Company, and also served as the head of
the business planning department of Qingling Group and the Company.
He also served as the head of the procurement department of Qingling
Group in November 2005. From 2009 to 2012, he successively served
as the deputy general manager and a member of the party committee
of Qingling Group, the general manager, the secretary and a member of
the Party Committee of Chongging Qingling Casting Company Limited.
From 2012 till now, Mr. XU served as the deputy general manager and
a member of the Party Committee of Qingling Group. Mr. XU ceased to
serve as the deputy general manager of the Company since 25 February
2020.



55 EEReREEBASZBERAAER
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

FPREE 545 BT NFRA=T

BREERBERE - FR—NN\RFLAEA
ARRBTIE - B—NANARFALAE_Z—L5F
TH  REETEETERERRREED -
Z8E  BREIEN  BIMEENEBEAR
ERFAEREARAKEREITEER - &
BEREFERERABERER) - ARHA
ZRERBIEE - 2RBERRI R - I8
EREIEERTE  BREREENHE &
EERBERRARBIAKIERBRE - B
SERKIEYE  BEERIE LREERR
REARIIE  ARFIRI - FUAHERAREE
A BRETRER) AEHERBERAF
B2k - FRAERFEREENRRSENE
ZZ8(HRH @ REENEEKXSEHMRE
ENEBBEERAR  PRAERERAET
HERBEEAN) UAREBRERBEARRD
AEERNEZER -TREB T _TF_
AZ+hBRTBEERARRELE -

BEEE 695 B MAEFEAZ+N
BECRARARBILIFNTES - RITE/AR
AIERLZBRE FHNZBeRRERZEEN
8 - EAEEXRNM BBV BRSNS
BRI BEERRBEEL - FERERNPRY
RABETR  EFRHSFTRARAONE - 5
FERETREAFEEERRRERFERTE
ELEeZERTEZS AT IREER
MKE - BAEEBEROARAR - bR
B ARRR - LR EHEEEEENERA
A BEEERNARAR EEEALEESR
RAE - ERBERMARAR TR
MERAE - ARIEREERNHARRAF - £
FHABERERNARARZBIES - £
BRREBAERARESR - BEEERT
BI75 - &5 - B BEMMEREESH R E
METHABEENER KBRS - L
RELERRAIER MR EEIEARARE
B PIMAICERBOERARBYE
= BRGBRECEBARAFBILES 2
BRIREERRAR(EEROARBIES
RERBNBRABBILES

Mr. LI Xiaodong, aged 54, has been an executive director of the
Company since 30 May 2019. He is a member of the Communist Party
of China and hold the university graduate. He joined the Company in
September 1986. From September 1986 to October 2017, he was
successively a teacher at the Technical School, Youth League officer,
deputy secretary of Youth League, director of the engine manufacturing
department and deputy head of the coating workshop of Chongging
Automobile Manufacturing Plant (during his tenure, he graduated from
Chongaging Radio & TV University (majoring in law)); a deputy head of
the coating workshop, a deputy director of coating and manufacturing
department, deputy head and head of No. 2 welding workshop, director
of car body welding and manufacturing department of the Company;
vice general manager and general manager of Chongging Qingling
Forging Co. Ltd; assistant to general manager of Qingling Group; general
manager of Chongging Qingling Automobile Manufacture and Assembly
Co. Ltd.; person-in-charge of Northeast China and North China Sales
Region and chairman of Qingling Isuzu (Chongging) Automobile Sales and
Service Co., Ltd.. Mr. LI currently served as a vice general manager and
member of the party committee of Qingling Group (during his tenure, he
obtained a bachelor’s degree in mechanical design and manufacturing
and automation from Chongging University and a bachelor’'s degree
in business administration from China Central Radio & TV University),
chairman and secretary of the party committee of Chongging Qingling
Casting Company Limited. Mr. LI ceased to serve as the deputy general
manager of the Company since 25 February 2020.

Mr. LONG Tao, aged 69, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 28 April 1994. He is also a member of
the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. LONG graduated from Research
Institute for Fiscal Science, Ministry of Finance, majoring in accounting.
Mr. LONG holds a master’'s degree in economics. He had served at
Accountancy Division of Central University of Finance and Economics,
and New York office of KPMG Peat Marwick. Mr. LONG had acted
as a member of Securities Issue and Approval Committee of China
Securities Regulatory Commission and member of Chinese technology
expert panel for China-Hong Kong Securities Team. Mr. LONG also
served as the independent director of Luoyang Glass Company Limited,
Beijing Hua'er Company Limited (3t 5/t —f%1pBBR A 7)), Beijing Capital
International Airport Co., Ltd., Baotou Iron and Steel Co. Ltd., China Asset
Management Co., Ltd., Beijing Bashi Company Limited, Jiangxi Copper
Company Limited, Beijing North Star Company Limited, Wangfujing
Department Store Co., Ltd. (EFHBEEARERMDBRAE]) and the
chairman of Beijing Haiwen Investment Consulting Co., Ltd. (3t =/&H
EFHRARAF). Mr. LONG has extensive knowledge and experience
in corporate finance, accounting, audit, assets appraisal, restructuring
of enterprise and listing. Mr. LONG currently serves as the chairman
of Beijing Haiwen Entrepreneurship New Technology Investment
Management Co., Ltd. JERUBREEIEFEMREERER A A, an
independent director of Beijing Whoswho Culture and Media Co., Ltd.,
UBS SDIC Fund Management Co., Ltd., Crown International Corporation
Limited (a local company in Hong Kong) and Aimer Co., Ltd. (ER&HDE
RAA]).

B2 /3E MM AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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Mr. SONG Xiaojiang, aged 70, has been an independent non- executive
director of the Company since 28 April 1994. He is also the chairman and
a member of the audit committee and the remuneration committee and
a member of the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. SONG is
general manager of Chongqging Ping Zheng Law Office, a member of the
China Economic Law Association and the China Lawyers Association. Mr.
SONG has been a lawyer and notary for 30 years. Mr. SONG graduated
from South West Institute of Political Science and Law and also studied
international law in the China University of Political Science and Law
and foreign economic law at Shenzhen University. He was formerly vice
chairman of Chongging Notary Office and vice chairman of Chongging
Foreign Law Office.

Mr. LIU Tianni, aged 57, has been an independent non-executive director
of the Company since 31 May 2011. He is also a member of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee
of the Company. Mr. LIU is also the executive director, the chairman
and the chief executive officer of Wonderful Sky Financial Group
Holdings Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, Stock Code: 1260), the chairman of The Listed Companies
Council of Chinese Enterprises Association (Hong Kong) (F#&H {17
AAZB®), a Hong Kong member of Chongging Municipal Committee
of the Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference (EE TR IHE
B2 8), executive vice chairman of the Hong Kong Island Federation (&
B EBA ), the honorary chairman of Shandong Hong Kong Overseas
Investment and Financing Association (B8 ¥R 1A A ), and vice
chairman of China Mergers and Acquisition Association (Kong Kong) (&
BB IEE QD). Mr. LIU graduated from Beijing Normal University with
a master degree in science.

Mr. LIU Erh Fei, aged 62, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company and a member of the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company
since 28 May 2015. He graduated from Harvard Business School with a
master degree in Business Administration. He graduated from Brandeis
University with a bachelor degree in Economics and International
Relations in 1984 and from Beijing Foreign Studies University, majoring in
English, in 1981. Mr. LIU has served as the chairman of China region and
the general manager of China region of Bank of America Merrill Lynch
Group, and served as senior management in Goldman Sachs Group
Company, Morgan Stanley, Salomon Smith Barney International and
Calyon Credit Agricole of France. He is currently a founding partner and
CEO of Asian Investment Capital (2#%2& 7), a director of Cindat Capital
Management Limited, an independent director of CMB Wing Lung Bank
Limited and an independent non-executive director of Jiangxi Copper
Company Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, stock code: 358).



EX - BESESReREEAEBZEREEAER

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EE

BEBxt 535 BE-EZEAFAA+EA
REABABRERERLENES - TR
—RAFRA-+\BTBETESEEER -
HMAtTHREEREEEES EZRELNTIE
IE - BLEEBREIEAESF &R - HK
THR—NMNN\FEEREEBERERE
AEARERE  LHBAFELEEE -

RKZERXL 455 B hAFRA=1
AREAALRBITARLENES - HEE
NEEAEREERE TRIFTEE - E%Eﬂi
BERSHEE(RBAR) NEEMES
STEE(LEE RN —ANZ= ibu)ﬁ
Al WRZEHMHTIE- B —AN=ZFNAE
—E-\F—f  BEEEERAEREER
HICHEREPFEMHEE BREBT100PHAE
8 - BEHERNE AR Tﬂﬁ%uﬁ,ﬂﬁka@
& Fﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%(é%)ﬁ%ﬁ’%ﬂ&%ﬁﬁﬁ
BITEERER R ¢ B BT At BRI AT B
BE - WIBEER %l%ﬁr%ﬁ%%*ﬁmwﬁ%&%
BEEEEeRNERIEET -

o

SUPERVISORS

Ms. MIN Qing, aged 53, has been the supervisor representing the
Shareholders since 15 June 2006. Ms. MIN ceased to be the Chairman of
the Supervisory Committee on 28 May 2015. Ms. MIN is a director, the
deputy secretary of the Party Committee and the Chairman of the Trade
Union of Qingling Group, and has many years of experience in corporate
management. Ms. MIN graduated from Chongging Communication
College in Mechanical Engineering in 1988 and had undergraduate
education. She also studied corporate management in Japan.

Ms. ZHANG Yongning, aged 45, has been a supervisor representing the
staffs and workers of the Company since 30 May 2019. She graduated
from the Technical School of Chongging Automobile Manufacturing Plant
(B EFRE RS MR) specializing in fitter's techniques, the accounting and
statistics major of Chongging Normal College (EERT#1E263) at adult
education junior college level and accounting computerization major of
Chongging Normal College. Ms. ZHANG joined the Company in 1993, and
has worked for a number of departments. From August 1993 to January
2018, she served as a repairer of low-voltage system in the Repair
Workshop (#{£E &) of Chongging Automobile Manufacturing Plant;
a clerk of 100P office and business planning department of Qingling
Group; the financial management controller of the finance department
of the Company, the head of the finance department of Qingling Isuzu
(Chongging) Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd and a staff member
responsible for supervision of the audit and supervision department
of Qingling Group. She is currently the deputy head of the audit and
supervision department of Qingling Group and the deputy director of the
office of the board of supervisors of Qingling Group.

B2 /3E MM AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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Dear Shareholders:

Since the establishment of the Supervisory Committee, each member
has been performing his duty in accordance with the Company's Articles
of Association with a view of protecting the interests of shareholders
and the Company. We have attended the board meetings and have
given our opinions regarding the business development, market
expansion, technological reform, basic management and team building
of the Company. We have also monitored the guiding ideology of the
management and considered whether the decisions made by the
management were in compliance with state laws and whether they
were appropriate for the development of the Company and were in the
interests of shareholders.

According to its power, the Supervisory Committee has reviewed
evidence of the Company’s accounts, books, reports and other
accounting information in a timely manner. In our opinion, the financial
statements have been properly prepared while the accounting principles
and the method of financial management adopted are in compliance with
relevant rules and regulations and no issues were identified.

The Supervisory Committee have carefully examined the financial
statements, the Directors’ Report and the proposal for appropriation of
profit to be presented before the annual general meeting by the Board of
Directors. In our opinion, the chairman of the Board, directors, managers
and senior management have not engaged in any malpractices which
would be prejudicial to the interests of shareholders and employees of
the Company.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the performance as well as
the economic results of the Company, and we are confident about the
future development of the Company.

Supervisor
MIN Qing
Chongging, the PRC, 26 March 2021



EZgMAREAKEBE_ZT_TF+_A
=+ RUEFREZFERE MEEREEHTE
BE -

FERY

AEBEFERELERBEER THER &
A EREAE - WRE - 2R KB
REEHREM - BEARRNEZNBEA
A BERARIRAETEZEEDRHNEE
B TSR R IEE39 ~ 2050121 o

RE®EW

MEERBGPIM RO E RS METZ AW
MM BREAKREERBZPEESR  HE
EmEz 2RI THBERENN® -
TR FERAERBEYHAEEEY
ENEAREMHZFHT  ARANEEEBEER
RRETZRRBERNIBT  CERAFHE
ERWE] [EFeHmE]  [BXEERE]
NI IRERMEILEA - ZI - HARFH
BERRRRENRY - BARBETHAR
RIAEARENBRARRRIINBERRAR
AR EHOENFRESHNAFREES
BEIRIERERBRE LA - SN Ll
IR EBREIRE DARSE 287 -

RERSE

ERAEEEE T -_TFE+_A=+—Hit
FEZEEFRFTIBEZRABERREME
ARER - EEFEFRERABRETRARKE
0. 10 FR B - —FX A+ NBRIEKRF
MR A 2 R ER o ZE AR B AN AAR
#248,227,0007T °

BRBRRERR

REEBANRRRE - SHERBINERES
A RALELEEARREMERR B
BEEE - RRMERRERBRFRERR - BIR
FANBORIBERER - FRERE - fi
MBI A MR E TR A EL LIRS

EEERE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Board is pleased to present its annual report and audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the production and sale of Isuzu light,
medium and heavy-duty trucks, pick-up trucks, multi-purpose vehicles,
chassis, automobile parts and others. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries, an associate and joint ventures of the Company are set
out in notes 39, 20 and 21 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of the business review as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a fair view
of the business and a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the financial year 2020 and an indication
of likely future development in the Group's business are set out in the
“Chairman’s Statement”, “Directors’ Report”, “Corporate Governance
Report” and “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements” sections
of this annual report. In addition, a discussion of the Company’s
environmental policies and performance, the Company’'s compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Company and the relationship between the Company and significant
stakeholders is set out in “Directors’ Report” and “Corporate Governance
Report” sections of this annual report. The business review in the above
sections comprise part of this report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 74. The directors recommend the
payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.10 per share to the shareholders
whose names appear in the register of members on 16 June 2021,
amounting to approximately RMB248,227,000 in total.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to environmental protection, energy- saving and
emission reduction, and the integrated use of resources. Adhering to the
principles of making production and operation harmony to the ecological
environment, the Group has adopted the concept of environmental
protection, energy-saving and emission reduction and the integrated use
of resources in its production and operating activities through reducing
emission, protecting the environment and saving of resources while
putting into practice the scientific concepts of environmental protection
and integrated use of resources.

E$2/5H A1 B PR A R Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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The Group keeps placing strong emphasis on environmental protection
issues and coordinates the relationship between production development
and environmental protection, with the aim to develop pollution-free
production modes. The successive operation of the newly-installed
environmental protection facilities, the improvement of working
environment and the integrated measures adopted to prevent and
mitigate pollution have made the pollutants produced not exceeding
the standards set by local environmental authorities. The Group strives
to protect and improve the environment, enhance the environmental
awareness of our staff, ensure the well-being of our staff and builds a
clean and favorable production and working environment. With various
measures such as resources recycling and reusing and energy-saving
and emission reduction putting in place in the production process, the
Group endeavors to produce energy-saving and environmentally-friendly
products while keeping in mind the well-being of the production workers.
The implementation of the above measures fully demonstrates the
Group’s sustainable development strategies and its determination on
environmental protection.

COMPLIANCE OF RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

With regard to the protection of intellectual properties — The Group has
complied with the terms stipulated under the Trademark Law of the
People’s Republic of China and its Regulation for the Implementation of
the Trademark Law and the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China
and Rules for the Implementation of the Patent Law and the specific
requirements of the city to carry out the work in relation to the design
and file registration of trademarks and patents and has actively taken
measures to protect the trademarks and patents of other interested
stakeholders.

With regard to the product quality and consumer rights — The Group
has strictly complied with the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Product Quality and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests in the manufacturing and
selling procedures of automobile products and automobile parts. With
respect to product quality, the Group strengthens source management
and formulates stringent standard in evaluating parts suppliers to ensure
the quality of parts products and prevent substandard goods being
passed off as high-quality ones while purchasing automobile products
and parts. During the production process, standardized management
is strictly implemented with an emphasis on the management of
craftsmanship quality, and defective and substandard parts are prohibited
to be assembled at the production line in order to ensure the satisfactory
rate at the production line. Before the products are transferred into the
warehouses, product quality inspection system were strictly put in place
to forbid defective products being launched. In terms of protection of
consumers’ rights, we have complied with the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Protection of Consumer Rights, and product
manuals with full details are provided to consumers while advertisements
are tailored to truly reflect the authentic characteristics of products.
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With regard to the interests of the employees — The Group strives
to comply with the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Social Insurance
Law of the People’s Republic of China, so as to safeguard the legitimate
interests of workers. All full-time employees are entitled to work-related
injury insurance, unemployment insurance, medical insurance, pension
insurance, and maternity insurance and housing fund as required by the
state regulations. The Group has also arranged annual body check for
all of its staff, and this further protects the legitimate interests of the
employees. Moreover, the Group also actively organizes activities for its
employees with regard to the education of prevention of occupational
disease and other safety and health related issues.

With regard to tax payment — The Group complies with specific
regulations of the People’s Republic of China on various taxes, and
pays taxes according to the law for the purpose of ensuring that all
tax payment made by the Group is in compliance with the laws and
regulations.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

Risks relating to the decline in sales and profit as a result of
weakened market environment

As China's economy is turning into ‘new normal’ amid the cross
impact of the ‘overlapping of the three phases’, the sales of domestic
commercial vehicles decline as a result of the overall decline in demand
for commercial vehicles. With the protracted economic downturn, the
competition in the domestic commercial vehicles market may further
exacerbate, causing impact to the Group's sales for commercial vehicles
and hence affecting the Group's profit.

Risks relating to the insufficient research and development and
the increase in costs in order to adapt to the tightened national
regulations on emission and consumer demand

Taken into the consideration of environmental protection, the national
regulations on emission tend to be tightened and the switching time
tends to be shortened while the consumer demand tends to be more
diversified and competitors tend to launch new products more frequently,
this has put forward higher requirement for the Group’s research and
development capability. However, there exists lead time from research
and development to commercial production of replacement products,
the Group's capability in research and development is crucial in
satisfying national and consumer requirements while outperforming the
competitors. Nevertheless, it may not be possible to timely launch new
products that can outperform competitors every time due to constraints
on capital, time, and ability. Since the Group’s costs on research and
development will be driven up by the launching of new products, such
research and development costs may have to transfer to the product
price to the extent not offset by the reasonable reduction of the Group's
internal costs, and this will inevitably weaken the Group’s product
competitiveness.

B2 /AHE D AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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Risks relating to the fall of products’ popularity and reputation
arising from consumers’ comment

In recent years, the competition among domestic commercial vehicles
enterprises intensifies as the market environment deteriorates.
Competitors keep launching mid-to-high end commercial trucks into the
market, causing unfavorable impact to the Group’s dominant position in
the mid-to-high end commercial truck market.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group incurred approximately RMB179,084,000
on acquisition of property, plant and equipment for expansion of its
production facilities.

Details of these and other movements during the year in property, plant
and equipment and investment properties of the Group are set out in
note 16 and note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUID FUNDS
SITUATION

Financial Performance

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue of the Group was
RMB5,088,762,000, representing an increase of 7.74% as compared
to last year, which was mainly driven by the development of logistics
industry, and infrastructure investment. Gross profit for the year was
RMB699,401,000, representing a decrease of 17.57% as compared to
last year. Gross profit margin of the Group for the year was 13.74% as
compared with 17.96% last year. Profit of the Group for the year was
RMB306,462,000 representing a decrease of 13.98% as compared to
last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, other income mainly included
interest income, government grants and rental income, totaling
RMB279,182,000, representing an increase of 7.97% as compared to last
year.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's expenses, including
distribution and selling costs, administrative expenses and research
expenses, increased by 10.28% as compared to last year, principally due
to the increase in business promotion expenses for the year as compared
to last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the share of results of joint
ventures of the Group was RMB2,427,000, representing a decrease of
49.83% as compared to last year, mainly due to the profit decline of L+
$2 (M) 2 BHEABR AR (“Isuzu Engine, the entity was formerly named
BRATR(ER)EDERERAD A("Qingling Isuzu Engine”)). Additionally,
the Group incorporated E#2&JR/TEBR AR (“Qingling Shinerary”),
which is an associate that was established in November 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, basic earnings per share was
RMBO0.12. The Company did not issue any new shares and the basic
earnings per share is comparable with last year.

Financial Position

As at 31 December 2020, the total assets and total liabilities of the Group
were RMB10,966,341,000 and RMB2,978,916,000 respectively.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s non-current assets amounted to
RMB4,107,906,000 which mainly includes property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, investment properties,intangible assets, interests
in associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets and time deposits.
During the year, the Group incurred approximately RMB5,928,000 on
acquisition of intangible assets for production management system.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's current assets amounted to
RMB6,858,435,000 which mainly includes inventories, trade, bills and
other receivables and prepayments, time deposits, bank deposits, bank
balances and cash and tax recoverable.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's current liabilities amounted to
RMB2,939,052,000 which mainly includes trade, bills and other payables,
lease liabilities, tax liabilities, contract liabilities and refund liabilities.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's non-current liability amounted to
RMB39,864,000 which mainly includes deferred income — governments
grants and lease liabilities.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's net current assets was
RMB3,919,383,000 (2019: RMB®6,288,197,000), representing a
decrease of 37.67% as compared to last year, mainly due to the liquidity
classification of time deposits.

Liquidity and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2020, the time deposits, bank deposits and cash
retained by the Group due within one year were RMB3,282,385,000 and
decreased by 45.86% as compared with the balances reported on 31
December 2019. The Group's working capital requirement was financed
by its own cash flow. Gearing ratio represented the percentage of total
liabilities over total equity as per consolidated statement of financial
position. The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2020 was
37.30% (as at 31 December 2019: 36.07%). Issued share capital as at 31
December 2020 maintained at the level of RMB2,482,268,000 as no
share was issued during this year.

B2 /3E MM AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no material change
in the financing strategies of the Group and the Group did not incur any
bank borrowings. The Company would closely monitor the financial and
liquidity position of the Group and financial market from time to time in
order to formulate financing strategies appropriate to the Group. The total
equity attributable to owners of the Company as at 31 December 2020
was RMB7,665,844,000. The net assets value per share (representing
total equity attributable to owners of the Company divided by number
of shares of the Company as at 31 December 2020) as at 31 December
2020 was RMB3.09.

Significant Investment

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's interests in joint ventures were
RMB487,333,000 and interests in associates was RMB33,118,000
which mainly included the interest in Isuzu Engine, a joint venture, of
RMB430,109,000. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the joint
ventures and associates of the Group were under normal operation.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group incorporated an
associate in November 2020, Qingling Shinerary, which is principally
engaged in selling trucks and autoparts, the portion of equity interests is
49%. Besides, there were no significant acquisition and disposal of the
Group.

Segment Information

The revenue contributed by light-duty trucks and medium and heavy-duty
trucks were RMB2,707,785,000 and RMB1,228,601,000 respectively,
representing 77.35% of the total revenue and 79.63% of the total
segment profit. Light-duty trucks, medium and heavy-duty trucks are
currently the major products accounting for the highest contribution to
the Group.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2020, no asset of the Group was pledged for financial
facilities (for the year ended 31 December 2019: Nil).

Effects of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes

The major foreign currency transactions of the Group are relating to
purchasing automobile parts denominated in Japanese Yen. The Group

did not encounter any difficulty or suffer any significant impact in its
operations or liquidity as a result of fluctuation in the exchange rate.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year or at any
time during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, the amount
of profit available for distribution shall be deemed to be the lesser
of the amount of profit determined in accordance with the relevant
accounting principles and financial regulations applicable to companies
established in the PRC ("PRC GAAP"). The Company's profit available
for distribution to shareholders as at 31 December 2020 was the
retained profit of approximately RMB1,478,406,000 (2019: approximately
RMB1,620,835,000).

The profit of the Company for a financial year shall be applied in
accordance with the following order:

(i)  making up losses;
(i) allocation to statutory surplus reserve fund;

(i) if there are preference shares, payment of dividends in respect of
preference shares;

(iv)  allocation to discretionary surplus reserve fund; and
(v)  payment of dividends in respect of ordinary shares.
The detailed proportion of distribution in respect of items (ii) to (v) above
for any financial year shall be formulated by the Board in accordance
with the operational conditions of the Company and its development

requirements and shall be submitted to shareholders’ general meeting for
approval.

B2 /AHE D AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

LUO Yuguang (Chairman)
HAYASHI Shuichi
MAEGAKI Keiichiro
ADACHI Katsumi

LI Juxing

XU Song

LI Xiaodong

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

LONG Tao
SONG Xiaojiang
LIU Erh Fei

LIU Tianni

Supervisors:

MIN Qing
ZHANG Yongning

The current term of all directors and supervisors of the Company
will expire on the date of the annual general meeting for 2021 of the
Company and they are eligible for re-election at the annual general
meeting for 2021 of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All the executive directors and independent non-executive directors that
will be re-elected and appointed will renew or enter into service contracts
or appointment letters with the Company for a term of three years on 2
June 2021.

All the supervisors that will be re-elected and appointed will renew or
enter into appointment letters with the Company for a term of three
years on 2 June 2021.

None of the directors or supervisors has a service contract with the
Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive directors as regards to their independence to
the Company and considers that each of the independent non-executive
directors is independent to the Company.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS" AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, none of the directors or the supervisors and
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations as defined under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors and supervisors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ MATERIAL
INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation
to which the Company, its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which any directors or supervisors or their
connected entities had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at any time during the year or at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts other than employment contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into by the Group or existed
during the year.

B2 /AHE D AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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EEREFNREUERBT IR INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

RAFERN » ARRZEFREFWRNER During the year, none of the directors or supervisors of the Company had

NAIEBBFH R e T 2 EBP R aE any interest in any business which compete or may compete with the
= o business of the Company.

EE EFERESTHRAAM&R DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS" AND CHIEF
EEiFMAL EXECUTIVES’ REMUNERATION AND THE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

B  EIEREaTBRAEMERGESHIA The details of directors’, supervisors’ and chief executives’ remuneration
T2 FEBEHN R AR - and the highest paid individuals are set out in note 11 to the consolidated

financial statements.

RRFEAN - 2HABRNRAFHRRTMALTIEE Within two years, all of the five highest paid individuals of the Company

FEo are directors.
BRREABREERE NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS AND SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

RIBE-ZTF+-_A=+—H ARaRESRZ As at 31 December 2020, there were 1671 shareholders recorded in the
I EMBRRAZBAEIGIE  MARRESE - & register of shareholders of the Company and the shareholders other
B EmmTRABUIN RREGIRIEE S & than a director, supervisor or chief executive of the Company, having

B ERPIZE 3361 R T ER AR AIETNRN an interest and short positions in 5% or more of the relevant class of
EmRARBEEMATRESE AR REBENE the issued share capital of the Company as recorded in the register of
BATIRAS % sk A AR A B IAT interests in the shares and short positions required to be kept by the

Company under Section 336 of SFO were as follows:

RAGIRGD T EIER - Long positions in the shares of the Company:

{HERER
BFEESL {h#8BE %
Percentage of Batt
FR5EERnEE the relevant Percentage of
BREE B in %R Number of {3 class of  entire share
Name of Shareholders Class of Shares shares held Capacity share capital capital
BB (RE)BRAR] A& 1,243,616,403% Em#EA A 100.00% 50.10%
Qingling Motors (Group) Domestic shares  1,243,616,403 shares Beneficial owner 100.00% 50.10%

Company Limited

EHRAERRAF Hi% 496,453,654 EmEA A 40.08% 20.00%
Isuzu Motors Limited H shares 496,453,654 shares Beneficial owner 40.08% 20.00%
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Save as disclosed above, the register required to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO showed that the Company had not been notified of any interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as at 31
December 2020.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee (composed of one executive director and
four independent non-executive directors) on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

DIVIDEND POLICY

A dividend policy is adopted by the Company which aims at setting out
the principles to be followed for paying dividends to the shareholders of
the Company. When considering the dividend payment, the Board shall
take into account the factors including but not limited to the Company's
financial results, general business conditions and strategies, and statutory
and regulatory restrictions. There is no assurance that dividends will be
declared or distributed in any particular amount or in any form for each
year or in any year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had continuing connected transactions with
(a) Qingling Group and its subsidiaries EEE 5§54 AR A alChongging
Qingling Casting Company Limited (“CQCC"), EEE K IBEER QA
Chongging Qingling Forging Co. Ltd. (“CQFC"), EEEXEBER AT
Chongging Qingling Axle Co. Ltd. ("CQAC"), EEE B ERFARAR]
Chongging Qingling NHK Seat Co. Ltd. (“CONHK"), EEERERARA
&lChongaing Qingling Plastic Co. Ltd. (“CQPC"), EEEXEIRAR A
Chongging Qingling Aluminium Casting Co. Ltd. (“CQACL"), EEE$%A
HEA&EFHABR A FChongging Qingling Automobile Chassis Parts Co.
Ltd. (“QAC"), EEE =7 PR 2 FChongging Qingling Machinery
Parts Co. Ltd. ("QM"), EEEKRZEAAEABRAE("Qingling Zhuan
Yong”, formerly known as EEE$ 98 FREEHR AT Chongging
Qingling Automobile Manufacture and Assembly Co. Ltd.), EEESA
BHEHEMERR A T("Qingling Parts”), EEEHERITRREER AT
(“Qingling Vehicle Parts Manufacturing”) and EEE & Ea AL B R
A A)("Keyu Auto Parts”), (b) EEE#EEBBR A" Qingling Moulds”), a
sino-joint venture company which is owned as to 50.56% and 49.44% by
the Company and Isuzu respectively and a subsidiary of the Company, (c)
Isuzu, (d) Isuzu Engine, an entity established and jointly controlled by the
Company, Isuzu and Qingling Group, (e) #1585 (EE) AEEERBEE
[R27] Qingling Isuzu (Chongging) Automobile Sales and Service Co.,Ltd
("Qingling Isuzu Sales”), an entity established and jointly controlled by
the Company and Isuzu and (f) A +#E% (ERE) SERMEZEERA
A Isuzu Qingling (Chongqing) Engineering Co., Ltd (“Isuzu Qingling
Engineering”), an associate controlled by Isuzu. Qingling Group and Isuzu
held 50.10% and 20.00% of the equity of the Company respectively as
at 31 December 2020. Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the above parties
are connected persons of the Group. Details of the continuing connected
transactions with the parties are as follows:
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(@)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling Group
and its subsidiaries:

(i

On 26 November 2019, the Company entered into the New
Parts Supply Agreements with Qingling Group (on behalf of
itself and its subsidiaries- Qingling Jijia, Qingling Zhuan Yong,
Qingling Chassis, Qingling Parts and Keyu Parts), CQCC (on
behalf of itself and its subsidiaries-Qingling Vehicle Parts
Manufacturing), CQFC, CQAC, CQNHK, CQPC and CQACL,
respectively, relating to the supply of certain automobile
parts by Qingling Group, CQCC, CQFC, CQAC, CQNHK,
CQPC and CQACL, respectively, to the Company, and the
supply of certain consolidated services by the Company to
CQFC and the lease of certain machineries by the Company
to CQAC. With respect to the automobile parts provided to
the Company, the price is based on actual costs incurred or
reasonable costs (whichever is lower) plus no more than 8%
profit margin determined in the following order: at prices not
higher than market prices; or if no comparable market price,
at prices based on actual costs or reasonable costs (whichever
is lower) incurred plus no more than 8% profit margin, and
in any event, at prices no less favourable than those offered
to independent third parties. The payment shall be made
within one month after receipt of bill. With respect to the
consolidated services provided by the Company to CQFC, the
price is determined based on actual costs incurred plus taxes
payable. With respect to the lease of machineries by the
Company to CQAC, the rental payable is determined based
on normal commercial terms no less favorable than terms
offered by CQAC to independent third parties.
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On 26 November 2019, the Company also entered into the
New Autoparts and Materials Agreement with CQCC, CQFC,
CQACL, CQAC, CQPC, CONHK, QAC, QM, Qingling Zhuan
Yong and Qingling Parts respectively. The Company will
sell to CQCC the scrap metal left over from the Company’s
manufacturing process and the prices shall not be lower than
the market price of scrap metal of same type and the price of
such scrap metal sold by the Company to independent third
parties (if any); the Company will supply to CQNHK, Qingling
Zhuan Yong and Qingling Parts semi-finished auto parts
and the prices of which will be determined based on costs
incurred by the Company plus a profit margin of not exceeding
8%; and the Company will supply to all Qingling Autoparts
Companies (refer to all subsidiaries of Qingling Group in the
abovementioned agreements) crafting materials including
but not limited to gasoline, diesel, cutting fluid, tools and
equipment, and machinery spare parts, which will be sourced
by the Company from suppliers which are independent and
not connected persons to the Company, and the prices of
which will be equivalent to the cost of sourcing such materials
from independent third parties plus no more than 8% profit
margin.

During the year, the amount for the above continuing
connected transactions are as follows:

Sales of automobile parts and others:

with respect to Qingling Group (Note 1): approximately

RMB12,873,000;

with respect to CQCC: approximately RMB21,663,000;

with respect to CQFC: approximately RMB1,920,000;

with respect to CQAC: approximately RMB8,463,000;

with respect to CONHK: approximately RMB9,159,000;

with respect to CQPC: approximately RMB757,000; and

with respect to CQACL: approximately RMB1,403,000.
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Purchases of automobile parts:

with respect to Qingling Group (Note 2): approximately
RMB28,586,000;

with respect to CQCC: approximately RMB29,413,000;
with respect to CQFC: approximately RMB34,381,000;
with respect to CQAC: approximately RMB436,269,000;
with respect to CONHK: approximately RMB65,718,000;
with respect to CQPC: approximately RMB60,372,000; and
with respect to CQACL: approximately RMB9,915,000.

Supply of consolidated services:

With respect to CQFC: approximately RMB1,108,000.

Lease of machineries:

With respect to CQAC: approximately RMB383,000.

Note 1: Including approximately RMB3,086,000, approximately
RMB7,794,000 and approximately RMB1,993,000
representing the sales of parts and raw materials to QM,
Qingling Zhuan Yong and QAC respectively during the
year.

Note 2: Including approximately RMBO, approximately
RMB8,763,000, approximately RMB5,107,000 and
approximately RMB5,192,000 representing the
purchases of automobile parts from Qingling Group, QM,
Qingling Zhuan Yong and QAC respectively during the
year.

B2 /3E MM AR A A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

29



30

EEEWSE

DIRECTORS" REPORT

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

BHREAR-_Z—AFE+—A
T+ ANBEEXREENENBEA
REEEREE EEEKRR
B EEERRBH EERRE
in - EEEKAE ATH&TEH
BN EEEREBEL] TH
EREEEAHRERE WA
RESBAR A RREEA
M ERREE R NIRRT
HRTETEAELERRS @ &
BIBBREMELZBERA T
HBiE8% 2 FHEE  ERHRE
BETNAATEEETARE
SRR B 2 IR AR )58
VEZFREZGERK - REFEE
N ABFBEHEIFINSTY
BARE174,0007T °

KRARRZZE-—NAFE+—A
ZHARBEEREBRKRERS
REMBLR -BRER) R
THERHERE  ATERA
RAMEREEHE THEREK
HEATH  HEER2EREER
HRATHNMmERETE  HERA
ZERNERZEES - RAFE
N AESERHEXSNERY
RAR¥E1,578,697,0007T ©

KRARR-_ZE—hh&E+—A
—tARBHEBERER(BEASG K
REEZ2ENBARRLTERE
IR THEEMAY  RAH
RARABREREE(FHEE2E
WEBARE S RBERAHEANE
E : ERAEEMmIEL25,833.51
FHAK  ERNREMAIEL50,000
FHK - () ETEL920,697F oK
Ryt ER - FBYEIR B SR A AR
ABLELERIGH -« (IHEED
19,880.4F 5 KMl - FBIETE
BEREZHLREMR - (VAR
#910,000F 7 K893 3R ~ (V)X
FLERE - EIEL4,784.28F
Ko RVIINREEERBEER
NRRAIEEL22,507.7F 5 %
Rt REDRNEEEAR
#5,840,0007T * AR¥961,000
7T - AR#923,000T - AR
464,0007T + A R#830,0007T :
B ARMET,029,0007T (A5 4
BR) ©

3R 2020 ANNUAL REPORT

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Qingling Moulds entered into the New Qingling Group
Moulds Supply Agreement with Qingling Group and its
subsidiaries CQCC, CQFC, CQPC, CQACL CQNHK, Isuzu
China Engine and CQAC on 26 November 2019, relating to
the supply of moulds and related products and maintenance
and processing services by Qingling Moulds to the
aforesaid companies. As there are no sufficient comparable
transactions, the price is determined after arm’s length
negotiations between the parties thereto with reference
to reasonable costs incurred, plus a profit margin of not
exceeding 8% and the consideration payable, the terms
offered to Qingling Moulds shall be no less favourable than
terms offered to independent third parties. During the year,
the amount of the continuing connected transaction was
approximately RMB174,000.

The Company entered into a the New Chassis Supply
Agreement with the Qingling Group (on behalf of itself and
its subsidiaries- Qingling Zhuan Yong) on 26 November
2019, relating to the sale of automobile chassis and related
components by the Company to Qingling Group, the price
is determined with reference to the market price of chassis
and related components with a credit period of three to
six months after the sale. During the year, the amount of
the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB1,578,697,000.

The Company entered into the New Warehouse Leasing
Agreement on 26 November 2019 with Qingling Group (for
itself and on behalf of its wholly-owned subsidiary-Keyu
Parts), relating to the lease of (i) warehouse: an open-air
warehouse with an area of approximately 25,833.51 m?, an
indoor warehouse with an area of approximately 50,000 m?,
(i) a parcel of land with an area of approximately 20,697 m? to
be used as site for auto parts test, experiment and operation,
(iii) a parcel of land with an area of approximately 19,880.4 m?
to be used as site for storage of auto parts and raw materials,
(iv) a parcel of land with an area of approximately 10,000
m?, (v) a house used as cultural and educational center with
an area of approximately 4,784.28 m?; and (vi) a parcel of
land located at the east of Chongging Qingling Forging Co.
Ltd. with an area of approximately 22,507.7 m? by Qingling
Group (or its wholly-owned subsidiary-Keyu Parts) to the
Company at a consideration of approximately RMB5,840,000,
RMB961,000, RMB923,000, RMB464,000, RMB830,000; and
RMB1,029,000 (VAT exclusive) respectively per annum.
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For the above item (i), the leasing consideration is determined
after negotiations between the parties, on normal commercial
terms, and (for the Company) at prices not higher than
market prices or no less favourable than those offered by
Qingling Group to independent third parties. For the above
lands mentioned in item (ii) to Item (iv), the considerations
are determined after negotiations between the parties, on
normal commercial terms with reference to the prevailing
market rent and current rent payable by the Group under the
warehouses leasing agreements, and (for the Company) at
prices not higher than market prices or no less favourable
than those offered by Qingling Group to independent third
parties. For the above lands/properties mentioned in item
(v) and Item (vi), the considerations are determined after
negotiations between the parties, on normal commercial
terms, and (for the Company) at prices no less favourable
than those offered by the Company for leasing of comparable
properties from independent third parties. The directors
(including independent non-executive directors) are of the
view that the New Warehouse Leasing Agreement are
fair and reasonable, such transactions will continue to be
conducted on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group, and, such
transactions (including the rents payable by the Company),
are in the interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.

The Company entered into the New Machinery Leasing
Agreement with CQFC on 26 November 2019, relating to the
lease of machineries for processing of casting and forging
parts from CQFC by the Company. The considerations
payable are determined after arm’s length negotiations
between the parties thereto, on normal commercial terms,
and (for the Company) with leasing terms no less favourable
than those offered by CQFC to independent third parties.
During the year, the amount of the continuing connected
transaction was approximately RMB19,974,000.

The Company entered into the New Qingling Group
Equipment Lease with the Qingling Group on 26 November
2019, relating to the lease of equipment, namely the 110kVA
electrical substation and its ancillary facilities from Qingling
Group by the Company. The rent for the Leased Equipment
(Qingling Group) is determined after arm’s length negotiations
between the parties thereto, on normal commercial terms,
and (for the Company) with terms no less favourable than
those offered by Qingling Group to independent third parties.
The Company shall pay the rent for the quarter within one
month after the end of such quarter by crediting a bank
account specified by the Qingling Group. During the year,
the amount of the continuing connected transaction was
approximately RMB875,000.
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The details and amount of the above connected transactions with
Qingling Group and its subsidiaries during the year are set out in
note 35(i) to the consolidated financial statements.

Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling Moulds:

On 26 November 2019, the Company and Qingling Moulds entered
into the following agreements:

(i

(ii)

The New Qingling Moulds Supply Agreement, relating to the
supply of moulds and related products and maintenance and
processing services by Qingling Moulds to the Company, the
supply of raw materials, processing services and consolidated
services by the Company to Qingling Moulds including but
not limited to water, electricity and gas supply services,
equipment repair and maintenance services, medical and
hygiene services and the Three Warranties. The price is
determined on normal commercial terms, or if there are no
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they are
on normal commercial terms, on terms fair and reasonable to
the Company.

During the year, the purchase amount of the continuing
connected transaction was approximately RMB19,643,000,
the sales amount was approximately RMB4,343,000 and the
consolidated services income was RMB855,000.

The New Qingling Moulds Lease, relating to the lease of
a parcel of land with an area of 7,420 m? on the Land from
the Company to be used for the production of Qingling
Moulds, and the effective period is from 1 January 2020 to
31 December 2022. The rent for the Land (Qingling Moulds)
is determined with reference to the prevailing market rent
and the rent paid by Qingling Moulds under the Qingling
Moulds Lease, after arm’s length negotiations between the
parties thereto and on normal commercial terms, and (for the
Company) with terms no less favourable than those offered
by the Company to independent third parties. The monthly
rent under the New Qingling Moulds Lease is RMB3,587.35
(VAT exclusive) per month. During the year, the amount of
the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB43,000.
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(c)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Isuzu:

(i)

(ii)

(iff)

On 26 November 2019, the Company entered into the New
Isuzu Supply Agreement with Isuzu whereby Isuzu provides
the Company with certain automobile parts produced by
Isuzu and which are required in the production processes.
As there are no sufficient comparable transactions, the price
is determined with reference to actual or reasonable costs
(whichever is lower) incurred plus a profit margin of not
more than 10%, and the payment shall be made at the time
of delivery. During the year, the amount of the continuing
connected transaction was approximately RMB288,970,000.

On 26 November 2019, the Company entered into the
New Company Supply Agreement with Isuzu whereby the
Company provides Isuzu and/or its wholly-owned subsidiaries
with complete vehicle, set of components and other
automobile parts. As there are no sufficient comparable
transactions, the price is determined in accordance with
actual or reasonable costs (whichever is lower) incurred
plus a profit margin of not more than 10%, and the payment
shall be made within 40 days after delivery. During the year,
the amount of the continuing connected transaction was
approximately RMB3,205,000.

During the year, the Company continued the transactions
under the technology transfer agreements and technology
licensing agreements with Isuzu entered on 20 February
2000, 23 May 2008, 21 December 2012, 27 April 2016, 26
March 2014 and 23 June 2016 for the transfer of technology
and provision of technical know-how and the permission to
use the trademark of Isuzu by Isuzu to the Company for the
production and sales of F series Chassis and related parts and
components, 700P3X series vehicles and related parts and
components, GXR/GXZ vehicles, FXZ vehicles, FYH vehicles,
CYH vehicles, CYZ vehicles and EXR/EXZ vehicles.

The price is set at an initial fee (among which, the initial fee
for F series Chassis and 700P3X series vehicles and related
parts and components, GXR/GXZ vehicles, FXZ vehicles, FYH
vehicles, has already been fully paid by the Company to Isuzu),
plus royalties, which is determined with reference to the
price of the parts and components manufactured and sold by
the Company pursuant to the agreement, staff training fees
and technical assistance fees.
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Also, the Company and Isuzu made the Trademark Licensing
Agreement on 26 March 2014. Isuzu continues to grant the
Company a non-transferable right to use the trademarks and
emblems of Isuzu, “ISUZU" and “F+%£", in the production
and sale of the 600P, 100P and TF/UC series vehicles
produced by the Company. And the License fee for each
series of vehicle is as follows: JPY2,000 for each 600P series
vehicle sold, JPY1,500 for each 100P series vehicle sold and
JPY1,500 for each TF/UC series vehicle sold.

In addition, the Company entered into 3XCAB Agreement
with Isuzu on 23 June 2021, pursuant to which, Isuzu will
continue to provide technology and technical know-how, staff
training and technical assistance in relation to the Company's
production of driving cabs as defined under relevant
agreement in respect of the licensed vehicles as defined
under the agreement on production and sale and permit the
Company to use the trademark and emblem of [ISUZU].

During the year, the amount incurred for the continuing
connected transaction under the technology transfer
agreements, technology licensing agreements and Trademark
Licensing Agreement was approximately RMB20,812,000.

PR AFERNERA TR BAERS The details and amount of the above connected transactions with
HEREBNHENEEMEREW T Isuzu during the year are set out in note 35(ii) to the consolidated
35(ii) © financial statements.
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Significant continuing connected transactions with Isuzu China
Engine:

On 26 November 2019, the Company and Isuzu China Engine
entered into the following agreements:

(i) The New Supply Agreement, relating to the provision of
parts of engines and raw materials by the Company to Isuzu
China Engine, whereas Isuzu China Engine provides engines
and their parts to the Company. The agreement shall be
effective from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022 and
may be renewed at expiration with the consent of the Parties
and with the consent of the Stock Exchange and/or the
approval of the Shareholders in accordance with the Listing
Rules, if necessary. As there are no sufficient comparable
transactions, the selling price of the products to be supplied/
purchased shall be the actual costs of the supplying party
plus a profit margin of not exceeding 10%. Such premium
shall be finalised by both parties on the basis that it is fair and
reasonable to both parties. Payment for the previous month
shall be made to the supplier by the end of each month.
During the year, the purchase amount of the continuing
connected transaction was approximately RMB1,179,322,000
and the selling amount was approximately RMB633,451,000.

(i)~ The New Consolidated Services Agreement, relating to the
provision of certain services (including services such as water,
electricity and gas supply, transportation, equipment repair
and maintenance, medical and hygiene and three warranties)
by the Company to Isuzu China Engine. The agreement shall
be effective from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022. The
actual price for the services to be provided by the Company
under the New Consolidated Services Agreement or any
further individual service contract shall be the actual costs of
the Company plus taxes payable. During the year, the amount
of the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB1,195,000.
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(iii)

(iv)

The New Equipment Lease, relating to the lease of leased
equipment by the Company to Isuzu China Engine. The
agreement shall be effective from 1 January 2020 to
31 December 2022. The rent for the Lease Equipment
(Isuzu China Engine) is determined on normal commercial
terms through arm’s length negotiations between the
parties thereto as well as (for the Company) on terms no
less favourable than those offered by the Company to
independent third parties, with reference to the market value
of Lease Equipment (Isuzu China Engine). During the year,
the amount of the continuing connected transaction was
approximately RMB42,210,000.

The New Factory Lease, relating to the lease of land
and factory by the Company to Isuzu China Engine. The
agreement shall be effective from 1 January 2020 to
31 December 2022. The monthly rent is approximately
RMB351,000 (VAT exclusive). The rents for the Lease
Land and the Factory Premises are determined on normal
commercial terms through arm’s length negotiations
between the parties thereto as well as (for the Company) on
terms no less favourable than those offered by the Company
to independent third parties. During the year, the amount
of the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB4,210,000.

The details and amount of the above connected transactions with

Isuzu China Engine during the year are also set out in note 35(iii) to

the consolidated financial statements.
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Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling Isuzu
Sales:

On 26 November 2019, the Company and Qingling Isuzu Sales
entered into the following agreements:

(i) The New Sales JV Lease, relating to the lease of the Sales
JV Leased Land and Sales JV Premises by the Company to
Qingling Isuzu Sales. The lease agreement shall be effective
from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022. The rent for
the Sales JV Leased Land and the Sales JV Premises is
determined on normal commercial terms through arm’s
length negotiations between the parties thereto as well as
(for the Company) on terms no less favourable than those
offered by the Company to independent third parties. The
monthly rent is approximately RMB130,000. During the year,
the amount of the continuing connected transaction was
approximately RMB1,555,000.

(i) ~ The New Sales JV Supply Agreement, relating to the
provision of automobiles and parts by the Company to
Qingling Isuzu Sales. The agreement shall be effective
from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022 and may be
renewed at expiration with the consent of the Parties and
with the consent of the Stock Exchange and/or the approval
of the Shareholders in accordance with the Listing Rules, if
necessary. The selling prices of the automobiles or their parts
to be supplied/purchased under other related terms in any
other specific agreement shall not be lower than the market
prices of the automobiles or their parts and shall not be lower
than the prices offered to independent third parties. If there
are no comparable market prices, prices shall be based on
actual costs or reasonable costs (whichever is lower) incurred
plus a profit margin of not more than 8%. During the year,
the amount of the continuing connected transaction was
approximately RMB15,498,000.

The details and amounts of the above connected transactions with
Qingling Isuzu Sales during the year are set out in note 35(iv) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Continuing connected transactions with Isuzu Qingling Engineering:

On 26 November 2019, the Company and Isuzu Qingling
Engineering entered into the following agreements:

(i) The New Consolidated Services Agreement (Isuzu Qingling
Engineering), relating to the provision of certain services
(including services such as water, electricity and gas supply,
vehicle rental, telecommunication, network cable lease and
other support) by the Company to Isuzu Qingling Engineering.
The agreement shall be effective from 1 January 2020 to
31 December 2022. The price of the service to be provided
by the Company under the New Consolidated Services
Agreement (Isuzu Qingling Engineering) or any further
individual service contract is determined at the actual costs of
the Company plus taxes payable. During the year, the amount
of the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB185,000.

The details and amount of the above connected transaction with Isuzu
Qingling Engineering during the year are also set out in note 35(v) to
the consolidated financial statements.

Other Continuing Connected Transactions:

The Company, Isuzu China Engine, Isuzu Qingling Engineering
entered into the New Testing Agreement on 26 November 2019,
relating to the provision of testing services (including but not limited
to smoking tests, external property tests and combustion analysis
tests for full-loading and steady rolling engines; temperature
resistance tests for vehicles; and endurance tests and vibration
tests for parts) by the Company to Isuzu China Engine and Isuzu
Qingling Engineering. The agreement shall be effective from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2022. Prices for services provided
shall not be less than the market prices. If there are no comparable
market prices, prices shall be determined based on the actual or
reasonable costs incurred (whichever is lower) plus a profit margin
of not more than 8%. During the year, the Company did not provide
the testing services to Isuzu China Engine and Isuzu Qingling
Engineering.

The details and amounts of the above connected transactions with
Isuzu China Engine during the year are also set out in note 35(iii) to
the consolidated financial statements.



WMEBBHARE R —F=A
Z+NB - ARBIEA TR EIEE
Rl - EFBHNARRBHA
T A+ NHOBEBER
SREN o

RNARGHAMCEBRETESHMA
CHHNEBERREERFE30005
[T RENFESVSEIENIINNER
R R2EBEBSHARAESHMIT
153 F 7405 BN BB _ LR BIFT i
BRE B H AT R | ITEZ T
£ 1RIE R A 14A B61% - D
BARRNESSEH NEHERLET
B E A EBE MR BAER it
WENESEBERS(RELTRIE
14A76(1)EERE# R 2 ZEHTA KK
R ERZZEIN -

1. YWAREEHBEITAEETSHAE

2. BFRBAAKERHERIIRHE
MRZZME  EREXNEARE
RIRAEE 2 EEBERMAETT

3. ERERNTERARBEERS
BT« &

4. BEARARIEZFELR -

RRRENIFAITESHER  ARERS
TIARRRRBAEERBPIL - B—RE
R EEZ R WIRBERRS
Z R GTETT  RREAFEE - B
MARRBIRRAEEENE -

REX 5

(i)

ARAEIA2016F4 27 B R 859 7
FA1 T OCYHBRITRF AT 5% ¢+ (i)CYZHE,
MrEF A e+ Me(iii) EXR/EXZ AT 7]
W ARERATHRBEARERER
fir RifiiE e« 8 THEII R
ANHFAARARMER R+ 2 BIERIE
AR IEBE R E R R B A E M IEE)
CYH : (ilCYZ : K (ii)EXR/EXZ/RE

EEEHRE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

After the end of the Reporting Period, on 26 March 2021, the
Company entered into Trademark Licensing Agreement with
Isuzu, details of which are set out in the continuing connected
transactions announcement of the Company dated 26 March 2021.

The Company's auditor was engaged to conduct audit work in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Pursuant to the Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules, the auditor has issued a letter to the Board of the
Company that nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the continuing connected transactions disclosed by
the Group (except those de minimis transactions which are fully
exempted pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules):

1. have not been approved by the listed issuer’s board of
directors;

2. for transactions involving the provision of goods or services
by the Group, were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

3. were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the agreements of the relevant transactions; and

4. have exceeded the annual caps set by the Company.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company confirm
that the transactions have been entered into by the Company in the
ordinary and usual course of its business, on normal commercial
terms or better and in accordance with the agreement governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(i)

On 27 April 2016, the Company and Isuzu entered into (i) the CYH
Technology Licence Agreement; (ii) the CYZ Technology Licence
Agreement; and (iii) the EXR/EXZ Technology Licence Agreement,
respectively, in relation to the provision of technology and technical
know-how, staff training and technical assistance and the licence
to use the trademark and the emblem of Isuzu by Isuzu to the
Company for the production and sale of (i) CYH; (i) CYZ; and (iii)
EXR/EXZ vehicles in the PRC on an non-exclusive basis.
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For the CYH Technology Licence Agreement, an initial fee of
JPY700,000,000 is payable by the Company to Isuzu in the
following manner: (i) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within
30 days from the date of approval granted by the relevant PRC
authorities; (i) 10% of the initial fee for each of the sample vehicles
CYH®, CYH®, CYH® and CYH® and a total of 40% of the initial
fee shall be payable within 30 days from the date of completion
of the provision of each CYH vehicles confirmed in writing by both
the Company and Isuzu; and (iii) 5% of the initial fee for each of the
sample vehicles CYH®, CYH®, CYH® and CYH® and a total of
20% of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days from the date
of the bulk production of each CYH vehicles confirmed in writing by
both the Company and Isuzu.

For the CYZ Technology Licence Agreement, an initial fee of
JPY700,000,000 is payable by the Company to Isuzu in the
following manner: (i) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within
30 days from the date of approval granted by the relevant PRC
authorities; (ii) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days
from the date of completion of the provision of technical know-
how confirmed in writing by both the Company and Isuzu; and (iii)
20% of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days from the date
of the bulk production of the CYZ vehicles confirmed in writing by
both the Company and Isuzu.
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For the EXR/EXZ Technology Licence Agreement, an initial fee
of JPY700,000,000 is payable by the Company to Isuzu in the
following manner: (i) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within
30 days from the date of approval granted by the relevant PRC
authorities; (ii) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days
from the date of completion of the provision of technical know-how
confirmed in writing by both the Company and Isuzu; and (iii) 20%
of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days from the date of
the bulk production of the EXR/EXZ vehicles confirmed in writing by
both the Company and Isuzu.

The Company will also have to pay royalties to Isuzu in relation
to the sale of each CYH, CYZ and EXR/EXZ vehicles, which are
calculated at 3% of the on-site added value of each vehicle.

In 2018, the Company paid royalties of JPY 245,000,000, JPY
420,000,000 and JPY420,000,000 to Isuzu for the sale of CYH, CYZ
and EXR/EXZ vehicles. JPY175,000,000 was not paid in the current
period because the CYH agreement is no longer being developed.
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(i)

On 4 July 2018, the Company and Isuzu entered into (i) VC66(CYH)
National VIb Technology Development Agreement; (ii) VC66(CYZ)
National VIb Technology Development Agreement; and (iii)
VCB6(EXR/EXZ) National VIb Technology Development Agreement,
respectively. The Company engaged Isuzu to carry out design
change related development for the relevant (i)VC61(CYH), (ii)
VC61(CYZ) and (iii)VCB1(EXR/EXZ) basic vehicles so as to allow
equipping such vehicles with the sample engine for VC66 series
vehicles and ensure compliance with the relevant National
VIb emission regulations and other regulations required by
certifications on model (announcement), oil consumption, safety
and CCC, compliance with the same CAN (Control Area Network)
communication standard as used for the basic vehicles, and to
provide technical guidance or study services. Isuzu shall submit the
Company with the relevant technical information together with a
set of documents and electronic data recording the details of such
technical information in accordance with the agreement. The term
of the agreement is from 28 June 2017 to the date of completion
of payment of consideration under the agreement.

In respect of the VC66 (CYH) National VIb Technology Development
Agreement, the Company shall pay the consideration to Isuzu in the
following way: (a) Payment of JPY 125,356,000 within 30 days from
the date of entering into of the VC66(CYH) National VIb Technology
Development Agreement; (b) Payment of JPY 125,356,000 within 30
days upon completion of Isuzu’s provision of relevant information
on development technology to the Company as confirmed by both
parties in writing; (c) Payment of JPY62,678,000 within 30 days
from the date of commencement of manufacturing and assembling
vehicles using the relevant information on development technology.

In respect of the VC66 (CYZ) National VIb Technology Development
Agreement, the Company shall pay the consideration to Isuzu in the
following way: (a) Payment of JPY125,356,000 within 30 days from
the date of entering into of the VC66(CYZ) National VIb Technology
Development Agreement; (b) Payment of JPY 125,356,000 within 30
days upon completion of Isuzu’s provision of relevant information
on development technology to the Company as confirmed by both
parties in writing; (c) Payment of JPY62,678,000 within 30 days
from the date of commencement of manufacturing and assembling
vehicles using the relevant information on development technology.

In respect of the VC66(EXR/EXZ) National VIb Technology
Development Agreement, the Company shall pay the consideration
to Isuzu in the following way: (a) Payment of JPY257,284,000
within 30 days from the date of entering into of the VC66(EXR/EXZ)
National VIb Technology Development Agreement; (b) Payment
of JPY257,284,000 within 30 days upon completion of Isuzu's
provision of relevant information on development technology to the
Company as confirmed by both parties in writing; (c) Payment of
JPY128,642,000 within 30 days from the date of commencement
of manufacturing and assembling vehicles using the relevant
information on development technology.
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The consideration payable under the above agreements is
determined based on the technical advancement and market
prospect of products and with reference to the consideration under
the technology licence agreements of other companies in the
industry. The above payments shall be made by the Company to
Isuzu in JPY after deduction of taxes payable by Isuzu to the PRC
government.

In 2018, the Company paid JPY 125,356,000, JPY125,356,000 and
JPY257,284,000 to Isuzu in respect of (i) VC66(CYH) National VIb
Technology Development Agreement : (ii) VC66(CYZ) National
VIb Technology Development Agreement; and (iii) VC66(EXR/EXZ)
National Vlb Technology Development Agreement, respectively,
and no payment in current period about the above three contracts.

For the 700P3X (with 4JZ1 150 horsepower National Vib)
Technology Development Agreement, an initial fee of
JPY580,370,000 is payable by the Company to Isuzu in the
following manners: (i) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within
30 days from the date of approval granted by the relevant PRC
authorities; (ii) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days
from the date of completion of the provision of technical know-
how confirmed in writing by both the Company and Isuzu; and (iii)
20% of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days from the date
of the bulk production of the 700P vehicles confirmed in writing by
both the Company and Isuzu. The entity pays JPY232,148,000 in
2019, which was not paid in the current period.

The details and amounts of the connected transaction with Isuzu
during the year are also set out in note 35(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements.

On 18 September 2018, the Company convened a Board meeting
at which the proposal regarding the Merger was considered and
approved. Isuzu China Engine and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts entered
into the Merger Agreement on 2 October 2018 (after trading hours),
pursuant to which, Isuzu China Engine will absorb and merge
with Isuzu Qingling Autoparts, and Isuzu China Engine will be the
surviving company upon completion of the Merger and assume all
the assets, liabilities, operations, qualifications, personnel, contracts
and all other rights and obligations of Isuzu Qingling Autoparts
and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts will be dissolved and deregistered.
Further, on 2 October 2018 (after trading hours), the Company,
Qingling Group and Isuzu also entered into (i) the JV Agreement
to set out their respective rights and obligations in Isuzu China
Engine in accordance with the Merger; and (ii) the Priority Supply
Memorandum to set out the agreement in relation to the priority
supply of goods by Isuzu China Engine to the Company.
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The proportion of the capital contribution by the Company, Qingling
Group and Isuzu to Isuzu China Engine upon completion of the
Merger are determined with reference to their respective capital
contribution to Isuzu China Engine and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts
before the Merger and the net asset values of Isuzu China Engine
and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts as valued by the Independent
Valuer with 31 December 2017 as the valuation benchmark date.
According to the Isuzu China Engine Valuation Report and the
Isuzu Qingling Autoparts Valuation Report, the total interests of
shareholders of Isuzu China Engine and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts
as at 31 December 2017 amounted to RMB884,919,700 and
RMB1,404,035,500, respectively. The amount and proportion of
their respective capital contribution are set out in the table below:

HE&H tHR LA
BREE Amount of capital Proportion of
Name of shareholder contribution capital contribution
€]
(USD)
B+ Isuzu 164,107,986 50.61%
EREH Qingling Group 97,472,556 30.06%
¥IN/NE The Company 62,679,458 19.33%
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The Existing Continuing Connected Transactions entered into
between the Group with Isuzu China Engine and Isuzu Qingling
Autoparts include the followings:

(@) the New Supply Agreement dated 26 November 2019
entered into between the Company and Isuzu China Engine
relating to the provision of parts of engines and raw materials
by the Company to Isuzu China Engine, and the provision
of engines and their parts by Isuzu China Engine to the
Company;

(b)  the New Equipment Lease dated 26 November 2019 entered
into between the Company and Isuzu China Engine relating
to the leasing of the Leased Equipment by the Company to
Isuzu China Engine;

(c)  the New Factory Lease dated 26 November 2019 entered
into between the Company and Isuzu China Engine relating
to the leasing of the Leased Land and the Factory Premises
by the Company to Isuzu China Engine;
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(d) the New Consolidated Services Agreement dated 26
November 2019 entered into between the Company and Isuzu
China Engine relating to the provision of certain services by
the Company to Isuzu China Engine; and

(e) the New Testing Agreement dated 26 November 2019
entered into between the Company and, among others, Isuzu
China Engine and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts relating to the
provision of certain testing services by the Company to Isuzu
China Engine.

Following the conclusion of the Merger, Isuzu China Engine, being
the surviving company, would assume all the assets, liabilities,
operations, qualification, personnel, contracts and all other rights
and obligations of Isuzu Qingling Autoparts, all the terms under
the aforesaid agreements, therefore, will remain unchanged,
except that the name of the party to an agreement will be changed
from Isuzu Qingling Autoparts to Isuzu China Engine in certain
circumstances (as appropriate), and Isuzu China Engine will
continue to proceed with the continuing connected transactions
contemplated thereunder.

The information of the related party transactions entered into by
the Group is set out in note 35(i) to (vi) to the consolidated financial
statements. Those related party transactions also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and the Board confirms
that the Company has complied with the requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for those transactions.

After the end of the Reporting Period, on 26 March 2021, the
Company entered into an agreement with Qingling Zhuan Yong
in relation to 2015 Litigation, details of which are set out in the
connected transaction announcement of the Company dated 26
March 2021 and note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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FIVE LARGEST SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the purchases from five largest
suppliers accounted for 14.87% of the total purchases of the Group.
The purchases from the largest supplier accounted for 4.77% of the
total purchases. Qingling Group and its subsidiaries, a joint venture of
the Company and a Japanese trading company, through which Isuzu
channels its supply of parts and components to the Group, are included
in the five largest suppliers of the Group. Details of transactions with
Qingling Group and its subsidiaries and with Isuzu are set out in the
section “Connected Transactions” above. Other than disclosed above,
the Company's directors and supervisors, their associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital), did not have any interests in the Group's
five largest suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2020. For the year
ended 31 December 2020, Qingling Group was the largest customer. The
aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers (except
Qingling Group) were less than 14.05% of the Group's total sales.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS
OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company and its subsidiaries did not issue or grant any convertible
securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the year.

There were no outstanding or conversion of convertible securities,
options, warrants or similar rights issued or granted by the Company or
its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity during the year.

DESIGNATED DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not hold any designated deposits
or any time deposits that were overdue but could not be collected upon
maturity.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, none of the Company or its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company'’s listed securities.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 2,980 employees (2019: 3,025
employees). During the year, no material change was noted for the
number of employees or their remuneration policy. The Group actively
formulated and implemented various training to its staff of all levels.

STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the Group's staff retirement benefits scheme are set out in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Based on specific enquires to all directors and
supervisors, the Company confirms that all directors and supervisors
have complied with the requirements of the Model Code during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Articles
of Association.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information on the Company’s corporate governance practices is set
out in the “Corporate Governance Report” from pages 49 to 66.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors, there is sufficient public float as
not less than 25% of the Company's issued shares are held by the public
throughout the year 2020.
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REVIEW OF ACCOUNTS

The audit committee has reviewed with the management and auditors
of the Company the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed auditing, internal controls and financial reporting
matters including the review of the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting for 2021
to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants
LLP Chongging Branch and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the
Company.

By order of the Board
LUO Yuguang
CHAIRMAN

Chongging, the PRC
26 March 2021
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The Company puts high emphasis on and endeavors to maintain a
high standard of corporate governance. The Board believes that good
corporate governance practices are important to promote investors’
confidence and protect the interest of our shareholders. The Company
attaches importance to our staff, our code of conduct and our corporate
policies and standards, which together form the basis of our corporate
governance practices. The Board has adopted sound corporate
governance and disclosure practices, and is committed to continuously
improving those practices and cultivating an ethical corporate culture.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has complied
with the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules except for the deviation from code
provision A.1.8 of the Corporate Governance Code as stated below.

Under code provision A.1.8 of the Corporate Governance Code, an issuer
should arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its directors. With regular, timely and effective communications
among the directors and the management of the Group, the management
of the Group believes that all potential claims and legal actions against the
directors of the Company can be handled effectively, and the possibility
of actual litigation against the directors of the Company is relatively low.
On 1 August 2020, the Company has made insurance arrangement and
complied with code provision A.1.8..

THE BOARD

Members of the Board are accountable to the shareholders for the
success and sustainable development of the Company. The Board
is responsible for the management of all the important issues of
the Company, including the duties of convening general meetings,
implementing the resolutions passed at the general meetings,
determining the operating strategies and investment proposals of the
Company, formulating the plans of the Company for annual financial
budgets and final accounts, establishing and approving the internal control
and risk management systems and monitoring the performance of the
members of the senior management. The directors shall make objective
decisions for the interests of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted board diversity policy in September 2013 to comply
with the new code provisions in relation to board diversity effective from
September 2013.

When determining the composition of the Board, the Company shall
take into account our business operations and select candidates with
appropriate and necessary skills and experience and those who can
express their views in a multi-angle perspective. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.
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Non-executive

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates wiill bring to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board of the Company is comprised of
11 members, including 7 executive directors and 4 independent non-
executive directors. Independent non-executive directors account for
36.4% of the number of Board members.

An analysis of the Board based on a scope of diversity perspective is set
forth below:

70-79

11-20

FHRAAR RIEEH
Age Group Length of Service

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board of the Company is
comprised of 11 Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LUO Yuguang (Chairman)

Mr. HAYASHI Shuichi (Vice Chairman and General Manager)
Mr. MAEGAKI Keiichiro

Mr. ADACHI Katsumi

Mr. LI Juxing

Mr. XU Song

Mr. LI Xiaodong
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LONG Tao

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang
Mr. LIU Tianni

Mr. LIU Erh Fei

Biographical particulars of the Directors are set out in the section headed
"“Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management”
in this annual report.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, all the Directors,
including independent non-executive Directors, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years, and their re-
election is subject to a vote of the Shareholders.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
each of the existing independent non-executive Directors in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with
the Listing Rules.

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION OF THE
BOARD

The Board determines the overall strategies of the Company, and
monitors the performance of the senior management and the related
risks and control systems so as to achieve the development objectives
of the Company. Day-to-day management of the Company is delegated
to the executive Directors and the senior management, who are required
to report back to the Board. All the members of the Board have separate
and independent access to the senior management, and are provided
with full and timely information about the conduct of the business
and development of the Company, including monthly reports and
recommendations on significant matters.

The Board has delegated some of its functions to the committees under

the Board, and will seek independent and professional advices from them
in respect of related matters.
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EFgTERHESE BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE
EETgTHRTEERITEAD ﬂﬁ’]ﬁﬂk&%i The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
RIE - WEFIARKEKEE - RZZT_FF + AR performance of the Company and to discuss future strategy. In 2020, the
:Jﬁﬁfﬁ TIOXREZEEE ' NIASESR Company held 10 Board meetings, and the attendance record of each
== _2¢ﬁf§$225§5@ﬁ}%—%3ﬁ : Director at the board meetings in 2020 is set out below:

HeHESE REARHESE
B= BERH BRRB(HE)
Attendance in Person/ Attendance by Proxy/
Directors Number of Meetings Number of Meetings (Note)
BITES
Executive Directors
BFNAEE(EFR) 10/10 0/0
Mr. LUO Yuguang (Chairman)
ME— i (B EFR RATAHE) 10/10 0/0
Mr. HAYASHI Shuichi (Vice Chairman and General Manager)
AEE—R %A 9/9 1N
Mr. MAEGAKI Keiichiro
FEse 2o 6/6 4/4
Mr. ADACHI Katsumi
FEELAE 77 3/3
Mr. LI Juxing
TRIASEE 10/10 0/0
Mr. XU Song
FREE 10/10 0/0
Mr. LI Xiaodong
BIUAFRTESE
Independent Non-executive Directors
BEEE 10/10 0/0
Mr. LONG Tao
RNIAE 6/6 4/4
Mr. SONG Xiaojiang
2| = REE 10/10 0/0
Mr. LIU Erh Fei
BIR(REE 10/10 0/0
Mr. LIU Tianni
Kiit © BEARATNRARERE BTG & Note: Pursuant to Article 103 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
ERAWTEELEEESES SR  IUEEE where a Director is unable to attend the board meetings due to certain
MEMEERALEESEEH - cause, he may in writing appoint other Director to attend the board

meetings on his/her behalf.
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At the board meetings, the Board reviewed significant matters including
the Company’s annual and interim financial statements, annual budget,
proposals for final and interim dividends, annual report and interim report.
At least 14 days’ notice is given to all directors for all regular board
meetings and all directors are given the opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda. The agenda and board papers for each meeting
are sent to all directors at least 3 days in advance of every regular board
meeting. All minutes of the board meetings are kept by the company
secretary and are available to all directors for inspection.

There is no material financial, business, family, or other relationship
between any two members of the Board.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LEI Bin and Mr. TUNG Tat Chiu Michael were appointed as company
secretaries for PRC and Hong Kong affairs respectively on 30 May 2019
and 28 April 1994. Mr. LEI Bin is a full-time employee of the Company,
and works as a chief financial officer of the Company. He is familiar with
the daily routine of the Company.

Mr. TUNG Tat Chiu Michael is a practicing lawyer in Hong Kong and
the senior partner of Tung & Co., the Hong Kong legal adviser of the
Company, and a China Appointed Attesting officer. He holds a B.A.
degree in law and accounting from the University of Manchester, the
United Kingdom. He has over 20 years of experience as a practicing
lawyer in Hong Kong. Mr. TUNG is also the company secretary of a
number of companies listed in Hong Kong. Although Mr. TUNG is not an
employee of the Company, he has been appointed by the Board to advise
on legal and governance-related issues. The primary corporate contact
person of the Company is Mr. LEI Bin, the company secretary for the
PRC affairs.

As confirmed respectively by Mr. LEI Bin and Mr. TUNG Tat Chiu

Michael, they had taken the relevant professional trainings for no less
than 15 hours during the year of 2020.
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CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

Mr. LUO Yuguang and Mr. HAYASHI Shuichi hold the positions of
Chairman of the Board and General Manager respectively, which are two
clearly separate positions.

The Chairman is responsible for leading, and overseeing the operations of
the Board, effectively planning the board meetings and ensuring that the
Board is acting in the best interests of the Company. The Chairman shall
proactively encourage directors to fully participate in the Board's affairs
and make contribution to the functions of the Board. The Board, under
the Chairman’s leadership, has adopted good corporate governance
practices and procedures and has taken appropriate steps to maintain
effective communication with the shareholders.

The General Manager is responsible for managing the business of the
Company, as well as formulating and implementing the Company's
policies and is answerable to the Board in relation to the overall
management of the Company. The General Manager of the Company
works in close association with other executive directors and the
administration team of each core business division, ensuring the funding
requirements of the business of the Company are sufficiently met and
at the same time closely monitors the operation and financial results of
the Company according to business plans and budgets, and advises the
Board on matters in relation to the Company’s development. The General
Manager of the Company is required to keep close communication
with the Chairman and all directors to keep them fully informed of all
substantive matters relating to the Company's business development,
and is also responsible for building and maintaining a highly efficient
administrative support team to support him to discharge the assigned
duties in this position.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company's operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities
under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year, directors
are provided with monthly updates on the Company's performance,
position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each director
to discharge their duties. In addition, all directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company updates directors on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
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RESRHEMNGLE  ESHE-T-TF 1= According to the records provided by the directors, a summary of the
A=+—HIFEEZFIOBMEBHOT : trainings received by the directors for the year ended 31 December 2020
is as follows:

E= o1l o

Directors Types of Training

BiTES

Executive Directors

BFREE(EFR) AB,C

Mr. LUO Yuguang (Chairman)

ME— L& (FIEF R RABICFE) AC

Mr. HAYASHI Shuichi (Vice Chairman and General Manager)

BIEE—BRE A C

Mr. MAEGAKI Keiichiro

Pl 2 A C

Mr. ADACHI Katsumi

FEEKHE AC

Mr. LI Juxing

RINSEE C

Mr. XU Song

ZNREE C

Mr. LI Xiaodong

BIAFRTESE

Independent Non-executive Directors

BEELLE AC

Mr. LONG Tao

RANT A AC

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang

B =REE AC

Mr. LIU Erh Fei

BRI E AC

Mr. LIU Tianni

Hiat - Notes:

A. HEENE R LT R KRB A.  Attending briefing sessions and/or seminars and/or forums.

B. E?’ﬁ'f\\ Y/ e, il L RRE B.  Making speeches at briefing sessions and/or seminars and/or forums.

C. FPFIMARMRE . —MXK% BEFBE LD C.  Reading seminar materials or magazines and updates relating to
HAEMEREERERMERNAFNE economy, general business, directors’ responsibilities and the
ME A RETER - Listing Rules or the latest development of other applicable regulatory

requirements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Three committees have been set up by the Board, namely, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Audit Committee. The Board is responsible for discharging corporate
governance functions as set forth in the Corporate Governance Code.
Sufficient resources are provided to enable the board committees to
undertake their specific roles.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established its nomination committee on 26 March 2012
with the terms of reference. The nomination committee is comprised of
four independent non-executive Directors (namely Mr. LONG Tao, Mr.
SONG Xiaojiang, Mr. LIU Tianni and Mr. LIU Erh Fei) and one executive
director (namely Mr. LUO Yuguang). Mr. LUO Yuguang, an executive
Director, serves as the chairman of the nomination committee, and
is responsible for the nomination of the Directors. The committee is
delegated by the Board to formulate the policies for the nomination of
Directors and establish the procedures for the nomination of Directors
and the standards for the selection and recommendation of Directors. It is
also responsible for the review of the structure, size and composition of
the Board and the assessment of the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors. Directors shall be elected at the shareholders’
general meeting for a term of three years. Upon expiry of the term, a
Director shall be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, all Directors are
appointed for a specific term.

The nomination committee held one meeting in 2020. It reviewed
the structure, number and composition of the Board, assessed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors, and made
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors.
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Members

The attendance record of the members of the nomination committee at
the meetings held in 2020 is set out below:

HEE FRAB

Attendance/Number of Meetings

BITESE
Executive Director
BFENEE

Mr. LUO Yuguang

WIERTESE

Independent Non-executive Directors
b

Mr. LONG Tao

RNIHEE

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang

B Rt

Mr. LIU Erh Fei

BIXREE

Mr. LIU Tianni

REZBEHHN LAEARHEREENHK
% ERBEEFEXNEZTICBRNORE
BBTFREB(BREEARKEA - BRIEAMN
REASBESINNTS L BEZNESENES
ANE - EHERZABERENFAER  RBE2Z
Bl a s ey ETERNE - FHERTR
SEEEBE BEERRET  AELR K
BE - BYM - EBEAARFRRKERRE
EREHN LR RENETRERBE - )
REFENRFEBSTHE - FHETRIE
REZBENZERRFEEENESSEL
HBER -

FHERE

AARER BB RFOA - +HRILT H
ZEg - FHEEEHARTEAELIFY
TEEDRREBEE - RIVLELE - 21—
REAEERFRERLE) R —BRATEZET K
FTEEK - FMEE ST FHR/IVIELEN
£

mn

il
A
mn

mn

After discussing and understanding the demand for filling the vacancy for
directorship of the Company while balancing the board diversity policy,
the nomination committee identifies appropriate candidates for directors
through various channels (including in the Group, through the nomination
of shareholders and in the market out of the Group). After obtaining
the approval from the candidate on the nomination, the nomination
committee will assess his qualifications, academic degree, professional
ethics, relevant experience, skill, independence and whether he can
coordinate with the future development plan of the Company, devote
time and efforts in performing his duties and responsibilities as well as
the current structure of the board. The nomination committee will make
recommendations to the board on the appointment of a new director
after the completion of the assessment.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established its remuneration committee on 20 April 2006.
The remuneration committee is comprised of four independent non-
executive Directors (namely Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. SONG Xiaojiang, Mr.
LIU Erh Fei and Mr. LIU Tianni) and one executive Director (namely Mr.
LUO Yuguang). The remuneration committee is chaired by Mr. SONG
Xiaojiang.
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FENE B (AR
Remuneration Bands (RMB)

The main duties of the remuneration committee shall be: (a) to make
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for the
remuneration of all directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy; (b) to review and approve the management's
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals
and objectives; (c) (i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management; or (ii) to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management; (d) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the group; (e) to review and approve the compensation
payable to executive Directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of their office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent
with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive; (f) to
review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or
removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent
with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and
(g9) to make recommendations to the board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors.

The Company has adopted a model to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration package of individual executive Directors and
senior management.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for
the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

0%250,000
250,001 £360,000

Hiat . BRPARESRR
EUIMYER -

REBABTVEESENE
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A®

Number of persons

0 to 250,000 7
250,001 to 360,000 1

Note: The members of the senior management disclosed above refer to
those employees other than directors and supervisors.
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4=
Members

The remuneration committee held one meeting in 2020. It made
recommendations to the Board on the remunerations of the independent
non-executive directors and the specific remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management. The attendance
record of the members of the remuneration committee at the meetings
held in 2020 is set out below:

HEE FlERY

Attendance/Number of Meetings

BITES
Executive Director
BFRAE

Mr. LUO Yuguang

WIAFRITES

Independent Non-executive Directors
v

Mr. LONG Tao

KRNI E(FE)

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang (Chairman)

Bl Rt

Mr. LIU Erh Fei

ZIRGTEE

Mr. LIU Tianni

FREAT

ARFEREMRANKIBZEZ B @I ATHE
BERE  BRZESANMBEYIFRTES
MR - i fPIS AR SRR TR R R
MBEI R RS - EEZRB BRI AR
FxFE Bt ED R AREEEL - B RE
ERBIRERE -

BERZEENBERNE R RRREFELELRI
EPEAT R BB ARRAMEAFERE
it - EEARRNPHEALEEE  FEX
RAINEHIE - BB NIRRT EINFERS Z
HAE -

mn

A
mn
mn
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with specific terms
of reference in accordance with the Listing Rules. The audit committee
is comprised of four independent non-executive Directors, who possess
appropriate commercial and financial skills and experience to understand
financial statements. The audit committee is chaired by Mr. SONG
Xiaojiang and other members are Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. LIU Erh Fei and Mr.
LIU Tianni.

The terms of reference of the audit committee include the duties to
recommend the engagement and replacement of external audit firms,
oversee the Company’s internal auditing system and implementation,
verify the Company’s financial information and disclosure, examine
the Company’s internal control system, and take charge and act as a
communication channel between internal and external auditors.
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The audit committee held two meetings in 2020. It reviewed the final
results for 2019 and the interim results for 2020. The attendance record
of the members of the audit committee at the meetings in 2020 is set
out below:

241 HEE FRAN
Members Attendance/Number of Meetings
WIERTESE

Independent Non-executive Directors

G piva 2/2
Mr. LONG Tao

RINTEREGEE) 2/2
Mr. SONG Xiaojiang (Chairman)

2 —REHE 2/2
Mr. LIU Erh Fei

BIR (R EE 2/2
Mr. LIU Tianni

LEEIREE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION
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BERRECEEEARE) RNEE -
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The Board adopted the Terms of Reference for Corporate Governance
set out in Code D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code as the terms
of reference for the Board to perform their duties in relation to corporate
governance on 26 March 2012, which include developing and reviewing
the Company's policies and practices on corporate governance and
making recommendations to the Board; reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management; reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) for the Company’s employees and directors;
and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During 2020, the Board has performed the corporate governance function
as mentioned above.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the ultimate responsibility in overseeing the operation of
all business units under the Company’'s management. It shall appoint
suitable qualified personnel to serve on the boards of all subsidiaries
operating in key business areas, attending their board meetings to
oversee the operations of these companies. The management in each
business division is accountable for the operations and performance of
the business within its area of responsibility.

The Company’'s management has implemented a system of internal
control to provide reasonable assurance that the Group’'s assets are
safeguarded, proper accounting records are maintained, applicable laws
and regulations are complied with, reliable financial information are
provided for the Company’'s management for publication purposes and
investment and business risks affecting the Group are identified and
properly managed.

The Board is responsible to ensure a sound and effective risk
management and internal control system to safeguard investments of
Shareholders and assets of the Group and provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against the risks of material misstatement or loss,
and to manage but not eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives.

The Board shall review the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries at least once every
year. The scope of a review includes financial control, operation control,
compliance control and risks management functions. The Board will also
consider the adequacy of resources, staff qualification and experience,
training programs and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function. As at 26 March 2021, the Board has completed the
aforementioned review for 2020 and the Board is of the view that the
Company'’s risk management and internal control systems can properly
and effectively safeguard the investments of the Shareholders and the
assets of the Group.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of its
obligations under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules and has established the inside information disclosure
policy with close regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” issued by the Securities and Futures Commission.
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Supervisors

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors and supervisors. After specific enquiry with
all the Directors and supervisors of the Company, all Directors and
supervisors of the Company confirmed that they have completely
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout 2020.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The supervisory committee is comprised of two members, one of whom
is a representative of the Shareholders (namely Ms. MIN Qing) and one
of whom is the representative of the staff and workers (namely Ms.
ZHANG Yongning). Mr. GUAN Jinming, the chairman of the Supervisory
Committee, resigned on 30 May 2018 and caused a temporary vacancy
for the position. In 2020, the supervisors of the Company exercised
their right of supervision in accordance with the laws to protect the
legal interests of the shareholders, the Company and the employees.
The details of the work of the Supervisory Committee are set out in the
Supervisory Committee's Report in this annual report.

The Supervisory Committee held one meeting in 2020. The attendance
record of the members of the Supervisory Committee at the meetings in
2020 is set out below:

HEE FRRE

Attendance/Number of Meetings

BRARHEHESR
Representatives of the Shareholders

MELZ LT
Ms. MIN Qing

RIRKKHENES

Representative of the staff and workers
SROKE &+

Ms. ZHANG Yongning
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The external auditors currently appointed by the Company are the
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
Chongging Branch and Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as its PRC and
international auditors respectively. They were not engaged to perform
non-audit work in order to maintain their independence. The work that the
external auditors are engaged to perform must bring clear benefits and
value-added effects to the Company, and will not cause adverse effect
on the independence or independent standing of their audit function. The
remuneration of the auditor is disclosed in the financial statements.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

With the assistance of the accounting department, the Board is
responsible for preparing the financial statements for each financial year
and ensuring that, in preparing such financial statements, appropriate
accounting policies are adopted and applied and the PRC accounting
standards and systems and International Financial Reporting Standards
are observed, to give a true and fair view of the financial position and
operating results of the Company. The statement of the auditor about
their responsibilities on the Group's financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor's Report on pages 67 to 73.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS

After the announcement of the Company’s interim and annual financial
results, the Company has proactively arranged for briefing meetings for
people from the investment community at regular intervals, using the
opportunity to promote investor relations and two-way communication.
The Company, through the investor relations manager, responds to the
information requests and inquiries from the investment community.
The Company also publishes information such as the Company's
announcements and circulars on its website (www.gingling.com.cn)
in a timely manner under the requirements of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

The Company encourages shareholders to attend the annual general
meeting at which the Chairman and directors will answer questions
about the Company’s business raised by shareholders. The Company
distributes annual and interim reports to shareholders in a timely manner
for their inspection.
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FR - AREBAMIBREARE - EEHFR During the year, the Company has convened two general meetings. The

RARGHLEELNT - attendance record of directors at the general meetings is set out below:
EE HEE BRRKERE
Directors Attendance/Number of Meetings
BiTEE

Executive Directors

BFERIEEFER) 2/2
Mr. LUO Yuguang (Chairman)

MME— ek (BIE F R RAGATIE) 2/2
Mr. HAYASHI Shuichi (Vice Chairman and General Manager)

ABE—BREAE 2/2
Mr. MAEGAKI Keiichiro

FERESE 0/2
Mr. ADACHI Katsumi

FERKHE 2/2
Mr. LI Juxing

TRIASEE 2/2
Mr. XU Song

FREE 2/2
Mr. LI Xiaodong

BIERTESE

Independent Non-executive Directors

b 2/2
Mr. LONG Tao

RANIHEAE 0/2
Mr. SONG Xiaojiang

ity 3 2/2
Mr. LIU Erh Fei

ZIRGEE 2/2
Mr. LIU Tianni

BEXH CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

RAFEN - IEEARARNEEXMHEFT During the year, the Company did not make any amendment to its

ZE) e constitutional documents.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders of the
Company:

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

Pursuant to Article 80 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
two or more shareholders who hold an aggregate of 10% or more
of the shares carrying voting rights at the meeting proposed to be
held may, sign one or several written requisition in the same form
requesting the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting of
shareholders or a class meeting of shareholders, specifying the objects
of the meeting. Upon the receipt of the aforesaid written request(s),
the Board shall convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class
meeting of Shareholders as soon as possible. The number of the shares
held as aforesaid shall be calculated based on these shares held by the
Shareholders as at the date of the written requisition.

Where the Board fails to give a notice convening the meeting within
thirty days upon the receipt of the aforesaid written requisition, the
requisitionists may themselves convene a meeting, within four months
upon the receipt of the said requisition by the Board. A meeting convene
by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Board.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of
the failure of the Board duly convene a meeting, shall be borne by the
Company and be deducted from the amounts payable by the Company to
such directors who were in default.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at shareholders’ general
meetings by shareholders

The content of a proposal shall be a matter that should be determined
by shareholders’ general meeting, which shall have definite topics to be
discussed and specific matters for resolution and shall be in line with the
laws and administrative regulations.

Shareholders that independently or collectively hold more than 3% of
shares in the Company may make a temporary proposal and submit
it to the convener(s) in written form ten days prior to a shareholders’
general meeting. The convener(s) shall give a supplementary notice of
shareholders’ general meeting to announce the content of the temporary
proposal within two days upon receipt of the proposal.

Except as provided in the preceding paragraph, after sending out a notice
of shareholders’ general meeting, the convener(s) shall not make any
amendments to the proposals included in the notice or add any new
proposals.
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The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director is made available in the website of the Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board of the Company in writing through Mr. LEI Bin, the company
secretary, whose contact details are as follows:

Mr. LEI Bin

Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

1 Xiexing Cun, Zhongliangshan, Jiulongpo District, Chongging,
the People's Republic of China

E-mail : hk1122@gingling.com.cn

Tel: (86) 23-65265671

Fax: (86) 68830397

The company secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries and
concerns to the Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’ questions.

In 2021, the Company will continue to dedicate efforts into enhancing the
standard of its corporate governance according to the ongoing regulatory
changes, development trend of the Company, and feedback opinions
from shareholders, ensuring a stable and healthy growth for the Company
while adding value to shareholders.

The Board of Directors
LEI Bin
Company Secretary

Chongaing, the PRC
26 March 2021



Deloitte.
=2

BBRSERMAMRLTRER
(R EEARKMBIEMA B P INE BB
BRATE])

BR

AAZEED (AT R A ) EF|AH 5 EN 5B 74
BEEF196EMNERAERNERAR(ER
ADREMBAR(GREIERE]D WSS IE
BR WERMBHRREENR T -_TF+=
A=1T—ANGEARMBINE - MEEZA b
FENGABRRIEME2ERER  REER
BHRNGRRSRER - URGEEWBHREK
izt BREEESHHCRME -

BRFRE  ZSEAUBRRCRESTSS:
MRS (B8NS ) BHNEBYER
XA (BT ERELENNEEMP SR
MTEEER -_Z-_FTF+_A=1+—H0H%
BEEIMAREEZ A I FENGEA BRI
RSB RE WD EREBARIEH 2
BHRTEEERE -

BREX

BAIERBETE ST ASRMNBT BRI E
A& AT LR DETET - RPIEZFE
AT AN EECEABRSRBEA B RE
PBHRERAENE TSP EE—TRL - R
BEBEIMASRANEESEER TR
(T=PR)) - RBYREEE - L EEITTH
TEMBEREREE - RPIEE - RIFIPTE
BHETREER R AR ARFNESE
SRHERE -

RVE R E D
Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of Qingling Motors Co., Ltd.
(a Sino-foreign joint venture joint stock limited company incorporated in
the People’'s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Qingling
Motors Co., Ltd. (the “"Company"”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 74 to 196 which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“"HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

ESTIMATED WRITE-DOWN OF INVENTORIES

We identified the estimated write-down of inventories as a key audit
matter due to the management judgment required in the estimation
of the net realisable value, which is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated cost to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

As disclosed in notes 4 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had inventories of approximately RMB841,599,000 (net of
write-down for inventories of approximately RMB65,210,000) as at 31
December 2020. In determining the net realisable value, the management
of the Company considers the historical selling prices of similar products,
the current market conditions, forecast usage and sales volume of similar
products.

Our procedures in relation to the write-down of inventories included:

° Obtaining an understanding of the Group's forecast usage, selling
prices and sales volume of inventories which are used by the
management in the estimation of the net realisable value;

° Considering the selling prices and sales volume of inventories
during the year ended 31 December 2020 and subsequent to the
year end, on a sample basis, and comparing this information with
the Group's expected selling prices and sales volume of inventories
at year-end date;

° Challenging the assumptions of determining the estimated selling
prices and sales volume of forecast sales, on a sample basis, with
reference to the current market conditions and historical selling
prices and sales volume of similar products; and

° Comparing the cost of inventories at year-end date, on a sample
basis, with the estimated net realisable value and checking if
adequate write-down of inventories has been made.
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Independent Auditor's Report

PROVISION FOR LITIGATION

We identified provision for litigation as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the provision for litigation to the consolidated financial
statements.

As disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements, a
provision for litigation of RMB137,633,000 has been recognised as at
31 December 2019 in relation to a material proceeding of the Company
initiated by a bank in respect of a financial credit agreement entered
into between a customer of the Company and the bank. A reversal
of provision for litigation in the amount of RMB53,633,000 has been
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020 as a result of the
settlement of the litigation.

In determining the adequacy of the provision for litigation and the
appropriateness of the reversal of provision recognised in the year, the
directors of the Company reviewed all the relevant documents and
contracts in relation to this litigation, including the court judgment, the
appeal judgement, the ruling for enforcement, judgement on change
of applicant for execution, judgement on the frozen bank balance and
judgement of release dated 14 May 2018, 2 August 2019, 25 May
2020, 17 November 2020, 27 November 2020 and 16 December 2020
respectively. Besides, the directors of the Company also consider the
possible timing and cash outflows for the settlement and the opinion of
the Company's external PRC legal adviser. Details of this litigation and
settlement are set out in note 38.

Our procedures in relation to the provision for litigation included:

o Understanding the judgements adopted by the directors of the
Company in determining the reversal of provision for litigation;

° Obtaining and reviewing all the relevant documents and contracts,
including the court judgment, appeal judgement, the ruling for
enforcement, judgement on change of applicant for execution,
judgement on the frozen bank balance and judgement of release.

° Conducting an interview with the Company’s external PRC legal
adviser and obtaining the opinions of the Company's external as
well as our internal PRC legal advisers to assess the basis of the
reversal of provision for litigation recognised in the year; and

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the judgements adopted by the
directors of the Company, the appropriateness of the reversal of
provision for litigation and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Mak Chun Bon.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2021
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BE_FE_FFEF+_H=+1—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

8E HE
—S2F ZE-NF
+=ZRA=+—B +=—A=+—H
ILEE IHEFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
HiaE ARSTFTT ARETFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’'000
1) & Revenue 5 5,088,762 4,723,287
$HEE BCAR Cost of sales (4,389,361) (3,874,794)
EF Gross profit 699,401 848,493
E A A Other income 279,182 258,572
TBHEEEERN THRERE Impairment losses under expected
(MEr#EE) credit loss model, net of reversal 7 (218) (2,952)
EFS RIBLF5E Other gains and losses, net 2,462 (2,848)
8 K E R AR Distribution and selling expenses (274,624) (229,820)
EEER Administrative expenses (207,003) (201,713)
[BisaE=9:2 Research expenses (228,950) (212,829)
B RAR Finance costs (1,589) (498)
uﬁ"\ﬁéﬁ(}%@) (Reversal of) provision for litigation 38 53,633 (57,633)
DIHEEE N T EE Share of results of associates 433 384
DIEEENTEE Share of results of joint ventures 2,427 4,838
BRIRETAFI Profit before tax 10 325,154 403,994
e i Income tax expense 8 (18,692) (47,712)
FRBRFIR Profit and total comprehensive
Fafaka income for the year 306,462 356,282
THATREERTIR Profit and total comprehensive
Feaka : income attributable to:
ViN/NEIL > ZE T =N Owners of the Company 300,989 345,308
FEIEIRE RS Non-controlling interests 5,473 10,974
306,462 356,282
EFRREAREF Basic earnings per share RMBO0.12 RMBO0.14
15  AR®o0.12%t AR¥0.147T
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-EFE-FF+ = H=+4—H
At 31 December 2020

R-IZEZEZF RZZE—NEF
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-A
At 31 December At 31 December

2020 2019
Jotz3 ARETFTT ARBTFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
EREEE Non-current assets
Y Property, plant and equipment 16 953,870 811,797
FREEE Right-of-use assets 17 81,791 109,882
LB Investment properties 18 39,382 41,848
mILEE Intangible assets 19 228,581 261,299
REtE R A 2 s Interests in associates 20 33,118 8,185
REEQR 2= Interests in joint ventures 21 487,333 492,071
BEHEEE Deferred tax assets 22 18,191 21,991
EHFR Time deposits 25 2,265,640 101,454
SE - BEMREZIES Deposit paid for property, plant and
equipment - 11,803
4,107,906 1,860,330
ENEE Current assets
FE Inventories 23 841,599 631,478
FEWBRR  EUEEIE & Trade, bills and other receivables and
H PR GRIE TR FRIE prepayments 24 2,718,860 2,299,901
‘Mﬁz@wﬁ Tax recoverable 15,591 3,966
TEHER Time deposits 25 2,240,652 4,152,983
SRR HIIRTTAE R Restricted bank balances 26 = 137,633
RITHER - RITEHRKIA S Bank deposits, bank balances and
cash 26 1,041,733 1,909,323
6,858,435 9,135,284
mHRE Current liabilities
JERTERTR - BB EAMERNTIE  Trade, bills and other payables 27 2,426,653 2,155,273
HEAE Lease liabilities 30 30,496 29,359
HEaE Tax liabilities 2,674 3,188
SHEE Contract liabilities 28 372,138 438,023
REAME Refund liabilities 29 107,091 83,611
FRARE Provision for litigation 38 - 137,633
2,939,052 2,847,087
mENEERE Net current assets 3,919,383 6,288,197
HEERRHRAMG Total assets less current liabilities 8,027,289 8,148,527
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R-ZEZZF RZZE—NEF
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-A
At 31 December At 31 December

2020 2019
Hiat ARETFIT AEET T
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
29311 | Capital and reserves
A& Share capital 31 2,482,268 2,482,268
& AR (& M fE Share premium and reserves 5,183,576 5,279,750
AARMEREE AELER Equity attributable to owners of the
Company 7,665,844 7,762,018
FEIEIR R Non-controlling interests 321,581 318,832
BakaE Total equity 7,987,425 8,080,850
ERBAR Non-current liabilities
FEIERA — BT B Deferred income — governments
grants 32 7,982 8,694
HEAR Lease liabilities 30 31,882 58,983
39,864 67,677
8,027,289 8,148,627
FIVBEEFI1GE e MBHRER T - — The consolidated financial statements on pages 74 to 196 were approved
FZR -t NAEESeHERIEERT I and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2021 and
BRI EERREE are signed on its behalf by:
zEE =/ \E Li Juxing Li Xiaodong
2= 2% DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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—FE == —HILEE

For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

KOFRRARL

Attributable to owners of the Company

tRER HEER
B3 BROER ERORE  OWE  ORE  REER g HIREE b

Statutory Discretionary Non-
Share Share  Capital  surplus  surplus  Retained controlling

capital  premium  reserve reserve fund reserve fund profits Total  interests Total
N\RETT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREfr AREF
AMBOR  AMBOR  RMBOR  RMBOR  RMBORO  RMBUWO  RMBORO  AMBOM  AWBON

W B

Note) oo 1) frote 19)
AE-NE-R-A At 1 January 2019 2082268 1764905 571,200 1,143,180 2307 1809973 7813813 30241 8124114
EmERRGALLE Profitand total comprehensive income for the year s s s s - 3B8 M5B 1094 36
EEOR Appropriaion for the year - - - B - (337 - - -
Eﬁ’@é@&iﬁ:?/\ﬁ%ﬁﬁi%ﬁfﬁ//f} 2018 finel dividend recogrised and paid /e 74/ - - - - - 3706 (397,163 S A ]
MEFHERRR RS Dividends paidto norontroling interests = = = = = = S KK
RA=B-nETZR=t-H At 31 December 2019 2080068 1764905 571200 117689 237 1764402 7762018 318832 8080830
EmEiRsa s Profitand total comprehensive income for the year s s = = - 300%9 099 5413 30646
EEOR Appropriation for the year - - - B - s - - -
BEAREA-E-NERSRE ) 2019 inal dividend recogrised and paid faote 74/ - - - - - (37169 (397,163 R A ]
MAHERRE RS Dividends paid to non-controling nterests s - - - - - -
RZBRET2R=T-R At31 December 2020 202268 1764905 BTM200 10493 2347 1601 TeB8M 31581 798742

Bt

BRARNBEeEER -ZARYS72,206,0005T(=
T— N4 : AR¥572,206,0007T)5E - NEE
BETERMAERBEARAQREXLAIAERA
HEEARARTELRER]  DAEBHKRE
BARDRERAEERAAZARNARNEE
FEAEAE—NMNANEEEAN—ID  LBEEAA
AR AL BT E£171,500,000,000 8 KV E B A R
1,500,000,0007C 2 B H Z 5 ©

Note:

The capital reserve mainly includes an amount of RMB572,206,000 (2019:
RMB572,206,000) which represents the excess of the value of the net assets
immediately before the establishment of the Company injected into the
Company by E#/AE(EE)ER2AE (“Qingling Group” — ultimate holding
company of the Group) and E$2 /78 B R AT as part of the reorganisation in
1994 which was approved by the State Administration of State-owned Assets,
over the nominal value of 1,500,000,000 shares issued upon establishment of
the Company of RMB1,500,000,000.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HBE—F-TF{ A=+ HULFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

- b -3 #Hz-_T-N%
+=R=+-AH +=RA=1-~H
LEE IHFE
Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2020 December 2019
AREFT AREFT
RMB000 AMB 000
REER OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B AET] Profit before tax 325,154 403,994
EfERE: Adjustments for:

A Finance costs 1,589 498

FISBA Interest income (207,692) (192,206)

MEBEDREE Share of results of associates (433) (384

AERERREE Share of results of joint ventures (2,427) (4,838)

EﬁEEﬂHWﬁﬁﬂ Government grants recognised (7117) (446)

MRS R E YRR EE Impairment loss on trade and other receivables 218 2,952

nE - BREERXERE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 36,183 39,773

ERELENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 32,292 5,923

B AERE Amortisation of intangible assets 38,646 35,362

REMENE Depreciation of investment properties 2,466 2,465

HEME - BFE R a5 Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net (699) (738)

i B (W) F Net foreign exchange loss (gain) 1,352 (329)

BEACHRACERER Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital 225,932 292,026
REEMAD (Increase) decrease in inventories (208,303) 20,581
BUE - BUEER (Increase) decrease in trade, bills and

Hit YA R R IR Y other receivables and prepayments (419,177) 424,664
ZRHBTERRD (L) Decrease (increase) in restricted bank balances 137,633 (57,634)
ERER - BREER Increase (decrease) in trade,

HitERFIEm0EL) bills and other payables 188,175 (7,147)
AOBREEMCRD)EM (Decrease) increase in contract liabilities (65,885) 19,643
RIEGERDEMORL) Increase (decrease) in refund liabilities 23,480 (705)
FABEEICRD)Em (Decrease) increase in provision for litigation (48,633) 57,633
RELBFRAMERS Cash (used in) generated from operations (166,778) 749,061
BRMERE Income taxes paid (27,031) (56,945)
BREH (TR FARLPE NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED FROM

OPERATING ACTIVITIES (193,809) 692,116
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

BE-S_ZF BE-TNF

+=B=+-AH +=A=1-"H
LLEE IHFE
Year ended 31 Year ended 31
December 2020 December 2019
ARBFT AREFT
RMB'000 AMB 000
REEE INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BATHER Placement of time deposits (5,187,000) (7,462,857)
REEHAFR Withdrawal of time deposits 4,963,857 4,366,423
BEWE BERE Purchases of property, plant and equipment (179,004) (122,187)
BEEVAE Purchases of intangible assets - (24,412)
W E—HAELENRS Dividends received from a joint venture 5,347 36,738
R—BE AR RE Investment in an associate (24,500) =
FIBBA Interest received 178,980 168,517
HENE - BERRERETE Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1527 2,838
SR E R E BT RE Government grants received related to assets 5 2,400
REEBFRAREPHE NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (240,788) (3,032,540)
MEER FINANCING ACTIVITIES
ERRRE Dividends paid (397,163) (397,163)
BR—RNE R AN IHERRRR S Dividends paid to a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary (2,724) (2,383)
HEREER Repayments of lease liabilities (30,165) (4,815)
TFEER Payments of interest expense (1,589) (498)
MEEBMARLSH NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (431,641) (404,859
HeRREEEMEYIH NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (866,238) (2,745,283)
R—R—HRZREREEEEN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY 1,909,323 4,654,277
ERgBnyE Effects of foreign exchange rate changes (1,352) 329
R+ZRZ+—HZRERBLEEN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER,
BRTHER  BTRBRAL represented by bank deposits,
bank balances and cash 1,041,733 1,909,323
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_FE_FFEF+_H=+1—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Qingling Motors Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is a sino-foreign joint venture
joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC") with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company is 1 Xiexing
Cun, Zhong Liang Shan, Jiu Long Po District, Chongqing, the PRC. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
are the production and sale of Isuzu light-duty trucks, multi-purposes
vehicles, pick-up trucks, medium and heavy-duty trucks and automobile
parts, accessories and others.

The parent and ultimate holding company of the Company is Qingling
Group (a state-owned enterprise established in Chongging, the PRC).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB")
which is also the functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1
January 2020 for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material
HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Except as described as below, the application of Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no material impact on
the Group's financial positions and performance for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Continued)

Impacts of application on Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
Definition of Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 for the
first time in the current year. The amendments provide a new definition
of material that states “information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements, which provide financial information about
a specific reporting entity”. The amendments also clarify that materiality
depends on the nature or magnitude of information, either individually
or in combination with other information, in the context of the financial
statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments in the current year had no impact on
the consolidated financial statements.
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BE_FE_FFEF+_H=+1—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS
39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments '

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions *

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework ?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2 °

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture ®

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020) '

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use 2
Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling

a Contract 2

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the directors
of the Company anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures deal with
situations where there is a sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments
state that gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary
that does not contain a business in a transaction with an associate
or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method, are
recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors' interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and
losses resulting from the remeasurement of investments retained in any
former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture that is
accounted for using the equity method) to fair value are recognised in the
former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have significant
impact on the financial position and performance of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-
2020

The annual improvements make amendments to the following standards.
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of assessing whether
modification of terms of original financial liability constitutes substantial
modification under the “10 per cent” test, a borrower includes only fees
paid or received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the borrower or the lender on the other’s behalf.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The amendment to lIllustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16
removes from the example the illustration of reimbursement relating to
leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to remove any potential

confusion.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have significant
impact on the financial position and performance of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements, information is considered material
if such information is reasonably expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis at the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 /Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and
its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from the
Group's equity therein, which present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_FE-_FTF+ _A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates and joint
ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of the
associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group's interests in that
associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate
or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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3R 2020 ANNUAL REPORT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the
interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation
is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

° the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right

to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or
an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

Revenue from sales of trucks, vehicles, chassis, automobile parts,
accessories and others are recognised when the control of goods is
transferred, being when the goods are delivered to the customer’s
specific location. A receivable is recognised by the Group when the goods
are delivered to the customer’s specific location as this represents the
point in time at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional,
as only the passage of time is required before payment is due. The
customers have neither rights of return nor rights to defer or avoid
payment for the goods once they are accepted by the customers.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group estimates the
amount of consideration to which it will be entitled using the most likely
amount, which better predicts the amount of consideration to which the
Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in the
transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that such
an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future
when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the estimated
transaction price (including updating its assessment of whether an
estimate of variable consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully
the circumstances present at the end of the reporting period and the
changes in circumstances during the reporting period.

Warranties

If a customer has the option to purchase a warranty separately, the Group
accounts for the warranty as a separate performance obligation and
allocates a portion of the transaction price to that performance obligation.

If a customer does not have the option to purchase a warranty separately,
the Group accounts for the warranty in accordance with HKAS 37 unless
the warranty provides the customer with a service in addition to the
assurance that the product complies with agreed-upon specifications (i.e.
service-type warranties).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Warranties (Continued)

For service-type warranties, the promised service is a performance
obligation. In that case, the Group allocates a portion of the transaction
price to the warranty.

Refund liabilities

The Group recognises a refund liability if the Group expects to refund
some or all of the consideration received from customers.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its promise is a
performance obligation to provide the specified goods or services itself
(i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to
be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service before
that good or service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for the
provision of the specified good or service by another party. In this case,
the Group does not control the specified good or service provided by
another party before that good or service is transferred to the customer.
When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of
any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for
arranging for the specified goods or services to be provided by the other
party.
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3R 2020 ANNUAL REPORT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application or arising from business combinations, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate non-lease
components from lease component, and instead account for the lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases
of warehouse that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. Lease
payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities;

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
less any lease incentive received;

any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling and
removing the underlying assets, restoring the site on which it is
located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition
of investment property as a separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position. Right-of-use assets that meet the
definition of investment property are presented within “investment
properties”.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liabilities at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.
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3R 2020 ANNUAL REPORT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;
° amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group; and

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest
accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment
of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the related lease
liabilities is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market rental
rates following a market rent review/expected payment under a
guaranteed residual value, in which cases the related lease liabilities
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the
right to use one or more underlying assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in scope
and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
the Group remeasures the lease liabilities based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or
operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to
the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not part of the
original terms and conditions are accounted for as lease modifications,
including lease incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction of
rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a new
lease from the effective date of the modification, considering any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that
the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income, if any, in the consolidated statement of
financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Government grants (Continued)

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable. Government grants relating to compensation of expenses are
deducted from the related expenses, other government are presented
under “other income”.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt with
as payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans where the
Group's obligations under the plans are equivalent to those arising in a
defined contribution retirement benefit plan.

In addition, on 1 December 2017, the Qingling Group established
a voluntary defined contribution enterprise annuities program (the
"Enterprise Annuities Plan”) in accordance with the Qingling Group’s
Enterprise Annuities Plan for its eligible employees (including eligible
employees of the Group). Contributions paid by the Group for its eligible
employees are made based on a percentage of their wages and salaries
and are charged to the Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Enterprise Annuities Plan. The assets of the
Enterprise Annuities Plan are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised
as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.
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3R 2020 ANNUAL REPORT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before tax because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions in
which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable to the
lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes requirements
to the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis.
Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable entity
by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.
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3R 2020 ANNUAL REPORT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than properties under construction for production as
described below) are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly attributable to bringing
the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of properties
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use” assets in
the consolidated statement of financial position. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease building element and
undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties
are classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets other than
properties under construction and specialised production facilities and
moulds, over their estimated useful lives after taking into account of their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method.

Specialised production facilities and moulds which can be identified in
relation to specific production processes are depreciated by reference
to the expected production volume of these facilities and moulds after
taking into account of their estimated residual values.

The estimated useful lives, residual values, the expected production
volume and the depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals.

Investment properties are initially measured at costs, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
recognised so as to write off the cost of investment properties over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost
less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
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3R 2020 ANNUAL REPORT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development
expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it
will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset;
and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets
is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible
asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to the initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets
are reported as costs less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expensed from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
investment properties, and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
investment properties carried at cost, intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, investment properties carried at cost, and intangible assets are
estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or group
of cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit
or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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3R 2020 ANNUAL REPORT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets,
investment properties, and intangible assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro-rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash- generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is
the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value
of money is material).

Warranties

Provisions for the expected cost of assurance-type warranty obligations
under the relevant contracts with customers for sales of trucks and
chassis are recognised at the date of sale of the relevant products, at the
directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the Group's
obligation.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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3R 2020 ANNUAL REPORT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All of the Group's financial assets recognised under HKFRS 9 are
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss ("ECL") model on financial assets (including trade, bills and other
receivables, time deposits, restricted bank balances, bank deposits and
bank balances) which are subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL ("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, and factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade and bills receivables.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal
to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

° significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk,
e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results
in a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a debt
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the
debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting
date. A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if i) it has
a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse changes
in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of “investment
grade” as per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.

(ii) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of
default occurs when information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating
that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data and forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for
all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade, bills and other receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the

difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities of the Group are subsequently measured at
amortised cost.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade, bills and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net amount
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position when, and
only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts; and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at end of the reporting period, that

have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Write-down of inventories

Write-down of inventories require the estimation of the net realisable
value, which is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated cost to be incurred to completion and disposal.
These estimates are based on the historical selling prices of similar
products, the current market conditions, forecast usage and sale volume
of similar products. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste or competitor actions in response to severe consumer
product industry cycles. Management reassesses these estimates at
the end of the reporting period. As at 31 December 2020, the carrying
amount of inventories is RMB841,599,000 (2019: RMB631,478,000), net
of write-down for inventories of RMB65,210,000 (2019: RMB74,599,000).

Provision of ECL for trade, bills and other receivables

The Group assesses ECL for the trade, bills and other receivables
individually based on internal credit rating of these debtors. The estimated
loss rates are estimated based on the Group's historical observed
default rates taking into consideration forward-looking information that
is reasonable and supportable available without undue costs or effort. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed
and changes in the forward-looking information are considered. As at
31 December 2020, the total carrying amount of trade, bills and other
receivables is RMB2,623,987,000 (2019: RMB2,247,818,000), net of total
allowance for credit losses of RMB3,631,000 (2019: RMB3,413,000).

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information
about the ECL for the Group's trade, bills and other receivables are
disclosed in note 34.
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5. k& 5. REVENUE
(i) SHFEXEEFSHNHKE (i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
AEEHWZRIEMIINBEFHE RS « )R8 The Group's revenue represents sales of trucks, vehicles, chassis,
K& REZH - S REMEENEE B automobile parts, accessories and others to external customers that are
BN R —REER - AEEGEEZE recognised at a point in time. The following is an analysis of the Group's
mERRE ST revenue from its major products:
BE HE
—EEF —ZE-NF
+=ZA=+—8 +=ZA=+—H
ILEE EFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARETFTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
i b Types of goods
HERAIFAS Sales of light-duty trucks 809,591 1,020,294
HE S )AE Sales of multi-purposes vehicles = 73
HERRE Sales of pick-up trucks 853,233 907,465
HERARERE Sales of medium and heavy-duty trucks 1,130,088 949,044
HERS Sales of chassis 2,008,003 1,543,369
SHEAETH - BPHREM Sales of automobile parts, accessories
and others 287,847 303,042
#Et Total 5,088,762 4,723,287

BRAaPEEBEINBIREAOEENARKE Except for export sales to countries outside the PRC amounting to

72,168,0007T(ZE—N4F : AK¥71,833,000 RMB72,168,000 (2019: RMB71,833,000), all other sales of the Group are
TN AEBEMAEHESE TARTF made to customers located in the PRC.

BANES -
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5. & (#\) 5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)
(i) SHERAEFRSHHNRE(HE) (i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

TR EBERMIEENRE TG DRI Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts with
AR customers disclosed in the segment information:

RESH

hRRERE  PHRAR

RE®  Automobile

BYHAEREYE SURSE HFEREY®  Mediumand parts,

Light-duty Multi- Pick-up  heavy-duty accessories
trucks purposes trucks trucks and 8
and chassis vehicles  and chassis  and chassis others  Consolidated

ABRTL  ABRTT  ARRTT  ABRFT  ABRFT  ABRFZ
RMBO0O  RMBUO)  RMBUO)  RMBUS)  RMBUM  RMBOM

HE-E-TET-A=1-HIEE  Forthe year ended 31 December 2020

HETHERS Sales of light-duty trucks 809,591 = 5 5 5 809,591
HERFE Sales of pick-up trucks 5 = 853,233 5 5 853,233
EEPHRENE Sales of medium and heavy-duty trucks = 5 1,130,088 5 1,130,088
i Sales of chassis 1,898,194 - 11,296 98513 = 2,008,003
HERESH PHRE Sales of automabile parts, accessories and others S = 5 5 287,847 287,847
ey Revenue 2,707,785 - 864,529 1,228,601 287,847 5,088,762

HE-E-NET-RA=1-HIEE  Forthe year ended 31 December 2019

HEAHERS Sales of light-duty trucks 1,020,204 = 5 5 5 1,020,204
HESRAE Sales of mult-purposes vehicles 5 73 5 5 5 7
HENFE Sales of pick-up trucks 5 = 907,465 5 5 907,465
HEPHRERE Sales of medium and heavy-duty trucks 5 = 5 949,044 5 949,044
HERS Sales of chassis 1,404,.4% - 43,344 9,529 - 1,543,369
HERETH  PHRER Sales of automabile parts, accessories and others 5 = 5 S 303,042 303,042
e Revene 240479 B G0M9  IMET MR 4TR
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RAAERRESBEFGEEERRBNRES
o MIHEWERTHR  AISERERER

& o

RE - RE - EE - AETMH - B REAME
F‘%E’J%’%%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%?ﬁ - MRIERFEE
mAFE T RIRERE - Bt - REBEREE
Bg = E+EE|J%37FRJ\EET£{% °

(iii) PEFEFSHHETERORENRS
=g

R-_FE-_FF+-_A=Z+—8 A&£BH
EFHTROETHNRSIBRAEHOA
R#¥372,138,000L(ZE—NF : AR
438,023,0007T) * FEBHHERE - FEREK
BAREENER -

ENBEMRAEFRTRSHER  AARE
ERPR_ZF_ZFT_A=1—HSETL
MARERNE DN HER BN RFHERIR
A °
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5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)
(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with customers

The Group sells trucks, vehicles, chassis, automobile parts, accessories
and others to customers, including independent dealers and certain
related parties (details are set out in note 35), according to the relevant
sales agreements. Revenues are recognised when control of trucks,
vehicles, chassis, automobile parts, accessories and others has been
transferred, being when they have been shipped to the customers’
specific locations based on the quantity of trucks, vehicles, chassis,
automobile parts, accessories and others received by the customers.
No provisions for returns of trucks, vehicles, chassis, automobile parts,
accessories and others are set out in the relevant sales agreements,
except for replacement due to quality problems. Payments of transaction
price for sales of trucks, vehicles, chassis, automobile parts, accessories
and others are agreed at the point when the customers received them.
Advance payments in forms of bank remittance and/or bank bills from
independent dealers are normally required for sales of light-duty trucks,
multi-purposes vehicles, pick-up trucks, medium and heavy duties
trucks. Sales of chassis, automobile parts, accessories and others to
independent dealers and related parties are required to be settled in three
to six months according to the relevant sales agreements.

Under the Group's standard contract terms, customers have a right to
receive rebates paid by the Company. The Group uses its accumulated
historical experience to estimate the amount of consideration to which
it will be entitled using the most likely amount. A refund liability is
recognised for sales in which revenue has yet been recognised.

Sales-related warranties associated with trucks, vehicles and chassis
and automobile parts, accessories and others cannot be purchased
separately and they serve as an assurance that the products sold comply
with agreed-upon specifications. Accordingly, the Group accounts for
warranties in accordance with HKAS 37.

(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligation for contracts with customers

The Group had aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated
to remaining performance obligations which are mainly in respect of
sales of trucks, vehicles and chassis that are unsatisfied amounted
to approximately RMB372,138,000 at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB438,023,000).

Based on the information available to the Group at the end of the
reporting period, the directors of the Company expect the transaction
price allocated to the above unsatisfied contracts as at 31 December
2020 will be recognised as revenue in the following year.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is engaged in the manufacture and sales of five categories
of products light-duty trucks, multi-purposes vehicles, pick-up trucks,
medium and heavy-duty trucks and automobile parts and accessories
and the chief operating decision makers (i.e. the Company's executive
directors) review the segment information by these categories to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance.

Specifically, the Group's reportable segments under HKFRS 8 Operating
Segments are as follows:

Light-duty trucks — manufacture and sales of light-duty trucks
and chassis

Multi-purposes vehicles — manufacture and sales of multi-purposes
vehicles

Pick-up trucks — manufacture and sales of pick-up trucks
and chassis

Medium and heavy-duty — manufacture and sales of medium and

trucks heavy-duty trucks and chassis

Automobile parts and — manufacture and sales of automobile parts,

accessories accessories and others
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(i) Segment revenue and results

2 EAHTIA

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

operating and reportable segment:

SURRE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

THRENE RESHRDH

aUHRE Multi- KFE Mediumand Automobile
Light-duty ~ purposes Pick-up  heavy-duty  partsand #8
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories Consolidated
ABRTT  ABBTT  ABRTFT ARBFT ABBTT ARRFT
RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000
Prea Segment revenue 2,707,785 - 864529 1,228,601 207847 5,088,762
E4 Result
RSB Segment profit (oss) 226,966 - 10,969) (19,832) 63,969 260,134
SHERE Central administration costs (42,360)
BREEEEEA THAESEIRER) Impairment losses under ECL mode, net of reversal (218)
Ip Finance costs (1,589)
HEER Research expenses (228,950)
EfA Other income:
FEHA Interest income 207,692
HEWATZ) Rental income (nots) 48,633
LoV Government grants 2,704
it Others 153
EHAEREXFE Other gains and losses, net 2462
FRERD Reversal of provision for fitigation 53,633
HMEBEDTEE Share of results of associates 433
MERELNAIRE Share of results of joint ventures 2421
FEERRAER Group's profit before tax 325,154
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6. SEBEH ()

(i) SRR R R

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(i) Segment revenue and results (Continued)

HE_Z-NF+ZA=+T—HLFE For the year ended 31 December 2019
SUEAE PHRERE AEZARIH
anERs Multi- HFE  Medumand  Automobile
Lightduty ~ purposes Pickup  heaw-duty  partsand 5a
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories  Consolidated
NEEFT  ANRETT AEETL ARETL AREFT  AREFL
AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000
e Segment revenue 2424790 73 950809 1,044,573 03042 4723287
E+ Result
AEEH (E8) Segment profit (oss) 302,966 (12) 81,97 28,268 46,09 459279
SHERER Central administration costs 42,319)
BHEERETHRESEIRER) Impairment losses under ECL model, net of reversal (2,952)
P Finance costs (498)
FRER Research expenses (212,829)
EfA : Other income:
FEHA Interest income 192,206
REW\H) Rental income (note/ 44,286
eV Government grants 19,779
it Others 2,301
EHAIEREXTE Other gains and losses, net (2,848)
M Provision for litigation 57,633
PEBELTEE Share of results of an associate 384
MARLTEE Share of results of joint ventures 4838
A& ERHAER Group's profit before tax 403994

Hiat . MERARKEHERTEEEEMNRK -

Note:
leases.

Rental income represented fixed lease payments under operating

HE-ZE-TFR-F-NF+-A=+—H
LIFFEBmES EEHE o

BIE M 2 W0 B0 2 &Rt BR B MY I3 At
AEENE JrBzﬁ*BH o bR (BB HEE
7> BOPTBRER (B 18) 2 R ﬁﬁjtﬁ DECEPE
BEER  AEREEEERA TARERSR G
BREEE) - BB Eﬂ%:gﬁﬁ Ei\ﬁﬂuﬁl)\ >
HFIG RBEFER  SFRGEEED - 216G
L WNSIES=YSE fﬁﬁ%”&?%%ﬂ o Ik Ty E
BBERREBRENDBERMEEE 25
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There have been no inter-segment sales during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment
profit (loss) represents the profit earned by (loss incurred from) each
segment without allocation of central administration costs, impairment
losses under ECL model (net of reversal), finance costs, research
expenses, other income, other net gains and losses, reversal of (provision
for) litigation, share of results of associates and share of results of joint
ventures. This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision
makers for the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(ii) Segment assets and liabilities

BN I The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by

reportable and operating segment:

At 31 December 2020

EWERE WURENE SETHREH

aUHRE Multi- KFE Mediumand Automobile
Light-duty ~ purposes Pick-up  heavy-duty  partsand #8
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories Consolidated

ABRTL ABRTZ ABRTT ARRTT ABRTT ABRFZ
RVMBY00O  RMBOGO  RMBUO)  RMBYO00  RMBUO)  RMBY0O

AE
NHEE

AHEREEE
-0%  BERRE
-[FRIEAE
-G%
&ﬁ%%
WEA?Z%M
REERTER
ROG - BHERRAS RESHER

B URAE

AIDELERER - BRRERABERNTE
ApECAEaRE
AfpATNEZ AR

Greak

Assets
Segment assets 1,614,950 - 597,077 1,351,565 291921 3855513

Interchangeably used assets between segments

- property, plant and equipment 393,846

~right of use assets 81,791

~inventories 254,715
Investment properties 39,382
Interests in associates 33,118
Interests in joint ventures 487,333
Bank deposits, bank balances and cash and time

deposits 5,548,025
Other unallocated assets 212,618
Consolidated total assets 10,966,341
Liabilities

Segment liabilities 425,665 - 139,063 206,228 - 770,956
Unallocated trade, bills and other payables 2,134,925
Unallocated lease liabilities 62,378
Other unallocated liabilities 10,657
Consolidated total liabilities 2978916
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6. SEEEG 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(i) SPEERARGE (i) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
—NF+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2019
SUEAE PHRENE FETHRHE
anERs Multi- FFE  Medumand  Automobile
Lightduty ~ purposes Pickup  heaw-duty  partsand 5a
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories  Consolidated
NERFT  \REFT  AREET  AREFT  AREET AKEFT
AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000
& Assets
2EE Segment assets 1424010 - 596,442 1,171,626 249911 3441989
A ERREE Interchangeably used assets between segments
0% BERE - property, plant and equipment 257,185
-[PREAE - ight of use assets 109,882
-8 - inventories 159,560
&5%% Investment properties 41,848
REEDF R Interest in an associate 8,185
MRELNFIZIER Interests in joint ventures 492,071
TRUBTER  OEN RO Restricted bank balances, bank deposits, bank
RRSREDER balances and cash and time deposits 6,301,393
ERTTHREE Other unallocated assets 183,501
GAREE Consolidated total assets 10,995,614
& Liabilties
HHak Segment liabilties 485,126 - 19538 2212 - 91,705
AR EHER - ENZEREGEMNGE Unallocated trade, bills and other payables 1,775,202
BRIWESY 4 Unallocated provision for litigation 137633
ok HERE Unallocated lease liabiliies 88,342
ﬁ‘Mﬂﬁj‘@EZﬁﬁ Other unallocated liabilties 11,882
TREAE Consolidated total liabiities 2,914,764
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6. SEEEG 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(i) HPEERARGEE (i) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
BRERNEFERDEEDEBEIR : For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating

resources between segments:

. FMBEEHDREEERAZ®/RD I . All assets are allocated to operating and reportable segments other
M I 2 FE 3 Fﬁﬁﬁ WEME - R than interchangeably used assets between segments, investment
BRElZERD  REERIZER % properties, interest in an associate, interests in joint ventures,
REIRITEERR - RITHER - RITEHK restricted bank balances, bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
ReEREMBAARFEZ TS EE and other unallocated assets held by the head office; and
ERIN K&

. FIEBEHNEEEERTZ2HRA I o All liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable segments
’|E7FEJ§J\EEZ%HEEW\ !‘Eﬁmf&,\ other than unallocated trade, bills and other payables, unallocated
HERTFRIE - N DBl 2 FFEARE - T provision for litigation, unallocated lease liabilities and other
ANz HEBERARRZEMAT] unallocated liabilities of the head office.

DB ERIN
(iii) HttaEEE (iii) Other segment information
HE_Z-ZTF+_A=+—HLFE For the year ended 31 December 2020
SYRSE PHRENE SESHREH
BiERE Multi- KFE Mediumand  Automobile
Lightduty  purposes Pickup heavy-duty  partsand  FWAE 78
trucks vehicles trucks trucks accessories Unallocated Consolidated

ABRTLT  ABRTT ABRTT ABRTT ABRFT ABRTT ABRTT
RMB'000  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBU0O  RMBU0O  RMBU00  RMB000

TN PERAATEE Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or
LEE: loss or segment assets:

TEME BRI} Additions to property, plant and equipment 440 - 3931 12,965 - 161,748 179,084
NEEVEE Additions to intangible assets - - 5 = 5 5,928 5,928
FERAREE Additions to right-of-use assets 5 = 5 5 5 4,201 4201
BYEERS Amortisation of intangible assets 5 = 5 317 5 5,469 38,646
0% BERRENE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,744 5 4,361 11,249 5 12,829 36,183
FRELENE Depreciation of right-of-use asset 5 5 5 5 s 32,292 32,92
RENENE Depreciation of investment properties - - - - - 2,466 2,466
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6. SEEHE () 6.
(iii) HMSBIEGEE (iii)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Other segment information (Continued)

HE_Z-NF+ZA=+T—HLFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

126

SYEAE RHRENE AETHRIE
dHERE Mul- FFE  Medumand  Automoblle
Lightduty ~ purposes Pickup  heawduty  partsand  TARE )
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories  Unallocated  Consolidated
ANRETT  AREFT  ARETT  ARETT AREFT AREFT  AREFIL
AMBO00  AMB000 AMBO00  AMB000 AMBO00  AMBO0O  AMB 000
HANPERINPER Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or
LEE: loss or segment assets:
TENE  BERA Additions to property, plant and equipment 4115 = 108 33,135 5 69,075 106,433
RERNEE Additions to intangible assets - - - 37574 5 3619 41193
RERREEE Additions to right-of-use assets S = S 5 S 88,802 88,802
BYEERS Amartisation of intangible assets = s 31,549 s 3813 35,362
0% BERRENE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 7,601 5 4300 12,252 5 15,620 39773
FREAENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 5 5 5 5 = 5923 5923
REMERE Depreciation of investment properties - - - - - 2465 2465
(iv) HESH (iv) Geographical information

BRIELERHTEEERTEBFEZIAN - AEE
BEAR1,824,075,000 (=T — h4F :
AR ¥1,736,885,00070) B3ERBN B EM R
FEER - BRAFEUINER ZHOEE
ARM72,168,000L(ZZE—NF : AR
71,833,0007T)40 + RER 2 FTE EMEES
ETFNRFBEZEF -

(v) BREBREFZEH

KEXREEREMBRARRA R (RE) 2
AR AR (TR (FEE) ok
MEFEARHRES 9\\*@)5%4&)\{52!&
%l#@u&/\m%&ut HZE —EF
+—A=+—BLEFE - X@F‘ii’%%@&ﬁ
WBAR KA TREBEZIMADRAEA
R #¥1,637,987,0000L(ZF—NF : AR
1,361,660,0007T) 2 A R#633,468,0007L (=
—NF : AR#B699,282,0007T) °

Mz ZERNSGR/ERI+R(EE)EHRE
RAr((BRE+HREB®R) -
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Excluding deferred tax assets and time deposits, the Group’s non-current
assets amounting to RMB1,824,075,000 (2019: RMB1,736,885,000) are
located in the PRC. Except for export sales to countries outside the PRC
amounting to RMB72,168,000 (2019: RMB71,833,000), all other sales of
the Group are made to customers located in the PRC.

(v) Information about major customers

Other than Qingling Group and its subsidiaries and T+ $ (- )
ZEEHAMR AT (“Isuzu Engine”) (note), no other single external
customer contributed 10% or more to the Group's total revenue for
both years. During the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue from
Qingling Group and its subsidiaries, and Isuzu Engine amounted to
RMB1,637,987,000 (2019: RMB1,361,660,000) and RMB633,468,000
(2019: RMB699,282,000) respectively.

Note : The entity was formerly named E# A +#%(EE)ZHHRER QD
("Qingling Isuzu Engine”).
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7. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED
CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL

[ ES HZE
k- Jod- -3 3 —E-hF
+=ZA=+—HB +=-A=+—H
ILEE WHFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
AR¥FIT AR¥TFr
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ERIERERA Impairment losses recognised on:
— FEUER IR — trade receivables 122 1,083
— H YRR — other receivables 96 1,869
218 2,952

RERHEFBEIIR K34

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 34.
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8. Ffe#HXH 8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
8E H=
- Jod- 3 3 —ZET-hF
+=-A=+—HB +=-A=+—H
ILEE WFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARTIT AR EFor
RMB’000 RMB’000
BERF IR Current tax 12,813 45,168
BEFEBE D Under provision in prior years 2,079 1,151
EIERLIA (BT 7222) Deferred tax (note 22) 3,800 1,393
18,692 47,712

RIECEANRAB A AREEBEELE
FrISBmMAs) (BERMIBBRBRAE201205F
125%) FIC RSB R S BN R E % B %) (BB R
MAELZESSFEA405) - (AP RS HE
W EPERNSEEAEEXREE THEEE
B A BEELL BB B 70 % B A 7
ZE1%NEBRCEMESHR(EEMERDM
Ko KRB RARARIZHB AR EEEREA
BRAR(EREREDBEXBE N BB
MBESEANFENEBIEESE  WARFEETE
E¥BRABRBEERES B RABEELFEE
70% ' WEERMEFEZTEERLEMS
FRIEE15% °

AN - IRIECEREE SRR B EMER
BURBIDE) (BHES - IRFS B R RBERE
BMNELZEERNE20209F5235%) » uiH
B E TN EFRRTSEEELAETF
SEVFEEZEWRA MR A L FIHEIBE60%/
AN ZE - —F— A —BRE_ZT=TF
+ - A=+—BILZB15%NERLEME
o

AREZHBRARERERRMPOEREE
RAJ (BT L)) RESR CRINDFRERT
EHERBARXR(RIFRRDREBE—
E_EFE+ A=+ BILFER2B%(ZF
—NF : 26%) B RBIAD KSR -
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According to the Notice of the Enterprise Income Tax for Implementation
of Exploration and Development of Western Region (Notice of the State
Administration of Taxation No. 12 [2012]) and the Catalogue of Industries
Encouraged to Develop in the Western Region (Order of the National
Development and Reform Commission No. 40), companies located in the
western region of the PRC and engaged in the businesses encouraged
by the PRC government are entitled to the preferential enterprise income
tax ("EIT") rate of 15% if the operating revenue of the encouraged
business in the current year accounted for more than 70% of the total
income. The Company and EEE#IEEFR A A (“Qingling Moulds”),
a subsidiary of the Company, are engaged in the encouraged businesses
included in the related notice and catalogue and the total revenue of their
major businesses for the year accounted for 70% of their respective total
revenue, and therefore continue to enjoy the preferential EIT rate of 15%
for both years.

In addition, according to the Notice of the Continuation of the Enterprise
Income Tax for Implementation of Exploration and Development of
Western Region (Notice of the Ministry of Finance, State Administration
of Taxation and National Development and Reform Commission No. 23
[2020]), companies located in the western region of the PRC and engaged
in the business encouraged by the PRC government are entitled to the
preferential EIT rate of 15% from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2030
if the operating revenue of the encouraged business in a year accounted
for more than 60% of the total income in that year.

BEESFEMFOBRETAF (“Qingling Technical Center”) and B4 (%
YNFTEER RS E R AR AR (“Shenzhen New Energy”), subsidiaries
of the Company, are subject to EIT rate of 25% (2019: 25%) for the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax per
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as follows:

BE H=E

—g=8® T AF

+=—A=+—H +=ZA=+—H

il 3 IHFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

ARETTT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

R A1 g A Profit before tax 325,154 403,994

LAE AT S R R15% 8 2 8
(ZZF—NF : 15%)

ERBFEEENHZER
2SR B W it E)

RS EBARRAF AR ERED
ZRBE

ERRAEELZ BB T (W47 b)
HBARTRABE 2 FE
SIEBE R TRE T BT E
SlEAEDRAEE HEYE

B FE BT R

B R IAERAER 2 AT HUR
Rt ER

REF 2R

Bt

@ BE-T-AF+-A=+—ALEE %
SEOEFDABNHBYE RS FARE
B AT HIBIR I M B 9 A o

(b) RBBRERAIRIER ﬁﬁﬁ’l&gmg’ﬁﬁ
BRHBEIINBEHEBEANTIS R (ZZE— A
F:75%)MB - BE_T= fiiﬁf A
=+—HIEFE  HEABRBEMNZESEAA
R¥#24,488,000L(ZF—NF : AR
23,943,0007T) °

Tax at the applicable income tax

rate of 15% (2019: 15%) 48,773 60,599
Tax effect of expenses not

deductible for tax purpose

(note (a)) 759 9,450
Tax effect of reversal of provision

for litigation not taxable for tax

purpose (8,045) -
Additional tax benefit applicable to

the Group (note (b)) (24,488) (23,943)
Effect of different tax rate of

subsidiaries 1,108 1,239
Tax effect of share of results of

associates (65) (58)
Tax effect of share of results of

joint ventures (364) (726)
Under provision in prior years 2,079 1,151

Utilisation of deductible temporary
differences previously not

recognised (1,065) -
Tax charge for the year 18,692 47,712
Notes:
(a) For the year ended 31 December 2019, the amount included tax effect

of provision for litigation and respective interest cost of which the
deductibility for tax purpose is uncertain.

(b) Pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulation, expenses in research
nature are deductible at 756% (2019: 75%) of such expenses incurred
additionally. The related tax benefit is amounted to RMB24,488,000
(2019: RMB23,943,000) for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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9. EFIEFIRTE

AEEEEFRITRARERERE—ER
e - Bt AEESREREBEREEE
AEFETHHMEAEENATHRAEES
FFEIFTEL MR - RIBARETE - ARFF
FEAATBNEENERES TN —S(HE
ITE2HTETELOIZFE - AFEIRIEAER
ZHR BT R T HM e A AREE6,625,000
TT(ZE—h&F : AR¥30,142,0007T) °

AN - RIEEREENICEFSHE] - BEX
EEN_ZT—+F+_-_A—BRITCEFE

AFERENEL(BREAEENAEKRETD)
RIEFEFE - REBECEFSFTEIEAIE

REBASERE THMNERESENERE
TTEZREFEWLN  WHIRRESHERER
GABEMEMEAWRERPIY - bEFE
B EEBYNASLE  A—BEEES
#E c AFEREABLEENBERTHENE
AR 166,0007L(ZT—F « AREE
8,965,0007T) °
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9. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group has a service agreement with its ultimate holding company,
Qingling Group, whereby the Group will reimburse the contributions
made by Qingling Group to a defined contribution pension scheme
administered by the municipal government in respect of the staff of the
Group. According to such scheme, the Company shall pay an amount
annually, calculated at a percentage of the total wages of the staff,
to a retirement fund administered by the municipal government. The
amount charged to profit or loss during the year under such arrangement
amounted to RMB6,625,000 (2019: RMB30,142,000).

In addition, on 1 December 2017, the Qingling Group established
a voluntary defined contribution enterprise annuities program (the
"Enterprise Annuities Plan"”) in accordance with the Qingling Group's
Enterprise Annuities Plan for its eligible employees (including eligible
employees of the Group). Contributions paid by the Group for its eligible
employees are made based on a percentage of their wages and salaries
and are charged to the Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Enterprise Annuities Plan. The assets of the
Enterprise Annuities Plan are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The amount charged to profit or loss
during the year under such arrangement amounted to RMB9,156,000
(2019: RMB8,965,000).
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For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

B ATE 2R GEA) -
e MEMABRN S H
RKBA IR A7) (Hita)

BETHA(BRESRESEMD) #ZF11)

RIFEHEAREHE TRA

HEME - BB K& W
B EE#H
REEFERL

Profit before tax has been arrived at
after charging (crediting):

Salaries and other payments and
benefits

Retirement benefits scheme
contributions (note 9) (note a)

Total staff costs (including directors’

and supervisors’' remuneration)
(note 17)
Staff costs capitalised in inventories

Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment, net
Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment
Capitalised in inventories

573

8E HE

- - 3 3 —ZE-NF
+=ZB=+—H +=A=+—A~
IEEE IHFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARETTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
304,003 277,412
15,781 39,107
319,784 316,519
(144,625) (139,193)
175,159 177,326

(699) (738)

38,646 35,362
36,183 39,773
(16,163) (13,286)
20,020 26,487
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

10. BRIRATEFI (KE)

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED)

8E EE
—EZEF —E-NF
+=ZA=+—HB +=ZA=+—H
I IFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARTIT AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEBSEREKA Finance cost of lease liabilities 1,589 498
BEYERE Depreciation of investment 2,466 2,465
properties
FREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 32,292 5,923
MEAANEENEA Expense relating to short-term 2,061 32,217
leases
AN & Auditor’s remuneration
—ZERTE - Audit service 2,242 2,242
—IFRBURTS - Non-audit service 313 313
P (Wa) BIRFRR Net foreign exchange (gain) loss (1,763) 3,586
RBHENA 2 FEKAR Cost of inventories recognised as 4,388,192 3,874,794
\ \ cost of sales
FEREGI AHEEKRA) Write-down of inventories (included 1,169 =
\ in cost of sales)
FERAEREGAEERR) Reversals of write-down of (10,558) (14,132)
inventories (included in cost of
sales)
BEFAGIAEMYA) and after crediting (included in other
income):
SRR A Sales of scrap materials 394 1,942
RITER R A2 T BWA Interest income from bank deposits 207,692 192,206
and balances
HFIEEWE 2 WA Income from renting of investment 5,825 5,951
properties
W FEAEEHEERACIREMZEEELXER Less: Direct operating expenses (2,272) (2,272)
from investment properties
that generated rental income
during the year
3,553 3,679
HAERER T BERE WA Income from renting of moulds and 42,808 38,335
tooling equipment
RS s B (B 732) (B 7tb) Government grants (note 32) 22,704 19,779
(note b)
HaE - Notes:
() BEZZE-_THFE+_A=1+—HIEE (a) For the year ended 31 December 2020, Covid-19 related government
7 Bib A % 15 4R B8 BT 4 Bh A R #528,200,000 grants amounted to RMB28,200,000 have been offset against
TUE BIRRE R ST 8 o retirements benefits expense.
(b) ZREERTRI D ANEERAIFHER & (b) The amounts represent government grants subsidising the Group’s
TEHREREMESANEREEEGREZE research expenses on innovation projects and major new products
TEUW A 2 ER - previously incurred, and the amortisation of deferred income related to

3R 2020 ANNUAL REPORT

the relevant assets.
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EE EERTHESHE 11. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS
BECECSETIAST-OLER HE-F-NETZA=T-RLEE
Year ended 31 December 2020 Year ended 31 December 2019
b {LES ABRT
FHR  ERRE WM ERKE EMn OFERE Gl BuE
BR Rfth& (7 KR8 HEEL it BER Atk W#)  Etks  HERA it
Performance Performance
related Retirement related Retirement
Salaries  incentive Other henefit Salaries ~~ incentive Other benefit
andother  payments  benefits  scheme andother  payments  benefits  scheme
Fee  benefits (Note) ~ received contributions  Total Fee  benefits Notg)  received  contributions Total

ABRFE AERTE ARRTT ARRFT ABRTE ARRFT ARFTT ARETT JRETT ARETT ARRTT ARRTI
RUBD00  RWBY0  AMBUI  RWBUI  RMBUI  RMBUM  RMBON  AWBUM  AUBUOD  AMBUX  AWBUW  AUBOD

HEs Executive directors
EFtit LU0 Yuguang - 5 - - 18 589 - all - - 1 619
AOIZH-5-NERAZTAE  OTAMasanor [resigned on 30 May
f) 09 - - - - - - - - - - - -
i HAYASH! Shuihi - 355 - M - 559 - %7 - il - 554
(i YU Song - 47 - - 18 I - 47 - - 1 505
fiEE-g MAEGAKI Keichiro - - - - - - - - - - - -
3ER Ll Juxing - 457 - - 18 415 - 457 - - I 505
FIRH-5-NERAZTARZ L Xiaodong lappointed on 30 May
f) 09 - 47 - - 18 i - n 16 - 8 L
WERE(H-E-NELA=T7BE  ADACHI Katsumi lappointed on 26
) July 2019) - - - - - - - - - - - -
- 2291 - 04 n 2573 - 219 16 m 192 260
BIEUTES Independent non-executive directors
i LONG Tao 120 - - - - 120 120 - - - 120
RN SONG Xagjiang 120 - - - - 120 120 - - - 120
s LIU Tianni 10 - - - - 1 120 - - - 120
4R LIUErh Fei 120 - - - - 120 120 - - - 120
490 - - - - 490 480 - - - - 40
E¥ Supenvisors
G MIN Qing - 4 107 - 18 m - 4 107 8 0
BUR-F-NELAZTRRE)  LEIBn resigned on 30 May 2019) - - - - - - - 18 4 ] ]
FAEM-F-NERA=TREZ  THANG Yongning fappointed on 30
f) May 2019) - @ 9% - 10 151 - % 57 i) 10
- 89 205 - 8 n - 89 205 - 9 31
480 2,386 205 04 100 3375 180 2288 0 n 29 3495
— S —{—  T— N —— - — S—— —— e— s—
Bt : NEBETIRELEELHITEENERNE Note: The performance related incentive payment is determined by reference
BET YHENEES(H—BNTES to the individual performance of the supervisors and the executive
RSB IES T E SRR BEAZ © director, approved by the Remuneration Committee (composed of an

executive director and four independent non-executive directors).
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"N EF -EFRTHASMN:
(#&)

ME—EE(REZEREFR) RADRIEL
B RINVETTITRAEREE - T ESCORE 2 HE
BIERL BT THARES PR 2 IRAS i Sz o
Z3RE o

HE-ZT-_ZTFR-_T—-—NF+=-A=+—H
IEFE - BRAHIEL - fERC RAEE—
N BEEEREERERST M -

AEE—EHERAME—RERBREFERE
& - B EmEETEE A ARKK204,0007T
(20194 : AR¥217,0007T) °

AREEMATEERESNOME HRERE
BEARRNBREME A B EHHREN R M
ST HOSREN o

AAREMFFATESOME TR /EFER
ARRIERPATIRM 2 BRI T S T HOSREN

&R

AEBEAUMEREALH  (ZFE—N
FD)ARITEERES  RERBE_T
CERERCE-AFTZRA=+—HIEFED
e e RN EXRE

12. BAZELRE

EE RS EAR BN FARRBIL G R
10% 2 &8 - HIREARETECE SR
(ThEEEEHENDARKRRNABERE
MatHE o fEE AESAEREZD AR B EM
BRAH)B0% B 1§ N IRE - RIBAQF A
BMER  AE/ABEUARBREAEFEER
SIBIARAN o A QR AT AT TALAT A
EATREEAERN  BNERRIEELTESH
BIRERARREMBRAN25% - DEEE
HR2MERARGETE °
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11. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Mr. HAYASHI Shuichi (upon appointed as a director) is General Manager
of the Company and also assume the role as the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emolument disclosed above include that for services
rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

Save as OTA Masanori, ADACHI Katsumi and MAEGAKI Keiichiro, neither
directors nor supervisors waived their emoluments for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019.

The Group has been providing accommodation and recuperation to
HAYASHI Shuichi at no charge. The estimation money value of the
benefit in kind is approximately RMB204,000 (2019: RMB217,000).

The emoluments of the Company’s other executive directors and
supervisors are paid for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The emoluments of the Company’s independent non-executive directors
are mainly paid for their services as directors of the Company.

Employees

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, 5
individuals (2019: 5 individuals) were executive directors and supervisors
whose emoluments for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are
included in the disclosure above.

12. TRANSFER TO STATUTORY SURPLUS RESERVE
FUND

The statutory surplus reserve fund represents the appropriation of 10%
of profit after tax for the year of the Company, calculated in accordance
with relevant Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises in the
PRC ("PRC GAAP") and the Articles of Association of the Company.
The appropriation may cease to apply if the balance of the statutory
surplus reserve fund has reached 50% of the registered capital of the
Company. According to the Articles of Association of the Company,
statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to make up prior year losses
or to increase capital. The Company may capitalise the statutory surplus
reserve fund by way of bonus issues provided that the remaining amount
of statutory surplus reserve fund after such distribution shall not be less
than 25% of the registered capital of the Company. The amount shall be
submitted to shareholders’ general meeting for approval.



13. BAEELARE

TECTFER T 7L¢$E5EET%3ETET"J?AIEE
{ET“F% AE#2,347,0007T 2 E AT
SEHBAENBRAREREANBASFE &EPI
/AEZJ@q RAIANESE BABERER G
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

13. TRANSFER TO DISCRETIONARY SURPLUS
RESERVE FUND

No amount was appropriated to the discretionary reserve fund in 2020
and 2019. The balance of RMB2,347,000 in the discretionary reserve
fund was the amount appropriated by a subsidiary, Qingling Moulds, in
previous years at a percentage of the profit after tax of the respective
years in accordance with PRC GAAP and Articles of Association of
Qingling Moulds.

14. DIVIDENDS

BEZSZBE HE_TNF
+=RA=+—H +_ﬂ_+ A

LEE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
AR¥TFTT ARETT
RMB‘000 RMB'000
RENERBDIEZIRE - Dividends recognised as distribution during
the year:
ZE-NERBRE - ER—BRARE0.167T 2019 Final, paid - RMBO0.16 (2019: 2018 Final,
(ZE—NE: —S—\EXRBRKS paid - RMBO0.16) per share
BIE— &k ARK0.167T) 397,163 397,163

REHKRE  ARREZEEREINERE

T oFFE+ A=+ Elltifak,ﬁsﬁﬁxw
AR 1T - HEARK248,227,0007T(=
E-NF HEFT-HAF+=-_A=+—8
IFFERREFRARKC 16T - AR
397,163,0007T) * ZELE AR A FEfE IR IBEF K
SHER S AIEER o

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of
RMB248,227,000 or RMBO.1 per share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: final dividend of RMB397,163,000 or RMBO0.16
per share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019) has been
proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject to approval by
the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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15. HERERH

ZA/N T% SR A ABEEREARNRE TS
BREHE

a7

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the owners
of the Company is based on the following data:

Earnings

BE-S-BF BE_T N5
YRSToR toAsiE

1 3: 5 IHEE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
AR¥TFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R EFRERRBF 2 ZF) Earnings for the purpose of basic
(KRR EE==FFA ARGFEERT) earnings per share (Profit for the
year attributable to owners of the
Company) 300,989 345,308

B8 E

Number of shares

BE_S"_2F =T N7
+=A=+—H +=-A=+—H

ILEE IEFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
TR FH
‘000 ‘000
AU EERERZF 2 BHEE Number of shares for the purpose of
basic earnings per share 2,482,268 2,482,268

AR RS EFE D EEITEINNE
HEBE  RUE25|SREERF -
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No diluted earnings per share was presented as there were no potential
ordinary shares in issues in both years presented.
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16. Y% - BRER &R 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
LR Rl
B RERRE KERSH RE ERIE @t
Moulds, Furniture,
plant and fixtures and Motor  Construction
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total

ARRTE  ARRTL  ARRTL ARRTL ARRTL ARET
AUB 000 AUB 000 AUB000 AUB 000 AUB 000 AUB 000

B CosT

RZE-NF-A-R At T January 2019 653,121 3,619,508 75,434 19,246 89,690 4,456,999
hE Additions 5 40 1 s 106,382 106,433
BREARIRE Transfer from construction in progress 9219 65,918 18,469 293 93,899) -
HE Disposals M) 1,928) 6,381) (4,492) 4,428) 17,240)
RE-NE+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2019 662,329 3683538 87,633 15,047 97,745 4,546,192
WE Additions S S S S 179,084 179,084
BERTRIE Transfer from construction in progress 9,603 11,698 1,850 426 (23,577) -
HE Disposals - (16,921) (229 (724) - (17,874)
RZT-EE+ZA=1-A At 31 December 2020 671,932 3678315 89,154 14749 253,252 4707 402
HERAE DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT

R=F-7F-A-H At 1 January 2019 473752 3,149,439 67476 15,476 5 3,706,143
EENERE Depreciation provided for the year 10806 27,03 1,43 689 5 39773
HEH Eliminated on disposals - 1,735) (5,743) (4,043) - (11,521
R-E-NE+-A=1-H At 31 December 2019 484,557 3174740 62,976 12122 5 3734,3%
EERERR Depreciation provided for the year 10,743 2,13 2,862 443 5 36,183
HE Eliminated on disposals - (16,188) (206) (652) - 17,046)
R-E-%F+-B=1-H At 31 December 2020 495300 3,180,687 65,632 11913 5 3,763,532
BEE CARRYING VALUES

R-E-FF+-A=1-A At 31 December 2020 176,632 497,628 23522 2836 253252 953870
RZE-NE+-A=1+-A At 31 December 2019 171772 508,798 24,557 2925 97,745 811,797
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16. W3 - BE BEk i ()

LaE  BERSEERIENEREE
R RRARIN MG REF RISREERR
THEETAIME R FHABRE T ANE

{&&t
AREH FEREE
BF 204 10%
BA - BE R
(BREERER
EEARRIN 5E104F 10%
B EERSRE 54 10%
A 54 10%

AEENEERAMNOEmMEAEAA
R#284,413,000L(ZZF—NF : AR
291,329,00070) MEREERELER (BE
PR - BEREER) H2E LSRG RIER
IR EEE FIANE -

R-ZE-_ZTF+_A= + B RERES
AR®94,231,0000t(ZF—NF : AR
94,960,0007z)aﬁ$§ﬂ&1% sEHMEEREE
A o

R-Z-_TFE+-_fF=+— EI R A B
AR#3,913,681,000C(ZZ—NF : AR
3,910,492,0007T) K% - J?%‘%& KD B
WEBIEFER -
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress and specialised production facilities and moulds,
are depreciated on a straight-line basis based on their estimated useful
lives, after taking into account the estimated residual value, as follows:

Estimated
useful lives  Residual value

Buildings 20 years 10%
Moulds, plant and machinery (other than
specialised production facilities and moulds)

510 10 years 10%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years 10%
Motor vehicles 5 years 10%

Specialised production facilities and moulds with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB284,413,000 (2019: RMB291,329,000) included in
moulds, plant and machinery which can be identified in relation to specific
production processes are depreciated by reference to the expected
production volume of these facilities and moulds.

As at 31 December 2020, the moulds and machinery with aggregate
carrying amount of RMB94,231,000 (2019: RMB94,960,000) were leased
out for rental income.

As at 31 December 2020, property, plant and equipment with original
cost of RMB3,913,681,000 (2019: RMB3,910,492,000) have been fully
depreciated but still in use.
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17. ERHEEE 17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
HELTH EERET B Feh
Leasehold ~ Warehouse
lands  and building  Equipments Total
ANRETFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB000 AMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000
RZE-AF+=A=1+—A As at 31 December 2019
RmEE Carrying amount 21,738 29,830 58,314 109,882
RZZZTF+ZA=+—H As at 31 December 2020
FEE Carrying amount 20,829 22,086 38,876 81,791
BE-T-EF+-A=+-ALEE For the year ended 31 December 2020
nESHE Depreciation charge 909 11,945 19,438 32,292
BE-T-NE+-A=1+-ALEE For the year ended 31 December 2019
nESH Depreciation charge 910 3,393 1,620 5,923

BE_S_2F BE_TNF
+=A=+—HIFE +-A f-I- Hi%

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARETFTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
HANBENER HEHRBEBH Expense relating to leases with lease
IR ELERE 165 B RRBE AL terms end within 12 months of the
128 A REER date of initial application of HKFRS 16 - 30,375
ME AN EENEA Expense relating to short-term leases 2,061 1,842
HERS LB Total cash outflow for leases 33,815 37,530
RNEFREEE Additions to right-of-use assets 4,201 88,802

RZEFE AEEHARE - BEMXER
REEKLE - HESRMNE TR A3EA
Z23F - HEKKEERERER LREN - 2
S BB RIMGTRAEM - T HEHRM
FHET A RGEHRE - AEEFAGRNE
% WIETASRAITHR -

RUIBZEYFERERD —IRIEX AN - &
FERESIRI SEL D BFTIE L O 308 - 2 F B8 A
MENRE TR N T EBRY -

AREBEERSMEEE L) LI E RER

%o

For both years, the Group leases warehouses, building and equipment
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of 3
months to 3 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In determining
the lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the period
for which the contract is enforceable.

Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire these property
interests. The leasehold land components of these owned properties are

presented separately only if the payments made can be allocated reliably.

The Group has obtained the land use right certificates for all leasehold
lands.
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17. {ERHEEE (I8)

AEBEPRTRERHELY - RS -T4F
+—A=+—8  REHAEHASENTI0R
ui¢ﬁﬁME%ﬁE§%%ﬁ&ME%mf
/\ *E ﬂ//{

HERMRHANHE

oh RZFEZZTF+=-A=+—H " A
R#%¥62,378,000tMHEABEFAARKE
60,962,000t AEEE(ZZ—h
F : HEBEARESS,342,0007T MR E A
BB E ANRH88,144,0007T) - B HIAARE
WHEEERRERERIN - HEBZETHEM
EREMZE - HEEETSBERRBRDN
IR -

18. |EWME

AEERQERETALRE THEMET -
MERAZN - BO—REERI3F

AEETRBEZ M EEINE R - ERM
EHEBUARKEIE -HEARTEEEE
ERA, SEBAEHEREREBEYED
BIFHE -
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17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for warehouses. As
at 31 December 2020, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the
portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term lease expense
disclosed in note 10 and above.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of RMB62,378,000 are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of RMB60,962,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
lease liabilities of RMB88,342,000 and related right-of-use assets of
RMB88,144,000). The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out certain leasehold land and buildings under operating
leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for a fixed
period of 3 years.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the
lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in RMB. The lease
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option
to purchase the property at the end of lease term.
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18. REWME (i) 18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
HELH BF a&t
Leasehold land Buildings Total
ARSTFT ARETFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
3% COST
—ET-hF—-HF—H" At 1 January 1 2019,
—F— 7‘L¢+_ﬂ_+ B 31 December 2019 and
—E-EF+-A=+—H 31 December 2020 24,388 145,915 170,303
e DEPRECIATION
—h&—H—H At 1 January 2019 8,976 117,014 125,990
FENERE Provided for the year 473 1,992 2,465

—NF+=—A=+—H8~K At 31 December 2019 and

—Z2-FF—H—A 1 January 2020 9,449 119,006 128,455
FETEEE Provided for the year 473 1,993 2,466
WZZE-_ZTF+=-_HF=+—8H At 31 December 2020 9,922 120,999 130,921
RE{E CARRYING VALUES
R-_E-_ZTF+_-_A=+—H At 31 December 2020 14,466 24,916 39,382
RZF-NFF+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2019 14,939 26,909 41,848
LA EREDFEMNTE - HERAPZHR - The above investment properties are situated in the PRC held under
ThfEET RIERT RIS EER W A B R AR A medium leases term and are depreciated on a straight-line basis based
AMEAFEINE - T on their estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated

residual value, as follows:

it Estimated
A EREH FirEE useful lives Residual value
MELTH 504 0% Leasehold land 50 years 0%
BF 204 10% Buildings 20 years 10%

REEREMFENR T _TF+-A=+—H The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31 December
Z AR EEAAREDBI 3250007 c AAEE 2020 was RMB59,325,000. The fair value has been arrived at based
TR B AR S B EREE s B (HEMERER on a valuation carried out by EERFEE THEEFTEER AR, an
BEME T EETEERABEL 2 MEE independent valuer not connected with the Group.

F o
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18. B3 ()
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FEIWE LA EEAAREESI,325,0007T °
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The fair value was determined based on the income approach, where
the market rentals of all lettable units of the properties are assessed and
discounted at the market yield expected by investors for this type of
properties. The market rentals are assessed by reference to the rentals
achieved in the lettable units of the properties as well as other lettings of
similar properties in the neighbourhood. The discount rate is determined
by reference to the yields derived from analysing the sales transactions
of similar commercial properties in Chongging China and adjusted to take
into account the market expectation from property investors to reflect
factors specific to the Group's investment properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of
the properties is their current use.

The Group's investment properties are office units located in Chongging.
The fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2020 is Level 3 and the fair
value is RMB59,325,000.
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19. | EE 19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
BKiigiEE 4SETHEREK #st
Production
Technology management
transfer fees system Total

AREFT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ﬁﬁt COST
RZE—-NF—H—H At 1 January 2019 612,898 31,090 643,988
%%E Additions 37,574 3,619 41,193
E AR (B aE) Other adjustment (note) (10,108) = (10,108)
W—ZE—-NF+=-—B=+—H At 31 December 2019 640,366 34,709 675,075
“/T&E Additions = 5,928 5,928
R-_ZT-_TE+_-_HF=+—H At 31 December 2020 640,366 40,637 681,003
1] AMORTISATION
RZE—-NF—H—H At 1 January 2019 362,869 15,545 378,414
FERE Provided for the year 31,549 3,813 35,362
R_ZE—-—NAF+=-_A=+—8 At 31 December 2019 394,418 19,358 413,776
FERE Provided for the year 33,177 5,469 38,646
R-_E-_ZTF+_-_A=+—H At 31 December 2020 427,595 24,827 452,422
IREE CARRYING VALUES
W—ZE-_ZF+-_F=+—8H At 31 December 2020 212,771 15,810 228,581
R-_ZE—NF+-_A=+—8 At 31 December 2019 245,948 15,351 261,299
7 REEZZT-NAF+-_A=+—HLFEH Note: During the year ended 31 December 2019, the other adjustment of
- B R BT 1% ) B BEHUE R BUR IR RMB10,106,000 represents price downward adjustment agreed with
o EERNRETERRATRAERERA Isuzu Motors Limited (“Isuzu”, the substantial shareholder of the
AIAETEDERSR  RESTIABRERA Company) after negotiation due to the change in government policy
K#10,106,0007T ° ﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁ?ﬁé,ﬁ\ﬁtﬁgﬁ on motor vehicle emission regulation. The same amount has been
AR - deducted from other payables.

IRYREL T 89 5T S MBI 82 15k T S 9 RO 32 Payments of technology transfer fees, lump sum royalties under
MEERELR—FENNEENERNLAERE technology transfer agreements with Isuzu, are capitalised as intangible
B WzEHFERFHN T TE2+ =% assets and are amortised over the license period ranging from ten years
8 - REMTAREERBRER o RIBRITEE to thirteen years, commencing from the use of the technologies in
BN A R EFEE TR EER production. Continuing royalties payable to Isuzu under the technology
N Entos-3i=I transfer agreements are charged to profit or loss when incurred.

EEEE? GIE R AT RS SR AR D R R A The production management system has an estimated useful life of

ERN SR ERABIE10F o three to ten years and is expected to generate economic benefits to the
Company in the foreseeable future.
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19. | EE () 19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
ATECEF+-A=+—H BEREEEVS As at 31 December 2020, intangible assets with an original cost of

RS AR®271,333,000C(Z B —h4E RMB271,333,000 in aggregate (2019: RMB271,333,000) have been fully

AR#271,333,0007T) B # B S0 S5 B 7R amortised but still in use.

}Eﬁ o

20. WEREBLAFIZES 20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

R=B=BE N T NF
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-8

At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARTFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REVENRZIRERA - KT Cost of investment in associates,
unlisted 30,833 6,333
DB E R E 2 WHERRT - FBREBIRE Share of post-acquisition profit of
associates, net of dividends received 2,285 1,852
33,118 8,185
RS EIR - AEBE 2B E QRGBT Details of the Group's associates at the end of the reporting period are as
NG follows:
EReR EEKS  EMAIRE FEEERE  FRESECHESLA BHCRRELS FERH
Principal Proportion of equity
Form of Place of place of interests held by Portion of Principle
Name of entity entity establishment operation the Group voting power held activities
ZBCZE “T-NF ZBIBE TN
2020 2019 2020 2019
ETRER(ER) ERMAEARAA G2 AV Gk 25% 25% 25% 6% B
(E-HRB SR (W)
ITHERER) ERIFERRAT Incorporated  The PRC The PRC 25% 25% 25% 25%  Technical
(“Isuzu Qingling Engineering") (Note) development
ERERAEERAR(ERER) W2 Al ava i i 49% - 49% - REHE
ERERRBERLA Incorporated ~ The PRC The PRC 49% S 49% S Sale of trucks

("Qingling Shinerary “) (Note)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Note: Isuzu Qingling Engineering is a sino-foreign joint venture established in
the PRC, Qingling Shinerary is a domestic joint venture established in
the PRC.

The associates are accounted for using equity method in these
consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has established
Qingling Shinerary with another shareholder. The Group owns 49% equity
interests in Qingling Shinerary, and injected capital of RMB24,500,000
in Qingling Shinerary. No further summarised information was disclosed
as Qingling Shinerary has no significant operation during the reporting
period.

The summarised financial information below represents of amounts

shown in the financial statements of Isuzu Qingling Engineering prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs.

B2 /AE D AR A A] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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20. REHEATZHE () 20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

A+REHREE

Isuzu Qingling Engineering

R-B-BF R-TNF

+=A=+-R t-A=t—~

At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
AR¥TIT AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB'000
MEVEE Current assets 43,181 31,408
ERBEE Non-current assets 4,320 6,029
MEAE Current liabilities (12,987) (4,699)
ERBAE Non-Current liabilities = =
S ESE
=L = i
+=A=+—B t=A=t-A
ILEE IHFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARSFT AR¥TFr
RMB’000 RMB'000
e Revenue 32,297 35,785
FRE | LR e W 1858 Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year 1,776 1,536
AEED AT RERFMEF Group's share of profit of
Isuzu Qingling Engineering 444 384

3R 2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)
Isuzu Qingling Engineering(Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in Isuzu Qingling Engineering recognised
in the consolidated financial statements:
RISZBFE RZZ—NF
+=A=+—-B t-A=1-*H

htRERRIEEHE

AEERE T RERZRM GG EER LD
FEBENIER TR BRI EERE

REEFfFL BRI RO RIEE

At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ABRETFIT AEETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Net assets of Isuzu Qingling
Engineering 34,514 32,738
Proportion of the Group's ownership
interest in Isuzu Qingling Engineering 25% 25%
The Group's share of net assets of
Isuzu Qingling Engineering 8,629 8,185
Carrying amount of the Group's
interest in Isuzu Qingling Engineering 8,629 8,185
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BE_FE_FFEF+_H=+1—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

REeEBLEZES 21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
AEBRAECEZREFBOTAR Details of the Group's investments in joint ventures are as follows:
gt Jok 3 —E-NF
+=A=+—8 +-A=+—F
At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
AREFIT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REELHEZIRERAR - RKEW Cost of investment in joint ventures,
unlisted 368,639 368,639
DIEEEPEWBREEGIKRETRRE) Share of post-acquisition results of
joint ventures, net of dividends
declared 118,694 123,432
487,333 492,071

R_BE_ZFER-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—8H"

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had interests in the

AEERTIEELEPHEEER following joint ventures:
EReR EERR EMmIEE  EEEENL FRERACHEGLE RECEFELA IERE
Principal Proportion of
Form of Place of place of equity interests held by Portion of  Principle
Name of entity entity establishment  operation the Group  Voting power held  activities
2020 2019 2020 2019
BHEEDRWi6) AL il el 1933%  1933%  1933% 19.33% EBELEE
i ensE
Isuzu Engine (Note (a)) Incorporated The PRC The PRC 19.33% 19.33%  19.33% 19.33%  Manufacture
of engines and
relevant parts
BRI HE(ER) B HERBERAT AT il e 50% 50% 50%  50% @ ATRmEAE
(BRRHEHE ) Wib) REmEHE
ERATRERBHEREERAT Incorporated ~ The PRC The PRC 50% 50% 50% 50%  Saleof
("Qingling Isuzu Sales") (Note (b)) Isuzu brand
automobiles and
autoparts
Kiat - Notes:
(8 ATREBEA—HR_TTELFRARL (@) Isuzu Engine is a sino-foreign joint venture that was established in

PREKIOFPIEGELE -TEHRHFH
B AESTORE - AT REK
EMMEAN5324,260,000% 7T © HARE
2,110,104,000T * A+ « BEHEE R
AARDBIFEEAE0.61% * 30.06% &
19.33% M A R - AR A HEEMR T
ER 5P A TR - REES LER
AEAZARESELEESFH—F  H
%*EEE@H’F&E@iﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁ#&ﬁ%?ﬁfﬁﬁ%mx
—HRAE -

3R 2020 ANNUAL REPORT

the PRC in May 2007, and is principally engaged in manufacture of
engines and relevant parts. The registered capital of Isuzu Engine was
USD324,260,000 (approximately RMB2,110,104,000), and each of Isuzu,
Qingling Group and the Company held 50.61%, 30.06% and 19.33% of
equity interests, respectively, therein. The Company has joint control
of arrangement with other two parties over Isuzu Engine by virtue of
the contractual right to appoint one out of the seven directors to its
board of directors, whose decisions about the relevant activities require

unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

(b) Qingling Isuzu Sales is a sino-foreign joint venture that was established
in the PRC in September 2008, and is principally engaged in selling
Isuzu brand automobiles and autoparts. The registered capital is
USD20,900,000 and the Company contributed USD10,450,000
(approximately RMB68,579,000), to Qingling Isuzu Sales. The Company
has joint control of arrangement over Qingling Isuzu Sales by virtue
of the contractual right to appoint three out of the six directors to its
board of directors, whose decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of joint ventures to
transfer funds to the Group in form of cash dividends, or to repay loans or
advances made by the Group.

Summarised financial information of the joint ventures

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s joint
ventures is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts shown in the joint ventures’ financial statements
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

G ERER I FLE MBS HRER N REREY The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in these
R o consolidated financial statements.
R R E Isuzu Engine
R-E-BF RZZ=Z—NF
+=-RA=+— El +=A=+—H
At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARBFT AR¥TFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
MENEE Current assets 1,791,748 1,963,340
IEREEE Non-current assets 954,703 705,844
nBEE Current liabilities (330,595) (192,433)
FERBARG Non-current liabilities (169,845) (215,338)
BEFE Net assets 2,246,011 2,261,413
T EERABESBRENTSE The above amounts of assets and
liabilities include the following:
ReERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,130,462 578,088
nEeRBECTRIEES R Current financial liabilities (excluding
A FEAT R IE R ) trade and other payables and
provisions) (48,036) (46,327)
3E/}IL§U$F&$§1£(T BIRES K Non-current financial liabilities
H A FET FRIE R (excluding trade and other payables
and provisions) (165,628) (215,338)
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21. REBELEZHEI () 21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
R R EBE () Isuzu Engine (Continued)

BE_BBF BT NF
+=RA=+—H +_ﬂ_+ H

ILERE EFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARBTFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Wz Revenue 1,324,727 1,187,935
FREF KRG W 1B 5 Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 12,263 30,428
MARBE IR KRR G ERAIR S Dividend declared to and receivable
by the Company 5,347 14,535
EMFERFEFEATEE The above profit for the year include
the following:
s s Depreciation and amortisation 54,087 74,392
B A Interest income 51,584 51,584
FigHi s Income tax expense 1,042 898
Xl 2 SRS E R B R S MR IR R R Y Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
A TSR B 2 IREEM R carrying amount of the interest in Isuzu Engine recognised in the

consolidated financial statements:

BE_P_BF 82T NF
+=A=+—H +_H_+ H

ILEE HFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

ARETFT ARHFr

RMB’000 RMB’000

AT RBBR BEFE Net assets of Isuzu Engine 2,246,011 2,261,413
AEBRATREB A ERERILD Proportion of the Group's ownership

interest in Isuzu Engine 19.33% 19.33%

BARFIRFEL 2 AR Adjustments for unrealised profit (4,045) (2,228)

REBRA LB 2 ERIREE Carrying amount of the Group's
interest in Isuzu Engine 430,109 434,903
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21. REELEZHEE () 21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
BRI HHE Qingling Isuzu Sales

R-B=BE KT NF
+=RA=+—8 t-A=t-A

At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
AREFTT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MEVEE Current assets 131,295 136,646
ERBEE Non-current assets 19,174 57,842
MEAE Current liabilities (21,643) (46,247)
ERBAE Non-current liabilities (15,023) (34,550)
BEFE Net assets 113,803 113,691
LT EERBESBREUNTSE The above amounts of assets and
liabilities include the following:
ReERRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 108,799 105,267
//.éb%mﬂ:é1 (TEEESH R Current financial liabilities (excluding
HAbFET FRIE R ) trade and other payables and
provisions) (17,258) -
InRBeBREECIEREES X Non-current financial liabilities
HAb FE FRIE R BEE) (excluding trade and other payables
and provisions) (15,023) -
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REBLEZES (] 21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
ERATHREEER) Qingling Isuzu Sales (Continued)

BE_BBF BT NF
+=RA=+—H +_ﬂ_+ H

ILEE EFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARETFTT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
Wz Revenue 35,633 37,580
F R (EB18) Rire e G ) 258 Profit (loss) and total comprehensive
income (expense) for the year 112 (2,087)
I FEEREF (E518) B A N &IE The above profit (loss) for the year
include the following:
YrEe B N Depreciation and amortisation 1,060 1,084
FILBUA Interest income 3,755 4,102
Xt 2 B B R B A AR A B IS SRR TR A Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
RERTTREESERCREABENLEE carrying amount of the interest in Qingling Isuzu Sales recognised in the

consolidated financial statements:

R-B-®FE N-T hF
+=A=+—B8 +=A=t+—H

At At

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

ARETIT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

EBHRATREEZEEFE Net assets of Qingling Isuzu Sales 113,803 113,691
REBERERATIREE 2 RS Proportion of the Group's ownership

interest in Qingling Isuzu Sales 50% 50%

FEARZ IR FEL 2 A Adjustments for unrealised profit 323 323

REBERERATREE 2 EEAE Carrying amount of the Group's
interest in Qingling Isuzu Sales 57,224 57,168
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22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The
following is the analysis of deferred tax balances for reporting purposes:

RZBIBE P NF
+=A=+—H +-A=+—8H

At At

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

ARFIT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

FEFRIAE E Deferred tax assets 18,191 21,991

NTAAEERRNEFERZAFECERZE
BERRIBREENR BEARBEED

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

BRERR
EMERRER

FBGERR%  WERE HESR BHUEEN  NEAE  REWE GRAERE #n
ECL of trade Accrual

and other Impairment Write-down  forselling Accelerated  Deferred  Right-of
receivables on properties of inventories  rebates depreciation  income  use assets Total

NEETT NEETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT

RMBOOD  AMBU0O  RMBU0O  RMBUGD  AMBU0O  RMBOGD  AMBU0O  AMBO0D
RZE-NF-A-R At 1 January 2019 250 90 13,310 10,564 (1,841) 1,011 - B3
REB&FTAGR) Credited (charged) to profit or loss 308 = (2,120) 2850 (2,744) 293 . 1,393)
RZF-NETZA=1-A At 31 December 2019 578 90 11,190 13414 (4,585) 1,304 = 21991
REEMHBEA (Charged) credited to profit or loss 5 = (1,408) - (2,497) (107) 212 3,800)
RZE-E4+-A=1-A At 31 December 2020 578 90 9782 13414 (7,082) 1197 212 18191

RBEER  AEBAFRARBELENT
R B 1 = 58 A R #89,000,000T(=ZF—Hh
£ AR¥137,633,0007T) ° FAEE LA EHE
AP BIFUCER) TRl E R M Z 58RO (&

PG + B i R AR B Rz n R N e A 1 = 5
HARELEFREREE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of RMB89,000,000 resulted from the provision for litigation
(2019: RMB137,633,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is difficult to meet
the condition that the deductible temporary differences can be utilised
under related Chinese Tax Regulation.
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BE_FE_FFEF+_H=+1—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

23. &8 23. INVENTORIES
RISBZBFE RZZ—NEF
+=—B=+—H +=A=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ABRETIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Rt Raw materials 490,635 382,338
TR Work in progress 152,075 106,746
BURY SR Finished goods 198,889 142,394
841,599 631,478

24. BUIRR - BURiE R K fhfE
BRRRAMTRIEA

RREHR - NEE 2 KRR -
H b EYRIA R TR FRIE S

e ERE R

24. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s trade, bills and other
receivables and prepayments are as follows:

R-B-BF H-T-NF
+=A=+—B8 +=A=t+—H

At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
AREFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE YR FUR(E B RS Trade receivables, less allowance for
credit losses 310,176 92,729
JEW SRR Bills receivable 2,254,999 2,136,756
E b R R IE RS 1B K S Other receivables, less allowance for
credit losses 58,812 18,333
FEM R FEAS FO0R Prepayments for raw materials 42,734 45,439
AU Bl E R Value-added tax recoverable 52,139 6,644
2,718,860 2,299,901

R_E-_ZEF+-_A=+—HBRER-_Z—NF
+ZA=1+—8  BEFAYMEENEIRER
A RIAARE310,176,0007T IR (= B 185
B AR¥3,235,0007T) X AR #92,729,0007T
(IR =E R BB AR MES,113,0000T) ©

—hE—A—HB  FEPANEKERERR

AR #194,480,0007T (F1k: A R ¥2,030,000
TLZREBRER) -

3R 2020 ANNUAL REPORT

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, trade receivables
from contracts with customers amounted to RMB310,176,000 (net of
allowance for credit losses of RMB3,235,000) and RMB92,729,000 (net
of allowance for credit losses of RMB3,113,000), respectively.

As at 1 January 2019, trade receivables from contracts with customers
amounted to RMB194,480,000 (net of allowance for credit losses of
RMB2,030,000).
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24, BRIER  BlRREREME 24. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

1 =% IR B, 78 £+ RR 1A (#8) PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)
HEERZEENEZA3E6MHA  BERE The credit period granted on sales of goods is mainly from 3 to 6 months
BB ARRINEERRIF) o except for the subsidiaries of Qingling Group, to which a credit period of

1 year were granted.

R EHEAR - NEBZREHAR 2 BEE B H At the end of the reporting period, the aged analysis of the Group's

(B AU s 1R A HIRE) 271 2 FEUERFK - trade receivables, net of allowance for credit losses, presented based on
MR EABAEERE  RROTWT : invoice dates at the end of the reporting period, which approximated the

respective revenue recognition dates, is as follows:

RIEZBFE RZ—NF
+=ZBA=+—B +=—A=+—H

At At

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

AREFT AR¥TFT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

3fE A LAA Within 3 months 278,066 57,726
3Z6{EA Between 3 to 6 months 8,754 10,202
7E212{8 A Between 7 to 12 months 3,439 4,515
154 Over 1 year 19,917 20,286
310,176 92,729

B2 /AE D AR A A] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd 155
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24. IR - EURER R E
Wr 7R IR B, T £+ R 0R (#89)

RB|ERR - REERETAMZN 2 BUE
B DTN

24. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, the aged analysis of bills receivable of
the Group based on issue date is as follows:

R-EZBFE RTZ—NF
+=ZA=+—B +=—A=+—H

At At

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

ABRETIT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

ME B AR Within 1 month 455,629 552,800
1Z22{8 A Between 1 to 2 months 485,101 367,129
22318 A Between 2 to 3 months 333,181 293,328
3Z6{EA Between 3 to 6 months 939,638 909,593
621218 8 Between 6 to 12 months 41,450 13,906
2,254,999 2,136,756

PR RBERRITEALESR - HAHBEHE
TEAR -

R -TE+-—A=+—0B ' st AKEERE
WEE R B tr BRI B E AR 23,286,0007T
(:% HE - AR#EZ0,154,0007T) 2 FEU X
TH o ZAERRE B RE - Hdh 2 2 H
9OEILALH@2%%’UAE¢%%11,272,00075(::
— L - AR#7,395,0007T) (B Ak S &%
ANBHEENBHIOXREL2BEEALE TR
EEREHRT)  THERABEYN - AEEWRK
X SR W TR A SRS A (TR o
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All the above bills receivable are guaranteed by banks and their maturity
dates are within 12 months.

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group's trade receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB23,286,000 (2019: RMB30,154,000) which are past due as at
the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, an aggregate of
approximately RMB11,272,000 (2019: RMB7,395,000) has been past due
90 days or more and are not considered as in default, as these debtors
normally settled the outstanding balances after 90 days over due with
reference to the debtors’ settlement pattern. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.
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For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

24. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Included in the Group’s trade and other receivables and prepayments at

MIERFIERERERERER 2 308 - 8w the end of the reporting period are amounts due from related parties as
N follows:

RISZ2FE R-Z-NF
+=—B=+—H +=ZA=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ABRETT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
Ei%E Qingling Group 210,095 400
EREENHRBAR Subsidiaries of Qingling Group 69,658 43,326
A+ E S TR 3 Isuzu Qingling Engineering 13 7
ERATIREE Qingling Isuzu Sales 682 3,741
280,448 47,474

L EKERET 2 R
RE -

FRRE SIS - EIERR

RZBZZF+_A=+—08 st A\LEEE
R IE R B 3E M) 98 S 8 A FE P BN 2 FUA
#HANR¥35,687,0007L (ZE—NF : ARKE
37,091,0007T) °

PRI - MU IR I EoAth e WS IR RO (B RT
2 A BB HIEES4 o

The above amounts due from related parties are trade in nature,

unsecured and interest-free.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's prepayments include advance
payments to independent suppliers of steel amounting to approximately

RMB35,587,000 (2019: RMB37,091,000).

Details of impairment assessment of trade, bills and other receivables are

set out in note 34.

B2 /AE D AR A A] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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25. EHAER
iE T HANIE361E A REIE - MR EF

BNF218%F4.18%(ZF—NF :2.18%
§4.5%)°
RN-ZZE-—ZTF+-_A=+—8 BERTHF

H(—Z—NFE : ARKE41,857,0007T) LAFETT
(ESLIIER

TERERARER S FHIT SN LS4

RRFBITHER BITER
ﬁ TRERA®

BIOTHER RITERRAS

75A ToTFE+-A=1+—8  HERIHA
DPR=ZEAZRITHER(ZE—NEF : ARKE
500,000,0007—5 C FEEFIEAE3.90%) °

R1T4E A ARK1,041,733,000t(ZF— 1
£ AR#1,408,273,0007T) © IRTIGER|=R
0.0001%Z0.39% (ZZ— N4 : 0.0001% %
0.39%):t 8 -

UER R E BB RSN ERTIER R
THRESBEIREEHIIWT

25. TIME DEPOSITS

The bank deposits are with a term from more than 3 months to 36
months and carry interest at rates ranging from 2.18% to 4.18% (2019:
from 2.18% to 4.5%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2020, no bank deposits (2019: RMB41,857,000) was
denominated in United Stated Dollar (“USD").

Details of impairment assessment of time deposits are set out in note
34.

26. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES, BANK DEPOSITS,
BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank deposits, bank balances and cash

No bank deposits with original maturity less than 3 months at 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB500,000,000, with carry fixed interest rate of
3.90% per annum).

Bank balances of RMB1,041,733,000 (2019: RMB1,408,273,000) carry
interest at market rates, which ranging from 0.0001% to 0.39% (2019:
0.0001% to 0.39%) per annum.

The bank balances and cash that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out
below:

R-B-®BF KR-_TNF
+=A=+—H +t=A=+—H

At At

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

AR¥TFT AR EFr

RMB’000 RMB'000

ETT usb 19,630 14,124
RE(RHED Japanese Yen (“JPY") 3,096 2,827
BT (MeioT)) European Dollar (“EUR") 2,126 42
BT Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD") 123 131
EE([HE]) Great Britain Pound (“GBP") 3 3
24,978 17,127
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26. ZMRFIRITHER  RITER
HITHERA S ()

SR H R 1T R R

BIE—FREEOEAR —FRARARFPE—R
BITRITNERERABNUSHNREET
£ /\Eﬂmw 633 ooom‘A:f NE+—
AEB#HRE -R_TE_TF+—A=++
=N *E}J%ﬂnmﬂ B EER - SIRHIRT
EHRERRR - BREFISHNKIESS -

XMRBIRITAER  RITFERMBITREHRAORE
AHEFF BB M FE34 -

27. BfR® EARERAME
&R

RIEMHR - NEBNEMAERN - BARE
KEACRENFIRIT

.\m 7f ﬁﬁ#ﬁ%:z Bﬁ ;I

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

26. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES, BANK DEPOSITS,
BANK BALANCES AND CASH (CONTINUED)

Restricted bank balances

RMB137,633,000 was frozen on 4 November 2019 according to the civil
ruling issued by a court in relation to a dispute in respect of a financial
credit agreement entered into between the Company’s customer and a
bank. On 27 November 2020, the restricted bank balances were released
pursuant to the judgement issued by a court on the same date, details of
which are set out in note 38.

Details of impairment assessment of restricted bank balances, bank
deposits and bank balances are set out in note 34.

27. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's trade, bills and other
payables are as follows:

RISZ2FE R-Z-NF
+=ZA=+—H +=—A=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ABRETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FERTBR R R BT R IR Trade and bills payables 1,874,605 1,730,270
JEFTSHEE M Selling expenses payables 230,109 231,289
H eI RiIE Other tax payable 2,311 3,816
L fERTRIR Other payables 319,628 189,898
2,426,653 2,155,273

Kiat - Note:

R-ZT-TF+-A=+—8 " HiEMRE
BARK319,628,000L (=T —hdF : ARY
189,898,0007T) T EWEEIFEEZAEE
5 /\E?‘%N 450, 0007z<_ —NEF: AR
24,051,0007T) ' BT ERERBEREBARY
70,206,00077:(:%*71¢ : AR#71,150,000
TT) R ER TE AR 29,768,000 (ZZE— N4 ¢
AR #18,386,0007T) °

As at 31 December 2020, other payables amounted to RMB319,628,000
(2019: RMB189,898,000) mainly including accrued continuing royalties
payable of RMB27,450,000 (2019: RMB24,051,000), accrual royalties and
license fee of RMB70,206,000 (2019: RMB71,150,000) and payroll payable of
RMB29,768,000 (2019: RMB18,386,000).

B2 /AE D AR A A] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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27. BAER BAREREME 27. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES

R IA (%) (CONTINUED)
REEIAR - AEEIERBERR, HEAH2 At the end of the reporting period, the age analysis of trade and bills
Pz R ER R R E RIRMERER ST payables of the Group based on purchase date/bills issue date is as
follows:

R-B-BFE H-T-NF
+=A=+—-8 t=A=t-A

At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARSFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
3ME A AR Within 3 months 1,637,379 1,523,453
3Z6{EA Between 3 to 6 months 233,198 200,206
21218A Between 7 to 12 months 192 408
128 A A E Over 12 months 3,836 6,203
1,874,605 1,730,270

REEHER - BAER - ENREREME Included in the balance of trade, bills and other payables at the end of the

NFIBASRT BREEMNEERNFIENT reporting period are amounts due to related parties as follows:

R-B-®FE N-T hF
+=A=+—B8 +=A=t+—H

At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARSFTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EREERKE AR Subsidiaries of Qingling Group 172,360 51,309
i+ Isuzu 97,656 95,201
AHEREBH Isuzu Engine 80,349 49,912
BiEE Qingling Group 11 51,553
350,376 247,975
TiiREAEBESHE - EEH - 28 KEY These amounts are trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and the
HHEERA3IE6EA - credit period granted on purchases of materials is 3 to 6 months.
& BREAR - B AR K B FE T R IE AR At the end of the reporting period, included in trade and other payables
A HFFAARBEQS,236,000L (= — NF - are amounts aggregating to RMB98,236,000 (2019: RMB95,755,000),
AR¥95,755,0007T) * BRIFIATIAHEZ which are denominated in JPY.
1o
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28. aAaR

R-Z-_TE+-_A=+—8  KEBHNAE
HEEBARE372,138,000C(—FE—H4F :
AR1438,023,0007T) - AEBMNELNEEE
SEAGRAEERBREPZENEFLER
EERAENET MR- -_ZTF+_A
—t+—HMAYWABERBE_S-_—F1+=
A=Z+—ALFEMRERER -

—NhF—HA—
418,138,0007T °

BHBERARY

 E_T-_TEA+_A=+—HIFE O
A7 ANRHA38,023,000T(ZZE—HE - AR
#418,380,0007T) Z WAFTAFEHIE L BELE
8 o

PSR - AEERETAEMNERER
MEHNBEECE—NF : AR¥S51,484,000
JT) °
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BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's contract liabilities of
RMB372,138,000 (2019: RMB438,023,000) mainly represent the Group's
obligation to transfer trucks and vehicles to customers subsequently for
which the Group has received advance payments from the customers.
Contract liabilities as at 31 December 2020 will be recognised as revenue
for the year ending 31 December 2021.

As at 1 January 2019, contract liabilities amounted to RMB418,138,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue of RMB438,023,000
(2019: RMB418,380,000) recognised that was included in the contract
liability balance at the beginning of the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group does not have any contract
liabilities due to Qingling Group. (2019: RMB51,484,000).

B2 /AE D AR A A] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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29. ;RiEAR

REABKRERBENPRRAZLPINNHEE
RA -

29. REFUND LIABILITIES

The refund liabilities are arising from selling rebates to customers at the

end of the reporting period.

30. HER/R®R 30. LEASE LIABILITIES
RA_EEF —E-NF
+=—B=+—H +=A=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
EfEERE - Lease liabilities payable:
1 AR Within one year 30,496 29,359
15 A EZ=2F A TN ERR A Within a period of more than one year
but not more than two years 31,882 28,833
2F LA L ESFATHIMA Within a period of more than two years
but not more than five years - 30,150
62,378 88,342
o 12 AABEERZ G BERBBE) Less: Amount due for settlement with
12 months shown under current
liabilities (30,496) (29,359)
12 R EERFKG| RIERBIAE) Amount due for settlement after 12
months shown under non-current
liabilities 31,882 58,983

HEBEERMOMETLSHEEEENT
425%ZE448% (ZE—NF 1 4.48% 2
4.9%) °
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The weighted average incremental borrowing rates

applied to lease

liabilities range from 4.25% to 4.48% (2019: from 4.48% to 4.9%).
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31. SHARE CAPITAL

A _2-NF—BF—R-
ZE-NE+A=+-H
R-E-EF+-A=1+—-H
At 1 January 2019,

31 December 2019

and 31 December 2020
ABREFT

RMB’000

i 2EITRER

Registered, issued and fully paid 2,482,268

RINEE

Number of shares

E@:;ﬁ—jﬁ—ﬁ—ﬁ .

T-NE+ZA=+—H

_7_7¢+ A=+—H
At 1 January 2019

31 December 2019 and

31 December 2020

Fi
‘000

SREEAREITHRR Shares of RMB1 each
AL - Domestic shares 1,243,616
—Hi% - H shares 1,238,652
2,482,268

WA A BB &, S B e &
BUARERBREARI ARNERE -
HE & BIBUR &, skt s B s T S 0 B B8
J,M\\}\iLA/%EW,\%&LM\E%)\EEWZ%:;%%SIE
CoRRilike

NEBREHER BN S S 2 E RS
& o RERTARERBAZSAERARE

hmEE -

ARTMER BRI RMRBARTENL
REED -

Domestic shares are ordinary shares subscribed for and credited as fully
paid up in RMB by the PRC government and/or entities established in the
PRC. H shares are ordinary shares subscribed for in HKD and credited as
fully paid up in RMB by persons other than the PRC government and/or
entities established in the PRC.

Domestic shares and H shares rank pari passu in all respects with each
other. Domestic shares are not freely traded in The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

There were no changes in the registered, issued and fully paid share
capital of the Company during both years.

B2 /AE D AR A A] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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32. EFEEUT A — BT 6 Bh

IEIE A RS SR B BT 83T MR IR AR B O BUR
fHBNRAL -

AEFEWEIM AT /B ER AR ES5,0005T

ARBEEFERABE(CE—NF : ARE
2,400,0007T) » ZRIFE KBNS FEE AT

BIEEW AT R HBEERN]FERAFHRNE
BWA - ZBURBEAFENWRAE R BA
R#717,0007t (== —NF : AR®446,000
) c RZZEZEFF+ZA=+—H ' ARK
7,982,000t (= — L& : AR¥S8,694,000
T0) Z BREE M g o

33. BFEREHE

FEEERAES  DRRAEENE R
AHEEE - AEBECER SRR
PR BB ER - AR BRER
HEETE .

/

AEE 2 EARBEIEARREAR AEEER
(BREBTRA - REEN REAMFERE)

AAREETHEBEREARE - (ERLERZ
—#D - ARRIEFERESBEANIARERE
ZEARRA R - NEBEFSEBRMEE -
BITHIR D RIRDEERE - ARBITHEA LS
CERBERFEEEEEANRE -

3R 2020 ANNUAL REPORT

32. DEFERRED INCOME - GOVERNMENT GRANTS

The deferred income represents government grants subsidising the
Group's equipment for technology innovation and environmental
protection.

Government grants of RMB5,000 have been received in the current
year for purchase of a new energy vehicle (2019: RMB2,400,000). The
amounts received in prior years have been treated as deferred income
and are transferred to income over the useful lives of the relevant assets.
This policy has resulted in a credit to income in the current year of
RMB717,000 (2019: RMB446,000). As at 31 December 2020, carrying
amount of RMB7,982,000 (2019: RMB8,694,000) will be amortised in the
future.

33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, retained profits
and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure from time to
time. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Categories of financial instruments

gt Jod - 3 3 R-ZT—NE

+=-—A=+—RB +=-A=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARETFTT AR¥TFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
SMEE Financial assets

BBIERATTENSREE Financial assets at amortised cost 8,172,012 8,549,211

eMmAR Financial liabilities
S|P Amortised cost 2,531,433 2,235,068
HEBE Lease liabilities 62,378 88,342

(b) SEEBREEABRRBEK
AEENTESRT ABRERBYITRR - BUE

EREMBKKIR  EHFR - RRHIRITE
g IRITER - RITESRIAS - BAERIK
ENRE  REAR  HMENZFBEIEE

E% o Ex%é%ﬂlﬂﬁ’]uﬂiﬁf\xé BB A B

o ZE e R TABBEMNER B ETSE R
(ﬂfﬂﬁ MANERRR) - ERRBRERBES

B o AR 2 E R bR B R B T3 -
$%@EJ‘TE§%J—L SIS HEE KT EZ
SRk HTETEEAEY  c EHEERER
RERNWERE  BEREFERERETEERE
it

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade, bills and other
receivables, time deposits, restricted bank balances, bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, trade and bills payables, refund liabilities, other
payables and lease liabilities. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (interest rate risk and currency risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. There has been no significant change to the Group's
exposure to these risks or the manner in which it manages and measures
these risks. The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Several entities of the Group have foreign currency purchases, sales,
which expose the Group to currency risk. The Group manages its foreign
currency risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency
rates and will undertake necessary procedures to mitigate the currency
risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities that are subject to currency risk
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

BE aff
Assets Liabilities
RIBZBE HZTNEF RIBIBE HNZTNF
+ZB=+-B +zZA=t-8 +ZR=+—-A +=-A=+—H
At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019
AREFT ARETFT ARYFT AREFT
RMB’000 AMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
e usb 19,630 55,981 - -
HIE JPY 3,096 2,827 98,236 95,755
BT HKD 123 131 - =
BT EUR 2,126 42 - =
HE GBP 3 3 - _
BRE DT Sensitivity analysis
AEBzTERBREEZTLRARZEER The Group is mainly exposed to the risk of fluctuations in USD and JPY.

B o ERENGET T RRERBRERIL
FER BAREFIAREIET - BUT KRS
HYBRE DT ©
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The management assessed the risks of fluctuations in HKD, EUR and
GBP are insignificant and did not present the sensitivity analyses in the
RMB against HKD, EUR and GBP.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2019: 5%)
increase in the exchange rate of RMB against USD and JPY. 5% (2019:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period
end for a 5% (2019: 5%) change in RMB against USD and JPY. A
(negative) positive number below indicates (decrease) increase in post-
tax profit for the year, where the RMB strengthen 5% (2019: 5%) against
USD and JPY. For a 5% (2019: 5%) weakening of the RMB against USD
and JPY, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax
profit for the year.

8E EE
—E-EF —ZE-hF
+=A=+—HB +=A=1—H
ILEE IHFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
AR¥TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
b=t Profit or loss
o usD (834) (2,379)
=] JPY 4,043 3,949

(i) FIFEmER

REER QA EEN R T 2 IR E M X
SIRRMEHIF R NEEREER -

AEEZRERENXREAR T BETREARE
Bi2F SR 2 RITEBRRITIERELZTF
R KKE -

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group's fair value interest risk relates primarily to time deposits
carried at fixed interest rates and lease liabilities.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the

fluctuation of deposit interest rate arising from the Group's bank balances
and bank deposits carried at variable rate.
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#%m A AT e A0, R A # AR B2,211,0007T
(ZE—hF - #RA AR ES,285,000
T0) o TEARAEEREZRERITEAESR K
IRITHERR 2 FIRERFTEL ©

15 5B B8 B i (B AT 1

ERRBREASENR ZEHRERTEAR
B AEBEX M BEENER - KX&E
MEARREEARBENERER - BREE
NEAEWEIE - EHEFER - SRBIBITLHE
B~ IRITIE R RIRIT4E#R ©

B EAIPTEL BRI R EWE

$’$IE%’%%EH¥W|\%B%U523TJ CBEAR
BERAD RS EEREFERERL DK
Tnﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ c REEFBFESMAK TEFPHE
ARERTS o o NEBERES TR
FAREREPHRE N o ASEEEEREKIRR
NRIBEHE SRR AT R R FORITET
HERNZEE - Qi AEEERERRRE
E/_:EE"M%_)EHEL EARKT%_ ° Hgﬂ:t ’ Z’»‘ﬁjé%wuﬁ
rEENERREREBERE -

SEEERRR  AEBEERECEK—E)
HMEREEFEERBLEEREN - EERER
AW DB AR EE -

3R 2020 ANNUAL REPORT

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to bank balances carried prevailing deposit interest rate at the
end of the reporting period. 0.25% (2019: 0.25%) increase or decrease
in interest rate is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 0.25% (2019: 0.25%) higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2020 would increase/decrease by
approximately RMB2,211,000 (2019: increase/decrease by approximately
RMB3,285,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to
interest rates on its restricted bank balances and bank balances.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties default on
their contractual obligations resulting in financial losses to the Group. The
Group's credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade, bills and
other receivables, time deposits, restricted bank balances, bank deposits
and bank balances.

Trade and bills receivables arising from contracts with customers

Before accepting any new external customers, the Group uses an
internal credit scoring system to assess the potential customer’s credit
quality and assign credit limits thereto. Limits and scoring attributed
to customers are reviewed twice a year. Besides, recoverability of
the existing customers is reviewed by the management of the Group
regularly. The Group only accepts bills issued or guaranteed by reputable
PRC banks if trade receivables are settled by bills and therefore the
management of the Group considers the credit risk arising from the bills
is insignificant. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits and
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debtors.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade and bills receivables arising from contracts with customers
(Continued)

In addition, The Group performs impairment assessment under lifetime
ECL model for trade and bills receivables individually based on internal
credit rating, customers’ ageing and historical observed default rates
over the expected life of the customers and adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. Impairment
of RMB122,000 (2019: RMB1,083,000) is recognised during the year.
Details of the quantitative disclosures are set out below in this note.

Other receivables

For other receivables, the management make periodic individual
assessment on the recoverability of other receivables based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The management believe that there are no significant increase in credit
risk of these amounts since initial recognition and the Group provided
impairment based on 12m ECL. Impairment of RMB96,000 (2019:
RMB1,869,000) is recognised during the year. Details of the quantitative
disclosures are set out below in this note.

Time deposits, restricted bank balances, bank deposits, bank balances
and interest receivable

The management of the Company assessed that the Group's time
deposits, restricted bank balances, bank deposits, bank balances and
interest receivable are at low credit risk because they are placed with
reputable banks with high credit ratings assigned by either international
or PRC credit-rating agencies. The Group assessed 12m ECL for these
balances by reference to information relating to probability of default
and loss given default of the respective credit rating grades published by
external credit rating agencies. Based on the average loss rates, the 12m
ECL on these balances is considered to be insignificant and ECL is not
provided.
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34. M TR

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) SREMFETEHBFERBEKGE (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
15 /5 /8 b2 B R (2 5T (#R) Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
AEBNADEARBRERTHBRIEATE The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the
Al following categories:
AR {= AR fiiisik MR R Hfth &REE
Other financial
Internal credit rating Description Trade receivables  assets
iV RSGEFEHNRBBRIE - TMEERIBEFIE ZHIEHEREA- 12 ATEEEREX
FEERRE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and Lifetime ECL-not  12m ECL
does not have any past-due amounts credit-impaired
BREE BEBABRTRIABEERERERBES 2 HITEEAEAEL- 12 ATEEEREX
FEERRE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but Lifetime ECL-not  12m ECL
usually settle in full credit-impaired
AI&E B i# BN SR E SN E RIIA TR L - S HITEEAERBAR- S HEHERIBR-3E
EERRME EERRE ERRE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit Lifetime ECL —not  Lifetime ECL — not
risk since initial recognition through information credit-impaired credit-impaired
developed internally or external resources
&g BEOREAZEEFEEERE S HIEEEREL- 2HBEHERIBXR-E
ERRE FRE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit- Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL - credit-
impaired credit-impaired impaired
ik ENRKABBABABRENI B E - B FRIB T LARER FIE T LA
NE BB FRIER 7 BRI
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off Amount is written off
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severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
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34. &MT R ) 34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) SREMFETEHBFERBEKGE (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
15 /5 /8 b2 B R (2 5T (#R) Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
AEBNADEARBRERTHBRIEATE The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the
Al following categories:
- o 1ERURE 2020 2019
\ NBERTR  AEERFS  BHEREX FERE HELE
Wiz External Internal ~12-month or Gross Gross
Notes credit rating creditrating  lifetime ECL carrying amount carrying amount o
ARBTFT ARRTFT NREFT NEEFT
RIMB000 RMB000 AMB000 AWB000
ISR AHAR
Financial assets at amortised cost
JEMERS I aR ERR 2PEDERELGE 312,015 95,562
Trade receivables N/A Lowrisk ~ FRfE)
Lifetime ECL (not credit-
) impaired)
BiE 2BEHEREX(ER 1,39 313411 280 96,842
Loss JfifE)
Lifetime ECL (credit-
impaired)
EUZE u A NER 2PEDERRLGE 2,254,999 2,136,756
Bills receivables NA - BEE)
Lifetime ECL (not credit-
impaired)
RN % TR B 12BARBERALN 58,131 183%
Other receivables NA Lowrisk ~ #1)
12m ECL (note 1)
R 2ERAERERGHE 976 300
Doubtful  FRiAfE) (3 1)
Lifetime ECL (not credit-
_impaired) note 1)
BR 2HESEREA(ER 101 59,208 - 18633
Loss ) (HizE1)
Lifetime ECL (credit-
impaired) (note 1)
RTEIRBTHE % AA MER 12EARBEREL 1,040,566 1,908,273
Bank deposits and bank balances NA 12m ECL
TRURTER 2 ABA NER 12EAREEREX - 137,633
Restricted bank balances NA 12mECL
EHERN 2% AA MNER 12EABEEREX 4,506,292 4254437
Time deposits NA 12mECL
KiaF - Note
i RETATEARBRER  AEEFERBT 1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group uses

FHMER L B R ERARERRRA &
EEM -

past due information to assess whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition.
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34. &R T A (i) 34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) SREMFETEHBFERBEKGE (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
15 /5 /8 b2 B R (2 5T (#R) Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
ki@
HEEERY
Not past due/
2020 No fixed
k- k- 3.3 bkt repayment #at
Past due terms Total
ARBFIT ARBTFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
H A FEUWGRIA Other receivables 1,077 58,131 59,208
K@,/
B &
2019 Not past due/
—T-NF No fixed
pank: repayment st
Past due terms Total
AREFT ARETT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Hofth fE TR IE Other receivables 300 18,333 18,633
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34. @M TR (#) 34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) SFEEEEHEFERBFEE (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
BEER Allowance for impairment
RAFE - BREEBKRZOBEEBZH N During the current year, the movements in allowance for impairment in
™: respect of trade receivables were as follows:

2HIEE 2HEE

EREX EREX

HERRE) (fERRE)

Lifetime ECL (not Lifetime ECL et
credit-impaired)  (credit-impaired) Total
ARETFT ANREFT AREFT
AMB 000 AMB 000 RMB 000
\:g NE—FR—BmEes Balances as at 1 January 2019 1,185 845 2,030
RZZ-NF-A-A®AZ Changes due to financial instruments
SRIEEH 29 recognised at 1 January 2019
~BZEAKE - Transfer to credit-impaired (280) 280 =
-BRERESE - Impairment losses reversed (905) (845) (1,750)
FEESHEE New financial assets originated 2,833 = 2,833
E(‘:g—jli‘l‘_ A=t+—BMiH Balances as at 31 December 2019 2,833 280 3113
RZZE-ZTF—A—AER Changes due to financial instruments
TRITAEH &8 recognised at 1 January 2020
-BEEHAE - Transfer to credit-impaired (1,116) 1,116 -
-BRERESSE - Impairment losses reversed (1,717) - (1,717)
NELEREE New financial assets originated 1,839 = 1,839
RIZZTF+ZA=+—ARNEH Balances as at 31 December 2020 1,839 1,396 3,235
B2 /AE D AR A A] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd 173
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34. £&pIT A (1) 34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) SFEEEEHEFERBFEE (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
EE N (1) Allowance for impairment (Continued)

RAFE - BRAHMERGIERRBEEERE During the current year, the movements in allowance for impairment in
Ul respect of other receivables were as follows:

2HRE 2HRY
ERE% EREX
CHERRE)  (ERRE)

128 /788 Lifetime ECL Lifetime
ERBA  (notcredit-  ECL (credit- it
12m ECL impaired) impaired) Total

ARBTT  ARETT  ARETFT  ARETT
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000

\: —NF—-R—B&EH Balances as at 1 January 2019 25 = = 25

RZZT-NF-A—B%RAZ Changes due to financial instruments

SRTABH EE recognised at 1 January 2019
-BE2HEHEREX - Transfer to lifetime ECL (15) 15 = =
- BEERESSE - Impairment losses reversed (10) = = (10)
—EERAESSE — Impairment losses recognised = = 1,694 1,694
— 58 - Write-offs - - (1,594) (1,594)
NELEHEAE New financial assets originated 285 = = 285
RZZF-AF+-A=+—AmksH Balances as at 31 December 2019 285 15 = 300
RZZZTE-A-A#HR Changes due to financial instruments

SRTABH EE recognised at 1 January 2020
-BE2HEHEREX - Transfer to lifetime ECL (67) 67 = =
-BERRESE — Impairment losses reversed (218) (15) = (233)
- ERARESE — Impairment losses recognised = = 101 101
NELSHEAE New financial assets originated 228 = = 228
RIZZZF+ZA=+—AmEsH Balances as at 31 December 2020 228 67 101 396
ERAmpEER Concentration on credit risk

MIEE24FT % B8 < FEW B3 77 IR 2 E AR R There is concentration of credit risk on amounts due from related
L $'§lm,ﬁéﬁuﬂﬁﬁaﬁ7‘iz1ég SR = parties, which have been disclosed in note 24 and the Group periodically
KEZIEMEL RS o BRI REBZE evaluated the related parties credit rating and also look for more
i FE U AR R H b FE U ERIE 2 {5 R R B 3 38 non-related party customers. Apart from that, the Group does not

EBEF  BROBNRZSEIZEHHIREF - have significant concentration of credit risk on other trade and other
receivables, with exposure spread over a number of counter-parties and
customers.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies on cash generated from
operating activities as a significant source of liquidity. Trade and bills
receivables can be received within six months based on the earliest date
on which the Group can require payments and bank balances can be
drawn on demand. The directors of the Company believe that the Group
will have sufficient funds available to meet its financial obligations in the
foreseeable future based on management working capital forecast.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment
terms. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay.

mEFHHE BRELOR-EA -E=ff ZERE-£ -ERE “ELE FNFRNQNEAE FUIREE
Weighted On demand Total Carrying
average orless than 3 months undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 month 1-3 months to 1year 1-2 years 25 years cash flows year end
% ACEFT  AEEfT AR ARETT NEEFT A\EEFT  ARETT
% RUB 000 RUB 000 RUB 000 AR 000 RWB 000 RUB 000 RUB 000
“EZEETTAST-B At31 December 2020
ﬁﬁﬁ TRENES Trade and bils payables 1,207,781 431,707 235117 = = 1,874,605 1,874,605
EfHEERRAR Selling expenses payables 51,125 30,780 467,832 = = 549,737 549,737
58 and other payables
REAR Refund liablties 28,240 63,069 15,782 = = 107,091 107,091
HERE Lease fablties 4.45% 249 5,672 24,499 32,666 e 65,331 62,378
1,289,640 531,228 43,230 32,666 e 2,596,764 2593811
RZE-AETZFE=1-H  At31December 2019
EREARENZE Trads and bl payables 489,701 742,036 498,533 = = 1730210 1730270
EEEBBRAMERFE  Seling expenses payables 57,814 77,553 285,820 = = 01,187 1,187
and other payables
REAE Refund liabilties 14,29 2873 16442 = = 8,611 83,611
HEAE Lease fablties 4.48% 2803 5,605 21312 30,89 30,8% %510 88,342
564,614 818,067 855,107 30,8% 30,8% 2329578 2323410
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34. &R TR
(b) SR PEETE B MR B () (b)

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

REELEAE () Liquidity risk (Continued)

BEFURRURAABEFEZASEERE
EREBBEIAABE

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

ARFEERR WA ERERAIZEHK
Rz eRMEERERABIREERER
REERE -

35. MEAXH HER
AR B

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
B SRR 24 - 2728 ©

The Group's related party balances are set out in notes 24, 27 and 28.

REBEEBETET MRS ¢

The Group entered into the following transactions with related parties:

(i) HBERKEREMEAFTNES (i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
BE Bz
k- Joni- 33 “E-NF
+ZB=+-B +=ZA=1+-H
LEE HEE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
R5EHE Types of transactions 2020 2019
ABREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB 000
HEESTEREERENBAR Sales of chassis to Qingling Group and its subsidiaries 1,578,697 1,299,207
HERETHHEREMT Sales of automobile parts and others to:
-~ EEEREEERAA(EREE]) - EEEREEARAT ("Qingling Casting”) 21,663 24,895
- EEERERBRAR(ERER]) - EEBERBEARAT ("Qngling Axle”) 8,465 9,875
- EEERAEERARAR(ERER]) - EERRBEERERLDE (“Qingling Chair”) 9,325 8,857
-EEERERAEERARA(ERER) - EEERZRABAERADT ("Qingling Zhuan
Yong") 7,79 6,239
-EEERAEERIRERAA(ERER]) - BEERABEEDBRAERAT (“"Qngling
Chassis") 1,993 2,744
~EEERAERNBRZEERAT - EREBRABEMBRZERRAT ("Qingling
(=32 2) Jijia") 3,086 2,535
—EEERAERMARERR AR - EEERTBEMHEEERRAF("Qingling
([E8RA ) Parts”) 2,810 2,339
-BEERBEARAR(ERRED) - BEERREBR AT ("Qingling Forging”) 1,943 2,161
- EEERERARAR(ERER]) - BEERERBRAF ("Qingling Cast
Aluminium”) 1,409 1,779
-BEERBHARARA(EREN) - BEEERYERARAT ("Qingling Plastics”) 757 954
-ERER - Qingling Group 39 70
- BEMAERGERAR(RR) - EERAABEREERDF (“Keyu") 4 5
- EEERMAERAER AT - EEERRIATERHARAT (“Qingling
(U=25200000) Keyu") 2 =
59,290 62,453
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

35. MEH XS LR (R) 35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(CONTINUED)
(i) HERFEREMEATNRSGR) (i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
(Continued)
BE Bz
k- Jam- 33 —2-NE
+ZB=+-B +=ZA=1+-H
LEE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
R5EHE Types of transactions 2020 2019
AREFIT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB 000
REEHIRE Purchases of automobile parts from:
—ERER - Qingling Axle 436,269 388,220
~BRER - Qingling Chair 65,718 54,678
—EiREH - Qingling Plastics 60,372 55,753
- ERiE - Qingling Forging 34,381 34,570
—BiRiEE - Qingling Casting 28,353 25,645
—EiEn - Qingling Cast Aluminium 9,915 9,356
—Rba - Keyu 5,021 6,034
— B - Qingling Jijia 8,763 6,010
-ERES - Qingling Chassis 5,192 4,667
-EREA - Qingling Zhuan Yong 5,107 4,536
— BRI - Qingling Parts 4,503 3,150
- EREREHDRHEERARA(ERERDR) - ERBEREHBREEERAF("Qingling 1,060 1,276
Vehicle Parts”)

-BREE - Qingling Group = 25
664,654 593,920
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BE_FE_FFEF+_H=+1—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

35. MEARH, LR (IR

(i) BEERSERAHMELTEZS )

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries

(Continued)

#HE Bz
- ol 3 —T-hF
+ZA=+—-H +tZA=1—H
ILEE EFE
As at/For the As at/For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
RHER/EHiE Types of transactions/Nature of balances 2020 2019
ABBFT ANREFTL
RMB'000 RMB 000
HBHREEECHEERR ER Expense relating to short-term lease for renting
warehouse:
-ER5E - Qingling Group = 7,506
—ERRNA - Qingling Keyu = 943
HEEEZHEBBW H6) - Lease liabilities for renting warehouse (Note (a)):
-EEE - Qingling Group 15,636 22,946
—BREA - Qingling Keyu 1,958 2,874
HEAEZRERERS - Interest on lease liabilities for renting warehouse:
-BREE — Qingling Group 878 83
—ERE - Qingling Keyu 13 11
HEEEF CHEEEE ER Expense relating to short-term lease for renting
building:
-ERER - Qingling Group = 761
TBfEET EERBWTE) - Lease liabilities for renting building (Note (a)):
-ER5E - Qingling Group 1,579 2,318
BEEF RERETS - Interest on lease liabilities for renting building:
-BHREE — Qingling Group 91 9
HEEEE RHRERHECEBR - Expense relating to short-term lease for renting
warehouse:
-ERBE - Qingling Forging = 18,482
~-EREE ~ Qingling Group = 802
BERE REREWHE) - Lease liabilities for renting equipment (Note (a)):
—-ERBE - Qingling Forging 38,145 55,977
-EREE - Qingling Group 1,664 2,443
MERE AERENS - Interest on lease liabilities for renting equipment:
- ERE - Qingling Forging 2,142 214
-EREE - Qingling Group 9 9
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(i) BEERSERAHMELTEZS )

35.

(i)

B HRR MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/-F

BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(CONTINUED)

Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries (Continued)

BE Bz
ZECEE —Z-NEF
+=RA=+-H +-A=+—H
ILEE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
ARBFIT AERETFT
RMB’000 RMB 000
RBELH - Service fee expense:
-ERER - Qingling Group s 66
RBBUA - Service fee income:
-EREE - Qingling Group 2,610 1,165
HHABE 2 HEWA - Rental income from leasing plant:
—ERE - Qingling Forging 21 211
DT EERA - Rental income from leasing building:
—ERER - Qingling Keyu 61 62
R EZEEWA - Rental income from leasing equipment:
-BRER - Qingling Axle 383 259
Biat - Notes:
fa) BE-Z-_TFF-_A=+—-ALFE A (a)  During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group did not enter into

SERERE RN EERE

BE-_Z-NAE+-_A=+—HLFEH
B ANEEREARE BT RRENEME
AR BN RA=F 2 A& R o EARE
AR 2 EHBEERI  AKELD
REMEEEREEARD HIEMARE
88,802,0007T 2 A R #86,423,0007T °

TZTF+=A= + BIEFE B
EHREAKEHR T —AFFR(TE
fﬂmﬂwﬁ%_ﬁJiTﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁ
R-ZE-—F=A=-+XB  AAFHAE
RERARMMBRHERTEX RE - RELD
# o ARRRERZSHAABRREAIN
AR#89,000,000L(ZHRBEEFAEHES
ToTE+ - A= ANHMBENZE) -
BRI FESS ©

(b) Eki

(b)

new lease agreements with the related parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered into
several new lease agreements for the use of warehouse, building and
equipment with the related parties for 3 years. Except for short-term
lease in which the Group applied recognition exemption, the Group
has recognised an addition of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
RMB88,802,000 and RMB86,423,000 respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Qingling Zhuanyong entered
into a debt transfer arrangement in respect of the 2015 Litigation (as
defined in note 38) with a third party on behalf of the Group. On 26
March 2021, the Group entered into a formal agreement with Qingling
Zhuanyong for the settlement arrangement, pursuant to which the
Company agreed to pay Qingling Zhuanyong RMB89,000,000 (which is
included in the other payables as at 31 December 2020) regarding the
judgements. Details are set out in note 38.
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BE_FE_FFEF+_H=+1—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

35. MEARH, LR (IR

(i) BETRETZIIS

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

(CONTINUED)

(ii) Transactions with Isuzu

#HE Hz

ZECEf —T-hF

+ZR=+-B +ZA=1—H

LEE HFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

RHEHE Types of transactions 2020 2019

ARBFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

BERETHRIMT Purchases of automobile parts and components 288,970 255,576

iEarAE Acquisition of intangible assets - 37,574

HERBERAMEREENERELIZRE Royalties and license fee paid on sales of trucks 20,812 17,923

and other vehicles
BUHEER Marketing fee received = 1,239
HEEETHHREMAES 4RI Sales of accessory sets and other automobile 3,205 3,558
parts and components

HERE Sales of trucks = 760

ERERER Appointment fee paid 13 247

WEER Research expenses - 1,989

BYEELRRWH9) Adjustment in intangible assets (note 19) = 10,106
(iii) HAE+HBBRHEZS (iii) Transactions with Isuzu Engine

8E Hz

- k- 2.2 —T-NF

+ZBR=+—-B +-A=1—H

LEE tFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

R5EHE Types of transactions 2020 2019

ARBFIT AREFT

RMB'000 RMB 000

BEAETHHREMH Purchases of automobile parts and raw materials 1,179,322 1,069,115

HEABTHRENH Sales of automobile parts and raw materials 633,451 699,236

iy N Rental income from leasing equipment 42,210 37,854

MR EME WA Rental income for investment properties 4,210 4,273

HERBEMA Miscellaneous service income 1,195 1,635

AENTRA Collaborative processing income 17 46

KRB A Wastewater treatment expense = 2,247

ENiel:ofids Dividend declared and received 5,374 14,535
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(CONTINUED)

(iv) Transactions with Qingling Isuzu Sales

#HE Hz

- k- 2.2 “E-NF

+ZR=+-B +ZA=1—H

Jld:3:4 HFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

RHEHE Types of transactions 2020 2019
ARBFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

HERBRABTHMH Sales of trucks and automobile parts 15,498 18,913
BERBRETHN Purchase trucks and automobile parts 283 =
MR EE WA Rental income from investment properties 1,555 1,555
HIERBEMA Miscellaneous service income 4 407

(v) BE+RBRERARNHES

(v) Transactions with Isuzu Qingling Engineering

ES Bz

k- ol =53 —Z-NF

+ZB=+-B +=A=1+-H

LLEE HFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

RHER Types of transactions 2020 2019
AREFT ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

HERB A Miscellaneous service income 185 745
HERBTHRENH Sales of automobile parts and raw materials 43 67

i EEEF MR S IMEN ETRAIE14AF
FIAEZEERSHIFEBRERS - BRIEME
Bl 1 N RMEFGETT ©

(vi) HRPEEMBFERARENHZS &

AEEEERGHEERE M EEZPRIR
TE?K&F‘?&E&E&T - HRES REAF
WEE&([E&W*H%@E%DE’JI% BN - A
E@$%%EPIEM?T BB R EBE TEA
REE)—RBD o B BV ERFTIRER B 5%
%@&EM\T% NRHETTHIR HIN - AR E IR
HiBFEEERAERHER - ARRIEER
7 RAREEZERTEREERIMETTHIE

BRHME @ %ERAEEERERNELFE=
e

The above transactions with related parties also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and are conducted in accordance with the terms
of the relevant agreements.

(vi) Transactions/balances with other government-related entities
in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently predominated
by entities directly or indirectly owned or controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by the PRC government (“government-
related entities”). In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger group
of companies under Qingling Group which is controlled by the PRC
government. Apart from the transactions with Qingling Group and its
subsidiaries disclosed in section (i) above, the Group also conducts
businesses with other government-related entities. The directors of the
Company consider those government-related entities are independent
third parties so far as the Group’s business transactions with them are
concerned.
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For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

35. MEARH, LR (IR

(vi) HRPBERMBFERERNOZS &

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

(CONTINUED)

(vi) Transactions/balances with other government-related entities

(%) in the PRC (Continued)
HEMBTERERNEAR S, R Material transactions/balances with other government-related entities are
as follows:
E D
put- et -3 —2-NE
+=RA=+-H +-h=1+-H
LLEE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARBFT AREFT
RMB000 AMB'000
BoHE Trade sales 205,941 229,855
B55RE Trade purchases 438,331 241,862
#gE Hz
—2CE2% —T-NF
+ZA=+-H +-h=1+-H
At 31 December At 31 December
2020 2019
ARBTFT AREFT
RMB’000 AMB'000
ENEMBTEBERNE 5 kAt Trade and other balances due to other
government-related entities 49,341 120,548
EREMBTERERNE S R4 Trade and other balances due from other
government-related entities 140,408 157,349

AN ARER B EEBBET EE T BB

In addition, the Group has entered into various transactions, including

HREERNRITIUBHBETZERS 8
FERFARS kM EBA S 5RIE, IR - 7
AR E M —ARIRTTRAE IRTES - ZEMULSFIRTT
RHHMUE - ARAREEAREHERKEL

utilities services and surcharges/taxes charged by the PRC government,
and deposits and other general banking facilities with certain banks
and financial institutions which are government-related entities in their
ordinary course of business. In view of the nature of these banking
transactions, the directors of Company are of the opinion that separate
disclosure is not meaningful.

R EXFTIREEIN - ARBIEERA - HEUT Except as disclosed above, the directors of the Company are of the

EEERBETHR SR AEENEB N E LT opinion that transactions with government-related entities are not
EFEKXe significant to the Group's operations.
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(vi) EE - EERFEEEARZHH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(CONTINUED)

(vii) Compensation of directors, supervisors and key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors, supervisors and other members of key
management during the year are as follows:

S Hz
k- k- 32 —E-NF
+ZRA=+-H +-A=1+-H
LEE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARBFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
R TEA Short-term employee benefits 3,725 4,271
BRRET Post-employment benefits 181 480
3,906 4,751
36. i 36. COMMITMENTS

RBEMR - REBZEARREMT

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following capital
commitments:

R-$=®E  R-FAT
+=A=t-B  t-A=t+-H

At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARBFIT ANEBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BETHB RN A RR BB ERAGE Contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements in
respect of:
—BNEENE  BEREHE - acquisition of property, plant and
equipment 156,125 59,612
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37. BEHRRH
E3 1T DN

FrEREHEBNMBENYE LS - CAH
FEARRBFRAM e

HERWANAFTREENKAT

37. OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessor

All of the properties and machineries held for rental purposes have
committed lessees for the next 3 years.

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

RZZZEF
+-h=1+-H
At

31 December
2020
AREFT
RMB'000

—ER
E-F

38. EREDIB (W

BEFRITEAREARIIZEENRESTE
g DER—RARRBRFE(ZEFR] B
RARR)E—FRIBIT(RITADRTNEEE
i EAGIRE me@ ¢¢l%ﬁﬁﬁ
#RAR¥79,999,000tE —E—RHFNA+R
AMRE(=ZF— ﬁiﬁ“ﬁ

R-ZT—RF » RITAEEZEFRAKRERE
RiEmaRNnETHRBNRES  BRERE
WHEMEQEMS - RITATBEERZEFLR
ASFEARBEER N 228 RE < RITAK—
FSIRIEARBARABEELER - BZEFEUE
REBI HEEKRIEENEREREIRITAE
EMRE  ERFREmE  AREESNIBR
EEEREEET - RITAEZEPARER
EHBEA LA ARES 0008 - Z1EIEEE
bt R ERIRITARKSRARRY -
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Within one year 54,526
In the second year 54,526

109,052

38. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION

According to the civil ruling issued by FIITREAEARZER
(transliterated as People’s Court of Futian District, Shenzhen) in relation
to a dispute in respect of a financial credit agreement (the “Credit
Agreement”) entered into between the Company’s customer (the
"Customer”, who is independent to the Company) and a bank (“Bank A"),
the Group's bank balances of RMB79,999,000 have been frozen since 16
August 2015 (“2015 Litigation”).

In 2015, Bank A alleged that the Customer has failed to meet the
margin calls according to the requirements under the Credit Agreement,
constituting an event of default of such agreement. Bank A is also
entitled to demand the Customer to prematurely repay all the amount
granted under the relevant credit facilities. Bank A further alleged that
the Company did not, as instructed by the Bank A, deliver the vehicles
that had not been picked up but paid by the Customer in full with loan to
the warehouse as specified by Bank A, leading to a breach of the Credit
Agreement, and should be jointly and severally liable to compensate
for the losses it suffered. Bank A stated that the outstanding credit
balances due from the Customer was RMB80 million in aggregate. The
replacement of Bank A by Company Y ultimately as the plaintiff was
approved by relevant court afterwards.
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ARBRZFREREREDRARZELR (&
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38. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION (CONTINUED)

The Company received the judgment (the “Judgment”) dated 14 May
2018 from FIIT AP AREFR (transliterated as Shenzhen Intermediate
People’s Court, “Shenzhen Court”) on 25 May 2018 (“First Hearing”).
Summary of the Judgment is as follows:

(1) the Customer shall pay Company Y the principal amount of
approximately RMB80 million and the interest accretion on the
principal amount based on the interest rate of 18% per annum until
settlement date;

(2)  related guarantors (guarantor A, guarantor B, guarantee company
A and guarantee company B) shall be jointly and severally liable
to compensate Company Y in respect of the abovementioned
indebtedness of the Customer; and

(3) the Company shall assume the supplementary compensation
liability for the abovementioned indebtedness of the Customer and
the aforesaid guarantors. Upon the supplementary repayment, the
Company is entitled to recover it from the Customer.

The Company appealed against the Judgment to EREASHAR
7ABt (transliterated as Guangdong Province Higher People’s Court,
“Guangdong Court”) (“First Appeal”), and made a provision of
RMB80,000,000 for the 2015 Litigation in June 2018.

On 16 August 2019, the Company received the appeal judgment
(the "Appeal Judgment”) from the Guangdong Court dated 2 August
2019. The Guangdong Court confirmed the facts as ascertained by
the Shenzhen Court in the First Hearing, dismissed the appeal of the
Company and upheld the Judgment. The Guangdong Court ruled that
(1) the Credit Agreement is valid and effective; (2) the Company shall
assume the corresponding supplementary compensation liability; and
(3) the litigation fee of approximately RMB490,000 shall be borne by the
Company.

After reviewing all documents and contracts related to the 2015 Litigation
and taking into account the opinion of the PRC legal adviser, the directors
of the Company are of the view that the facts are not clearly ascertained
in the Appeal Judgment and the application of the law is incorrect, and
thus have decided to apply to % A R£FE &5 ARER (transliterated
as Supreme People’s Court of the PRC, “Supreme People’s Court”) for
retrial (the “Retrial Application”).
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38. EREDIR (S (18)
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—NEF+—AmEBHHRITSZHRITS) -
RIEZWIITS  %ZBF - BEERAFERA
A ERAB - ERABAMRERATB) LA
AR ENARK138EE T EARK
BE - ORESBIE - Hep o ARBERE/MRT
BEEMT - BEBEZRTS  BHEZZT—AEF
+ZA=1+—8  KEBERRENARE
79,999,000 T HYER1T4 ﬁ%aﬁ:ﬁ mARE
137,633,000 CHISRTT 45 SRR 45

RIZBZZFEXRA+T=R - ARFREIRIIDE
nﬂﬁﬁ_g_giﬁﬂ_+ﬁamﬁﬁﬁ
E(ZRTED - ZATERE KRBT
—ﬂiﬁ“%ﬁﬂﬁf WA IRERITE
R BRZBFERT R_FT_FFLA
—+RAB - ARRWFEERBERRIIRRA
RZERAMA-_ZT_TFERA_THHEEMEZ
BEFFNRFAEE(ZREREE) - R
BARREHEE  ZEEPFEED -

Btz & @ ARARBBNRERRYEER
TR T ETHAAIDGERFIAR - WERRARIYRZ
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FEANER  RRERQTRFREEHFAR
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38. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION (CONTINUED)

Meanwhile, after the Appeal Judgment came into effect, Company Y
applied to the Shenzhen Court for enforcement of the Appeal Judgment.
On 12 December 2019, the Company received the enforcement order
dated 4 November 2019 (the “Enforcement Order”) from the Shenzhen
Court. According to the Enforcement Order, the properties of the
Customer, relevant guarantors (guarantor A, guarantor B, guarantee
company A and guarantee company B) and the Company in the
aggregate amount approximately of RMB138 million shall be seized,
frozen or transferred and in particular, the Company shall assume the
supplementary compensation liability. The Group's bank balances of
RMB79,999,000 previously frozen has been unfrozen and bank balances
of RMB137,633,000 has been frozen according to the Enforcement Order
as at 31 December 2019.

On 13 June 2020, the Company received the ruling for enforcement
dated 25 May 2020 (the "Enforcement Ruling”) from the Shenzhen
Court. The Enforcement Ruling states that the enforcement procedures
for the 2015 Litigation shall be suspended and the application for
enforcement shall be accepted again when the conditions for resumption
of enforcement are fulfilled. On 26 July 2020, the PRC legal adviser of
the Company received the civil ruling dated 25 May 2020 regarding the
Retrial Application (the “Civil Ruling”) from the Supreme People’s Court.
The Retrial Application was dismissed according to the Civil Ruling.

Since then, the Company has strived to negotiate with Company Y
under court mediation in order to reach a settlement, and had a mutual
understanding with Company Y in October 2020. Pursuant to the advice
from the Company’s PRC legal adviser, in order to protect the legal
right of the Company’s to recover any compensation from the previous
principal debtor and other guarantors, the negotiation with Company Y
shall be conducted by another party instead of the Company. Accordingly,
the Company has requested Qingling Zhuanyong to negotiate the
proposed settlement arrangement with Company Y on behalf of the
Company. In November 2020, Qingling Zhuangyong entered into a debt
transfer agreement with Company Y and therefore, Qingling Zhuangyong
obtained the right to receive the settlement from Company Y.
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38. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION (CONTINUED)

On 17 November 2020, the Company’s PRC legal adviser received the
judgment on the change of applicant for execution dated 17 November
2020 issued by the Shenzhen Court which states that the applicant for
execution of the 2015 Litigation shall be changed from Company Y to
Qingling Zhuanyong. On 1 December 2020, the Company's PRC legal
adviser received the judgment dated 27 November 2020 in connection
with the frozen bank balances of RMB137,633,000, issued by the
Shenzhen Court which states that the frozen bank balances shall be
unfrozen with immediate effect. Pursuant to the Shenzhen Court order
dated 16 December 2020, the Company is discharged from the 2015
Litigation and all the enforcement against the Company's assets shall be
released with immediate effect.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the 2015 Litigation
has been settled as at 31 December 2020 and accordingly reversal of
provision for litigation of RMB53,633,000 has been reversed to profit and
loss during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Subsequent to the reporting date, on 26 March 2021, the Company
entered into a formal agreement with Qingling Zhuangyong for the
settlement arrangement. Pursuant to the agreement, the Company
agreed to pay Qingling Zhuangyong RMB89,000,000 regarding the
Judgment and the Appeal Judgment (the “Judgments”), and Qingling
Zhuanyong also agreed to recover the debts under the Judgments from
other guarantors in accordance with the Judgments. In the event that
Qingling Zhuanyong successfully recovers any amount of such debts
from the other guarantors, it will, upon receipt of such amount, return
the remaining amount after deducting its cost incurred therefrom to the
Company.
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39. AT EEME L F)RES 39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY

MEARZ—REH

General information of subsidiaries

RIEHR - ARREERFBNNBARFE Details of the subsidiaries directly held by the Company at the end of the
W e reporting period are set out below.
FATERREN
ERREEER 1 ithEs HEREGNEMY
KEAREH Country of registration and  Form of business Registered Proportion of ownership interests directly held FER¥
Name of subsidiary operation structure capital by the Company Principal activities
k- - 53 ZENE
2020 2019
ERRAMNZG) hE F s 38,166,800 50.56% 5056% FERENENHNER
Qingling Moulds (Notela)/ The PRC Incorporated USD38,166,600 50.56% 50.56%  Production of moulds for the
manufacture of automobile parts
BB b (i) e Faliian 29,980,000 51.00% 51.00% HARREH
Qingling Technical Center (Notefo)) ~ The PRC Incorporated 1JSD29,980,000 51.00% 51.00% Not yet commenced business
AR (3t ) il Eii A AR%9,0000007 100.00% 10000% METERERRH
Shenzhen New Energy (Note(b)) The PRC Incorporated RMB9,000,000 100.00% 100.00%  Automobile retailing and after-
sales services
KiaF - Notes:
(a) BREAES—FMRPEKZNFINGERD (a)  Qingling Moulds is a sino-foreign joint venture established in the PRC.
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(b) Qingling Technical Center and Shenzhen New Energy are limited liability
companies established in the PRC and operating in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the
year.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of principal subsidiaries
to transfer funds to the Group in form of cash dividends, or to repay loans
or advances made by the Group.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-
controlling interests
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For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Company that have material non-controlling interests:

FRRERFEL
GEREARRREAANL
Proportion ownership interests ~ HEEFRREEHAT ZAERRER
HELREHE and voting rights held by non- Profit allocated to non- Accumulated non-controlling
Name of subsidiary controlling interests controlling interests interests
Z2o2F —T-nf ZBIBE “T-NE ZBIBE _ZNF
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
% % ARBFT ARNTT  ARRTT  ARETI
% % RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'0000 AMB 000
BREANH)
Qingling Moulds (note a/ 49.44 49.44 1,429 6,395 171,263 172,558
B O With)
Qingling Technical Center (note b/ 49.00 49.00 4,044 4,579 150,318 146,274
5473 10,974 321,581 318,832
Kt - Notes:
(a) ARFERESHENEFERER  IRT (@) The Company has control over Qingling Moulds by virtue of the

ZAREEENREETN=F - Hpti86
AHEHMRRALERTSLHKERE -

(o)  ARABBRESHEMEHEREIHL - A
ZAZRREFTG=REFTTHORE - K3t
BREBFENARREES T+ BKAR

BURARRHEEEAIER S 2 ZHTB R

ZHBEREERIIAT - l«/(—l—ﬂﬂﬁéfﬂﬁ%x

EEERNAFRHHERNDER o

contractual right to appoint three out of the five directors to its board
of directors, whose decisions about the relevant activities require half
consent of the board of directors.

(b) The Company has control over Qingling Technical Center by virtue of
the contractual right to appoint two out of the three directors to its
board of directors, whose decisions about the relevant activities require
half consent of the board of directors.

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Company's
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set out below.
The summarised financial information below represents amounts before
intragroup eliminations.
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39. FATEEME L TFES () 39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
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THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

BRER Qingling Moulds
R-SZEZE RZZ-NF
+=R=+-H +-h=1+-H
At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARBFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
RBBE Current assets 397,015 366,081
FEREEE Non-current assets 35,961 24,690
mEEE Current liabilities (71,987) (37,294)
ARAIHAR AEEER Equity attributable to owners of the Company 189,726 180,919
S Non-controlling interests 171,263 172,558
E Hz
k- k- 32 “E-NF
+-RA=+-H +-h=1+-H
LEE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARBFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Yz Revenue 85,466 73,876
53 Expense (71,796) (60,942)
FRa A Profit for the year 13,670 12,934
ARATEES ARG SR REA Bl Profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to the owners of the Company 12,241 6,539
IR R KA Bl Profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to the non-controlling interests 1,429 6,395
B FEERERRE Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 2,724 2,383
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39. FLAFERMELFRFR R

BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

BEEA (| Qingling Moulds (Continued)
#E Bz
ZECEE —Z-NEF
+=-A=+—-H +-A=+—H
LEE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
ARBFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB 000
REEBIRERNTE Net cash inflow from operating activities 19,570 18,493
REEFH AL RLFE Net cash outflow from investing activities (1,251) =
BEEH RS RLFE Net cash outflow from financing activities (5,513) (4,824)
RERNFE Net cash inflow 12,806 13,669
BREHERO Qingling Technical Center
ek - 5 RZE—N%F
+=A=+-AH +-A=1—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARBFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REEE Current assets 307,829 299,767
REBE Current liabilities (1,056) (1,249)
ARAIHA NEGER Equity attributable to owners of the
Company 156,455 152,244
RS Non-controlling interests 150,318 146,274
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39. FATEEME LT () 39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

(2

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

BEHE RO () Qingling Technical Center (Continued)
BE BE
ZECEf —T-hF
+-RA=+-H +ZA=+—H
LEE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARBFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FIBA Interest income 11,440 12,396
=53 Expenses (3,187) (3,051)
FRR 7 Profit for the year 8,253 9,345
Profit and total comprehensive income
ADAIHER ANEIERFI RERA Bl attributable to the owners of the Company 4,209 4,766
Profit and total comprehensive income
FEREREEEN RS B attributable to the non-controlling interests 4,044 4,579
BRI RERRE Dividends paid to non-controlling interests = =
BE_S"25% BE-T-N&
+=A=+-H +=RA=+—H
LEE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARBFT AREFT
RMB000 RMB'000
MEEB I RERLFE Net cash outflow from operating activities (2,966) (2,078)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing
BREEGZRSRARL)FE activities 14,364 (270,671)
RemAGR L) F8 Net cash inflow (outflow) 11,398 (272,749)
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BE_T_FTF+_HA=+—HIFE
For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

40. MR TBDFREEARZADR 40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

TRV ASERESTHMEENEGEEHF The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from
R(BIERE LIRS EE) - MEFBMESE financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities

WEBERSREENIRIBSTREBNA arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or
SEGRABEERERADBEAMETEIRER future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement
EMERE - of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.
HEAR li:351:7-
Lease Dividend #gt
liabilities payable Total
ARETFT ARKETFT ARETFT
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
—hE—A—H At 1 January 2019 4,355 - 4,355
BERERE Financing cash flows
ERRE Dividends paid - (397,163) (397,163)
B - QR Dividends paid to a non-controlling
E Ty shareholder of a subsidiary = (2,383) (2,383)
HEBEER Repayments of lease liabilities (4,815) = (4,815)
SR EER Payments of interest expense (498) - (498)
FReEH) Non-cash changes:
BEEIRRE Dividends declared - 397,163 397,163
ER—REBATN Dividends declared to a non-
FEERBRET IR E controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary - 2,383 2,383
FEAL Lease addition 88,802 - 88,802
HEBEFE Interest on lease liabilities 498 - 498
—hEF+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2019 88,342 - 88,342
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40. REETHFRELARZADE 40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

(#8) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)
HEAR BERE
Lease Dividend #gt
liabilities payable Total
ARETFT ARETFIT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
RZE-TF—H—H At 1 January 2020 88,342 - 88,342
BERERE Financing cash flows
BRERE Dividends paid - (397,163) (397,163)
BB QR Dividends paid to a non-controlling
El T, shareholder of a subsidiary = (2,724) (2,724)
HEABER Repayments of lease liabilities (30,165) = (30,165)
SR EEAR Payments of interest expense (1,589) - (1,689)
FReEH) Non-cash changes:
EERRE Dividends declared = 397,163 397,163
BER—fENBA RN Dividends declared to a non-
FEERRET IR controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary - 2,724 2,724
Gk Tisk Lease addition 4,201 - 4,201
HEGEMNS Interest on lease liabilities 1,589 = 1,589
T EF+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2020 62,378 - 62,378
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ELNFIMBRARR FEIFE 41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
R-Z-BF RZZ—NF
+=RA=+-H +ZR=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
20 L2019
ARBFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
knpEE Non-current assets
mEx - WER#RE Property, plant and equipment 932,037 797,183
Pﬂ%ﬁ% Right-of-use assets 81,791 109,882
Eﬁ * Investment properties 39,382 41,848
EPEE . Intangible assets 228,581 261,299
NBEREZRE Investments in subsidiaries 294,073 294,073
REERE A Investments in associates 30,834 6,333
Ba %ﬁ§2%§§ Investments in joint ventures 368,638 368 639
ﬁﬁ;@iﬁ B Deferred tax assets 18,191 1,991
EHER Time deposits 2,025,640 101 454
Deposit paid for property, plant and
SAME  BEREE ES equipment 29,578 11,803
4,048,745 2,014,505
REAE Current assets
FE . . Inventories 786,630 612,169
JEIRER - FEER IR R A PR AR BT 5B Trade, bills and other receivables and
N prepayments 2,653,786 2,237,462
B Tax recoverable 15,591 3,966
THER _ Time deposits 1,966,031 3,634,347
XRBIRITER Restricted bank balances - 137,633
BITER - ROTEHRRRS Bank deposits, bank balances and cash 959,644 1,851,046
6,381,682 8,476,623
RERE Current liabilities
TR - A RIR R A MR 5K Trade, bills and other payables 2,397,629 2,131,153
HERE Lease liabilities 358,511 29,359
HAAIE Tax liabilities - =
anaiE Contract liabilities 30,496 430,457
REBE Refund liabilities 107,091 83,611
AR Provision for litigation = 137,633
2,893,727 2,812,213
nBEERE Net current assets 3,487,955 5,664,410
HAERTDAR Total assets less current liabilities 7,536,700 7,678,915
B RGER Capital and reserves
WA hare capital 2,482,268 2,482,268
BARE R FE Share premium and reserves 5,014,568 5,128,970
wann Total equity 7,496,836 7,611,238
EnBAR B Non-current liability
R — BT BD Deferred income — government grants 7,982 8,694
MESE Lease liabilities 31,882 58,983
39,864 67,677
7,536,700 7,678,915
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For z‘he year ended 31 December 2020

4. FLFIMBKRARR FWE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

(#8) RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
ENFIRREZET Movements in reserves of the Company
EREBRARS
BFRE EFoRe Statutory FRAHN
Share Capital surplus Retained #st
premium reserve  reserve fund profits Total
AREFT  ARETT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT
AMB'000 ARMB000 AMB'000 AMB 000 RMB'000
RZE-n&F—F—H At 1 January 2019 1,764,905 572,210 1,137,304 1,705,242 5,179,661
FEOHR Appropriation for the year - - 33,716 (33,716) -
FRRARGE BN Profit and total comprehensive = = = 346,472 346,472
income for the year
IH=ZE-NERERE 2018 final dividend paid - - - (397,163) (397,163)
ﬁé:g—nﬁJr:H S At 31 December 2019 1,764,905 572,210 1,171,020 1,620,835 5,128,970
FEH Appropriation for the year - = 28,027 (28,027) =
EW@*‘JWTAZ@H& Profit and total comprehensive - = = 282,761 282,761
income for the year
XN ZZ-NFRERE 2019 final dividend paid - - - (397,163) (397,163)
B At 31 December 2020 1,764,905 572,210 1,199,047 1,478,406 5,014,568
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e § CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
BE+T_A=1+—HLEE
For the Year ended 31 December
B —T-NF ZET-N\F ZZE—+tF ZT—F
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
WA Revenue 5,088,762 4,723,287 5253252 5073336 4,633,785
BREADEF Profit before tax 325,154 403,994 530,169 580,707 566,626
FTS R Income tax expense (18,692) (47,712) (68,654) (78,912) (80,577)
FRmF Profit for the year 306,462 356,282 461,515 501,795 486,049
FER Attributable to:
RAREREBA Owners of the Company 300,989 345,308 453,772 496,926 481,287
TR R Non-controlling interests 5,473 10,974 7,743 4,869 4,762
306,462 356,282 461,515 501,795 486,049
FeHERNLE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION
®»+=-B=+—H
As at 31 December
BB —T-NF ZET-N\F ZT—+tF ZT—F
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEE Total assets 10,996,341 10,995,614 10,893,251 10,821,989 10,197,850
weE Total liabilities 2,978,916 2,914,764 (2,769,137) (2,759,142) (2,237,961)
AR Total equity 7,987,425 8,080,850 8,124,114 8,062,847 7,959,889
BEBR Attributable to:
KRAREREBA Owners of the Company 7,665,844 7,762,018 7,813,873 7,758,303 7,658,540
FEE R R Non-controlling interests 321,581 318,832 310,241 304,544 301,349
7,987,425 8,080,850 8,124,114 8,062,847 7,959,889
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FORTHE YEAR OF 2020

REBBERENARRNERBR - AR
FERE_FT_TFEMNBEIESIRRE

BEMNEIER  EERTEE10% -
EERER0% 1) R BEAE
90% -

BEEERKERBREREARKO
TTHiE2) - EEBRRNAKERZAR
ARRBFEAE LBBE  AEEZR
HRERRETR T —FRNATRK
REHD)EEREARRBREAML
BIRR - ARIKEREHSITRSE

BeE: 1. BBEZTTRAFTA=++tH
BIYN T F—HA—H8
BETH(PEARLMBE R
ALEY MREBEA AR EREA
AAEEGHRER - AQ7
HR-ZZTEAFRIBHITEAT

SEA
NmE °

2. BE(PEARLMBE AN
BEZE) (PEARKEMBE R
EAEBEAERIEN) R(ER
HERERTRERSERR
SNHARIEE R 1> 2% HR 35 A%
BRNRBEEMEH BB
@) (B 1[2008]1897
R NEFE+—AKH
%Wmﬁm FREERME
MR SN AR IEE R R R
BTTNFRUEFERE
B B R10% MBI RAHR
BOEMEH -

WATFTR - $RERR B REERk A
A B AR A AR ER & M 0 (T ]
H%#Eﬁmiﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ‘
PRAZE(REBABRR
HMEERA - m%ﬁﬁAﬂx
FEANBERRMBIT) AR
HibERALH) - AQAB
EHBR-_ZE-ZFFERARKS
TSRS RIE MZ
ERFENENHN-_Z=_FF
ERHE S -

HRER B A AR R
A5 BR 4 11 69 o] H A 18 A B
R ARBEIHRZERRE
B ERZ —F —EERER
EMBRMEMEHR -

BRSERGAERS

T E_Hf+ﬂa

3R 2020 ANNUAL REPORT

In accordance with the pertinent regulations and based on the actual
situation of the Company, the board of directors of the Company resolved
that the proposed appropriation of profit for the year of 2020 be as

follows:

1. The appropriation of net profits after taxation shall be:10% for
Statutory Reserve Fund * 0% for Statutory Public Benefit Fund
(Note 1) and 90% for profit available for distribution.

2. A final dividend of RMBO.1 per share forthcoming in cash (Note
2). Subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company, the proposed final
dividend is expected to be paid to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of shareholders of the Company on
Wednesday, 16 June 2021. Further announcement will be made as
to the exact form of payment.

Notes: 1.

In accordance with the amendment to the Company
Law of PRC on 27 October 2005 effective from 1
January 2006, and pursuant to the Company's articles of
association and the resolutions of the board of directors
of the Company, the Company decided not to accrue for
Statutory Public Benefit Fund from the year of 2006.

According to the regulations of the Enterprise
Income Tax Law of the People’'s Republic of China,
Implementation Regulations on Enterprise Income Tax
Law of the People's Republic of China and the Notice
of Withholding and Payment of Enterprise Income Tax
Regarding China Resident Enterprise Paying Dividend to
Non-Resident Enterprise Holders of Overseas H Shares
issued by China’s State Administration of Taxation(Guo
Shui Han [2008]N0.897 on 6 November 2008), any China
resident enterprise which pays dividend to non-resident
enterprise holders of overseas H shares for the year
of 2008 and subsequent years shall withhold and pay
enterprise income tax at a unified tax rate of 10%.

As stated above, in respect of any non-resident
enterprise holders of H Shares (including HKSCC
Nominees Limited, other custodians, corporate
nominees and trustees such as securities companies
and banks, and other entities or organizations)
whose names appear on the Company's register of
shareholders on the Record Date of Dividend, the
Company will pay the 2020 final dividend payable to
such shareholders after deducting enterprise income
tax payable from the 2020 final dividend.

In respect of any individual holders of H shares
whose names appear on the Company's register
of shareholders on the record date of dividend, the
Company will not deduct the enterprise income tax
from the 2020 final dividend which such shareholders
have right to receive.

Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

26 March 2021
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LEGAL ADVISERS
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Tung & Co.
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